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Corporate Structure

NCIES

As at 31 March 2022
7202243 H31H
BGMC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ER R EZERERA A
(Stock Code: 1693)
(B HSR - 1693)

BGMC Malaysia Limited
BGMC Holdings Berhad
BGMC Corporation
Sdn Bhd BGMC Energy Sdn Bhd
80% 51% 95%
Built-Master Headway BGMC BRAS BGMC Estate
Engineering Construction Power Sdn Bhd
Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd

Built-Master
Elevator
Engineering
Sdn Bhd

Note: Unless otherwise stated, all subsidiaries are wholly-owned by BGMC International Limited.

Wit - BRBHI) - FBINE A AR B R BIR A A1 AR ©

4 ANNUALREPORT2022 BGMC International Limited



Dear valued shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of BGMC International Limited
("BGMC”" or “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to you the Company's annual report for the period from 1
October 2020 to 31 March 2022 (‘FPE2022").

FPE2022 continues to be a challenging year for not only BGMC but also to
the construction industry that we venture into. The outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic which sapped the strength out of the economy is sending ripple
effects around the world and one of the hardest hit industries in Malaysia was the
construction industry. The Government of Malaysia initiated various measures
to curb the spread of COVID-19 which greatly affected the construction industry
in Malaysia overall. Despite resuming the Group's site activities gradually in
mid-August 2021 while the economic activity continues to pick up the pace,
challenges and pressures remain as the construction industry’s labour shortages
issues is still unresolved, construction material costs continue to soar due to
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and companies will have to exercise a great deal
of caution and comply fully with the standard operating procedure in order to
maintain the fragile balance between business and health due to the increase in
COVID-19 infections cases recently.

Notwithstanding the issues plaguing the construction industry and to a bigger
extent the overall economy, the confidence and optimism about the recovery of
economy have however never been so high. The Malaysian economy registered
a positive growth of 5.0% in the first quarter of 2022. This was mainly due to the
normalisation of economic activity, expansion in external market after the easing
of measures taken to curb the pandemic back in second and third quarter of 2021
and continued labour market recovery. The economy growth would also benefit
from the reopening of international border and implementation of investment
projects.

We have been through some rough times in the past few years. Throughout the
past eighteen months, BGMC undertook precautionary and stricter measures
and implemented tighter control over expenditure to overcome disruptions
caused by a weakening economy. With these control measures, the Group's
management team will be able to continue to steer the Company on an even
keel. Apart from that, BGMC has initiated the debt restructuring process back in
May 2021. The Court has sanctioned the same in the month of January 2022. This
whole exercise unfolded and tested the Company’s resilience which brought out
the best in the team in ensuring the Company remains relevant.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Whilst Malaysia economy is expected to maintain its momentum in recovery, the
Central Bank of Malaysia (Bank Negara Malaysia) has recently reiterated that the
economy will further grow to between 5.3% and 6.3% in 2022 which is supported
by higher private-sector expenditure and continued expansion in global demand,
Nevertheless, it is also concerned about the downside risk to the growth of 2022
posed by recent global event, worsening supply chain disruptions, weaker-than-
expected global growth and adverse development of COVID-19 around the
world.

The challenge for the Group will be the inflationary pressures. Core inflation is
expected to trend higher this year which causes prices to go upward. The Group
will focus on bidding and/or negotiating for new construction projects, targeting
those with relatively high margin to replenish its order book. Although there
could be a lack in new infrastructure projects to pump-prime the construction
industry in the recent Budget 2022, the Group is optimistic that it can give
competitive value to secure new projects.

Acknowledgement

I'would like to thank Mr. Ching Hong Seng who retired as the Executive Director
and Chief Financial Officer, Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif who resigned as the
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman, as well as Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha
who resigned as the Independent Non-Executive Director. Their contribution
during this challenging period has been enormous which greatly helps to steady
the ship of BGMC. On the other end, | would like to welcome Datuk Kang Hua
Keong to join BGMC's Board. We are grateful and excited to have Datuk Kang Hua
Keong's joining the Board and bring his experiences and perspectives to BGMC in
order to further our task ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
appreciation to all our valued shareholders for your faith and support all these
years. My sincere thanks to my fellow Board members as well as the management
and staff for their hard work, dedication and loyalty to the Group in the past year.
Also, my personal gratitude to all our customers, strategic partners, financiers,
suppliers, and the Government of Malaysia and various regulatory authorities for
their continuous support and confidence in our Group.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director
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Business Review

BGMC is a full-fledged integrated construction service and construction
solutions provider. It operates in two business sectors namely the Construction
Services sector and the Concession and Maintenance sector. The Construction
Services sector, which undertakes primarily construction service contracts not
exceeding five years, further comprises Building and Structure segment, Energy
Infrastructure segment, Mechanical and Electrical segment, and Earthwork and
Infrastructure segment. The Concession and Maintenance sector, on the other

Management Discussion and Analysis
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hand, undertakes primarily Public Private Partnership contracts with a duration of

around 20 years.

Business Sector

ES

Segment/Model
28 B

What BGMC Does
EFIERRERTE

Construction
Services

REERTS

Building and Structure
segment

Focuses on construction of low-rise and high-rise building. The nature of the
building can either be (i) residential building which comprises those landed houses,
apartments and condominiums; (ii) commercial building which comprises university
campus, hotel tower, office tower and basement car parks; and (iii) industrial
building which includes factory and power generation plant.
SPREREBNEERT - EFUHEURNERET  8FAHET
ABMAELRSE  (NEABF  BEAERE JBEKRE - IAKEMM T
BHG R THEET  BRIBMEEHE -

Energy Infrastructure
segment

BEREZ DA

Specialized in the design and building of medium and high voltage power
substation and the installation of medium and high voltage underground cabling
system. This segment also specializes in the establishment of the utility scale solar
power plant.
BEEREZFREEPERSBREEUNT B THRERHLE - %5
HEEFIEEFRELRAFENAKGREER -

Mechanical and Electrical
segment

W 2 B

D HB

Focuses on the value engineering and installation of mechanical and electrical
components of a building and project.

EIMEFAIE R MEHAE FEGNEEIENRE -

Earthwork and Infrastructure

segment

T REES B

Specialize in site clearing, building platform formation, road and drainage

construction and other main infrastructure installation.
BERBIGHER BRI TR EREEKEIEEEEMRBLE

Concession and
Maintenance

Frat e R e

Build, Lease, Maintain and
Transfer ("BLMT") model

i HE - gENEE
([BLMT )=

A concession to build, lease, maintain and transfer of a university campus. The
construction of the university campus has a 3 years contractual period while the
lease and maintenance job span a 20 years contractual period.

BiE - HE  #ENBEAERENSTE AZREZRNHARAHA3
F - MAEMEZETIEN S RIHF205F -

Build, Own and Operate
("'BOO") model

BiE - A REE
([BOO )&=

A concession to design, build, finance, own, operate and maintain a solar power
plant. The power generated is sold via a 21 years Power Purchase Agreement to the
utility company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED

Construction Services Sector

The Construction Services sector contributed RM275.9 million, or 96.5%, to the
consolidated revenue of the Group for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31
March 2022 ("FPE2022"), as compared with RM180.2 million or 94.6% in the
financial year ended 30 September 2020 (‘FY2020").

The significant difference is mainly due to length from 1 October 2020 to 31
March 2022 (“Period”) contained in the FPE2022 as compared to the twelve
months period recorded in FY2020. Notwithstanding the differences recorded
herein, the Construction Services sector encountered a lot of challenges
during the reporting period. The operation and business of this sector are
seriously impacted by the imposition of the Movement Control Order (“MCQ"),
Conditional Movement Control Order ("CMCO"), Recovery Movement Control
Order ("RMCO"), Full Movement Control Order (“FMCO”) by the Government of
Malaysia throughout different time in our reporting period to contain the spread
of COVID-19 pandemic. These impositions have not only reduced the effective
production days of our operation, they have also cut down the productivity
and momentum at all of our construction sites. The situation is made more
complicated with the need to comply to the Standard Operating Procedure
("SOP") both in the office and all our construction sites as the new normal in
addition to the unexpected disruption caused by the logistic delivery system, the
building material price increments and the shortage of labour supply. Ultimately,
time and cost required for the completion of our projects will significantly
increase.

In view of the above, all of our ongoing projects required a revised completion
date. Together with the delays that have not been granted with extension of time
("EOT"), we have estimated and provided the liquidated ascertained damages
("LAD") for all our ongoing projects. These estimation and provision are however
recoverable upon the Group obtaining EOT approval for each project.

Emerging from COVID-19 pandemic, the introduction of National Recovery Plan
(“NRP”) by the Government has helped to improve the operating environment.
The Group is glad that relief provided by the Temporary Measures For Reducing
The Impact of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Act 2020, the effective
vaccination program and the gradual relaxation of SOP have contributed
positively to the increase of productivity and momentum at all our construction
site. These have not only contributed to the increases in the work done, it has
also brought few of our ongoing projects like Setia Spice closer to completion.

BGMC International Limited
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The Group will be kept busy in the next eighteen months with an outstanding
order book of RM319.7 million as compared to RM597.4 million in FY2020. The
Group's major ongoing projects are as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE N WED AN
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Project Name and Description

HE BBREN

Sky Seputeh: Construction of two 37-storey towers with 290 apartment
units, car parks and other facilities at Taman Seputeh, Wilayah Persekutuan,
Malaysia.

Sky Seputeh :
PersekutuaniZ X M EE37EHINIE © BIE20ERE -~ %
BHISRHARRNE

7 B R 78 28 Taman Seputeh, Wilayah

Bangsar 61: Construction and completion of Earthworks, Basement and
Associated Works for a 4-storey basement car park at Bangsar, KL, Malaysia.

#=61

NFER 7T - HiE AR TAR

B RAGEER R RIBHEEEIRER

Setia Spice: Construction of a 26-storey building with a 19-storey hotel
(453 rooms), a 3-storey car park and 4-storey hotel facilities, plus a 2-storey
basement car park at Setia Spice, Bayan Lepas, Penang, Malaysia.

Setia Spice :
R6EHIET - BIFES19ERBEE (453EFEH) - &
E3EMEEE - EE4ERNBEEREMES2 BN E
1$EH5 -

A 55 2R 78 52 1B M 2 7 7 Setia Spice B 7% —

Building and Structure Segment

As the leading segment of the Construction Services sector and the Group, the
Building and Structure segment contributed RM247.9 million, or 86.7%, to the
Group's consolidated revenue in FPE2022 as compared to RM132.7 million, or
69.7%, in FY2020. Notwithstanding that the increase is mainly due to an extended
reporting period, it has also contributed by (i) higher recognition of work done as
the Group has been better equipped in complying to those SOP imposed; and (ii)
the reduced impact of the estimated LAD in most of the ongoing projects upon
obtaining EOT for the projects.

During FPE2022, the Building and Structure segment focuses on ongoing
project and (i) comply to the SOP imposed by the Government in resuming work
progress at all our ongoing project sites; (i) increase the productivity and work
done for the ongoing projects as the industry was facing shortage of labour
supply due to border closure; and (iii) efficiently utilize the financial resources
that the Group has. The objective is to deploy more resources to implement the
existing projects at a faster pace and therefore reduces the delays caused by the
disruption. The Group also aims to complete the projects soonest possible so as
to contain the ballooning cost of projects. All these new focuses and objectives
will ensure not only a successful completion of projects for our clients, it may also
leave behind a good name and track record for other future opportunities.

As at 31 March 2022, the Building and Structures segment had an outstanding
order book of RM301.3 million as compared to RM520.8 million in FY2020.

Energy Infrastructure Segment

During FPE2022, the Energy Infrastructure segment has contributed a revenue of
RM12.7 million or about 4.4% of the Group's consolidated revenue as compared
with RM36.5 million or 19.2% of the Group's consolidated revenue in FY2020. This
reduction is mainly due to (i) the changes of the revenue mix focus of the Group;
(i) the suspension of work during the FMCO period; and (jii) the prolonged period
of time required for the procurement of working permit from the local council.

BFEREED B
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During FPE2022, this segment has an outstanding order book of RM8.7 million
as compared to RM29.3 million in FY2020. The Group is cautiously monitoring
the procurement of contract for this segment as the cost structure of the project
has varied tremendously recently. The price increment for the raw material
like copper and cross link polyethylene has profound impact to the price of
medium and high voltage cables that are required for projects categorized in this
segment. Increment of price in the raw material had also varied the prices of the
equipment required for the construction of the power substation.

Mechanical and Electrical Segment

The Mechanical and Electrical segment has contributed RM24.7 million equivalent
to 8.6% to the consolidated revenue of the Group in FPE2022 as compared with
RM10.6 million equivalent to 5.6% of the consolidated revenue in FY2020. This
increase is mainly attributable to (i) increase in work done of the project; and (ii)
delivery and complete installation of major equipment required by the project.

With more outstanding order book being successfully turned into revenue, the
segment’s remaining order book now stand at RM9.7 million as compared to
RM47.2 million recorded in FY2020.

Earthworks and Infrastructure Segment

Though the Group possesses the track record of procuring and implementing
the earthworks and infrastructure related projects, procurement activities
nevertheless are minimal for this segment due to the challenging market
conditions. Resources from this segment has already been redeployed to
other segment of the Construction Services sector to better equip the Group
in completing the other ongoing projects. The Earthworks and Infrastructure
segment has recorded a revenue of negative RM9.5 million for FPE2022 due to
change in the job scope in the finalisation of project account with the client
during FPE2022. This change has caused the revenue which was recognised in
the previous financial year to be reversed during FPE2022. The Group will not be
deploying resources for this segment going forward after going through some
in-depth consideration and deliberation.

Concession and Maintenance Sector

After completing the disposal of the wholly-owned subsidiary, KAS Engineering
Sdn. Bhd. ("KAS Engineering”), on 11 June 2021, the Group as at 31 March 2022
has 1 contract under the Concession and Maintenance sector which run with
the BOO model. This remaining contract encapsulated the solar Power Purchase
Agreement signed with Tenaga Nasional Berhad (“TNB”) which is also the sole
power distributor in Peninsular Malaysia. For the proposed disposal of interest in
BGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd. ("BGMC Bras Power”) which holds the concession
under the aforesaid Power Purchase Agreement, please refer to announcement
dated 27 June 2022. The Company will be open to explore and procure new
concession and maintenance contract if opportunities arise.
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BLMT Model - The UiTM University Campus

The Group derived 2 sources of income from this concession contract, namely
the imputed interest and the building maintenance services income. In FPE2022,
the BLMT model has contributed income amounting to RM35.1 million to the
Group as compared to RM53.2 million in FY2020.

The Group had entered into a share purchase agreement on 16 November
2020 to dispose of the entire shareholding in KAS Engineering that owns this
concession contract. This disposal was approved in the extraordinary general
meeting on 30 December 2020. The disposal was subsequently completed on 11
June 2021 as the conditions in the share purchase agreement have been fulfilled
on 17 May 2021.

Upon completion of the disposal, the Group has recorded a disposal loss of
RM25.7 million in FPE2022. The disposal has nevertheless brought a much-
needed cash generation of RM88.7 million. It has enabled the Group to repay
bank borrowing and thus reduces the gearing ratio while allowing the Group to
fund the scheme of arrangement undertaken by one of the subsidiaries of the
Group (“Scheme of Arrangement’).

BOO Model - Kuala Muda Large Scale Solar Photovoltaic (“LSSPV”)
Power Plant

This concession contract encapsulated the right to establish a 30 megawatt
alternate current ("MWa.c."”) LSSPV power plant to generate and to sell the solar
power to TNB for a contractual period of 21 years. The LSSPV power plant has
managed to procure the Commercial Operation Date on 22 March 2022 and
has since started to generate and sell the solar power to TNB even though the
Group has yet to accept the construction of the LSSPV power plant fully from the
Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Commissioning ("EPCC") contractor.
The full and final handover of the LSSPV power plant will only occur when
the Group is satisfied with the completion of the defective work by the EPCC
contractor.

During FPE2022, the BOO model has recognized a construction revenue of
RM71.1 million as compared to RM111.1 million in FY2020. The reduction is
mainly due to the low recognizable outstanding construction revenue.

The Group has, on 24 March 2022 entered into a Deed of Arrangement to
dispose of interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power which operates
LSSPV power plant. For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company made on 24 March 2022 and 27 June 2022.
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group's total revenue for the Period was RM285.8 million as compared
to RM190.5 million in FY2020. It comprises contribution of RM275.9 million
equivalent to 96.5% from Construction Services sector. The significant difference
is mainly due to the eighteen months period contained in the FPE2022 as
compared to the twelve months period recorded in FY2020. Notwithstanding
the differences due to the prolonged reporting period, the increment is also
due to upsurge in the recognition of work done in all our ongoing projects. The
recorded revenue is however achieved under a very challenging environment
as the Group's operation continued to face multiple project sites closure due
to Government mandated lock downs or as precautionary measures when
COVID-19 positive cases detected on site. When the Group was able to resume
construction work under the permissible SOP and other guidelines issued by the
Government and regulatory authority, productivity rates remained very low due
to caps placed on the percentage of workforce allowed at sites at any given time,
restrictions on the type of works that could be carried out, as well as significant
disruption in the construction supply chain which led to a shortage of labour and
essential building materials.

Gross Loss

The Group recorded a gross loss of RM50.1 million in FPE2022 as compared to
RM82.0 million in FY2020. The Group's gross loss margin improved to 17.5% for
the Period from 43.0% in FY2020. The improvement was achieved as the cost
attributed to the two contracts terminated by Customer A was fully taken up in
FY2020 while there is no such recognition in FPE2022.

Other Income

The Group recorded other income amounting to RM50.7 million in FPE2022 as
compared to RM1.7 million in FY2020. The amount recorded in FPE2022 was
contributed by the gain on extinguishment of debt of RM46.1 million from the
sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement entered into between the Group's
wholly-owned subsidiary and its creditors.

Administrative and Other Expenses

Administrative and other expenses have slightly increased from RM34.6 million
in FY2020 to RM35.5 million in FPE2022. RM18.4 million was required for the staff
cost.

Finance Cost

The Group incurred RM3.9 million finance cost in FPE2022 as compared to RM5.4

million recorded in FY2020. The reduction in finance cost is due to repayment of
bank borrowings in FPE2022.
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Income Tax

The income tax expenses reduced from the RM5.6 million recorded in FY2020
to the tax credit of RM2.4 million for FPE2022 mainly due to over-provision of
income tax expenses amounting to RM2.0 million in FY2020.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Net gearing ratio of the Group (calculated by dividing the net debts by equity
attributable to owners of the Company) is recorded at 0.01 times as at 31 March
2022 as compared to 0.54 times as at 30 September 2020. The Group repaid the
bank borrowing amounting to RM59.3 million with the proceeds obtained from
the sale of KAS Engineering.

Cash and bank balances (including fixed deposits) stood at RM37.4 million as
at 31 March 2022 as compared with RM44.7 million as at 30 September 2020,
representing a decrease of RM7.3 million.

Net Current Assets

Net current assets of the Group stood at RM118.9 million as at 31 March 2022, as
compared with net current liabilities of RM62.4 million as at 30 September 2020.
The improvement was due to the reclassification of non-current contract of assets
of BGMC Bras Power to assets classified as held for sales as the Group intended to
dispose of interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power which owns the
concession contract of selling solar power generated by the LSSPV power plant.

The improvement is also due to a successful implementation of the Scheme of
Arrangement or debt restructuring with the creditors. RM47.9 million in the trade
payable is now being reclassified as non-current trade payable.

Treasury Policies

The Group's financing and treasury activities are centrally managed and
controlled at the corporate level. Bank borrowings of the Group are all
denominated in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM") and on a floating rate basis. It is the
Group's policy not to enter into derivative transaction for speculative purposes.
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure mainly consisted of procurement of construction machinery
and equipment such as aluminium formwork system, which was funded by hire
purchase, the net proceeds from its global offering completed in August 2017
and internally generated funds. During FPE2022, BGMC has not acquired any
construction machinery and equipment (FY2020: RMO0.12 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The functional currency of BGMC's operation, assets and liabilities is Ringgit
Malaysia (“RM"). Therefore, the Company is not exposed to significant foreign
exchange risk and has not employed any financial instrument for hedging, except
for Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$") denominated bank balances.

Significant Investment Hold
The Group did not hold any other significant investment during FPE2022.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

Save for the disposal of KAS Engineering as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 16 November 2020 and the proposed disposal of BGMC Bras
Power as set out in the announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2022
and 27 June 2022, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during FPE2022.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 130 employees as compared to 229 as at
30 September 2020. Total staff costs incurred in FPE2022 were RM18.4 million
compared to RM22.1 million recorded in FY2020. The reduction is due to (i) the
human resources rationalisation program that we have carried out in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic; and (ii) the completion of the disposal of KAS
Engineering.

Remuneration is determined by reference to prevailing market terms and in
accordance with the performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. Periodic in-house training is provided to enhance the knowledge of
the workforce. Meanwhile, external training programs conducted by qualified
personnel are also attended by employees to enhance their skills set and working
experience.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme which became effective on 9
August 2017, being the date of listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, to enable the Board to grant share options to eligible participants
giving them an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company. As at the
date of this annual report, there was no outstanding share option granted under
the share option scheme.

BGMC International Limited
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Future Prospect

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused serious damages to BGMC
for the past two and a half years, we have nevertheless come out on top of all
the challenges so far. Complying to standard operation procedure (“SOP”) as
required by regulatory authorities, working in the new normalcy, live together
with COVID-19, implementing a debt restructuring and the rationalisation of our
resources have enabled BGMC to stand stronger on a firmer footing.

Going forward, we will focus on using the resources that we have to implement
the existing projects at a faster pace and therefore reduces the delays caused by
the disruption. The Group also aims to complete the project soonest possible so as
to contain the ballooning cost of projects. All these new focuses and objectives
will not only ensure a successful completion of projects for our clients, it may also
leave behind a good name and track record for other future opportunities.

While we work with the projects in hand, we have also examined and analysed
our business in conjunction to the current macro-economic situation. A business
plan comprising strategies was drawn up to further our business and operation
forward. With the track records, experiences and other strengths that we possess,
we will refocus in procuring the project that we did best in the past while not
getting into those that have caused us difficulties in the past. In addition, we
are trying to be innovative with our current business model and work with the
property or land owner to establish development projects that could provide
more revenue stream to our business. The concept of design and built for the
land owner or getting involved in the development business could also be in our
consideration as we need to revolutionise our business to rejuvenate BGMC into
a profitable and prospective organisation.

While Construction Services sector remain one of the most important pillars of
our business, we will be open for procuring contracts for the Concession and
Maintenance sector. Though procuring this type of concession contract are time
and cost consuming, as they involve a lot of planning and developing work,
the prospect of generating project for our Construction Services sector and
subsequently the longer contractual period makes this type contract worth the
efforts.

In addition, we have throughout the reporting period relied on value engineering
and other construction technologies to enhance our day-to-day operation and
deliveries. BGMC had in year 2019 jumped on to the bandwagon of Software
as a Service (“SaaS") by subscribing to the construction SaaS that is on offer in
Malaysia. The objective back then was to further increase our productivity and
efficiency in delivering projects. Evaluation on the productivity and efficiency gain
has so far been really promising and we are glad that we took the decision back
then. While BGMC has enjoyed the productivity gain, we foresee opportunity
do exist to work with the construction SaaS provider to establish a similar
construction Saa$ in other new market in the near future.

The mood of our talents has much improved since BGMC gain a firmer foothold
after emerging out from the predicaments that we faced in the last few years.
With this improvement, we look forward to carry out the task in hand with more
confidence whilst we chart a new directions and ways to further our business.
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Directors
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee ("Dato’” Michael Teh"), aged 39, was appointed as a Director

n 18 November 2016 and is now the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director. He is also a member of each of the Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. Dato’ Michael Teh is currently the chief executive
officer and a director of BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (‘BGMC Corporation”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He is also a director of all
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for overall management,
corporate development and strategic planning of the Group. He graduated from
the University of the West of England, Bristol in England with a Bachelor's degree
in Law in July 2006. Dato’ Michael Teh is a nephew of Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming
Choon (who resigned as the Chairman and an Executive Director on 7 October
2020), a controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, he is a director of
Seeva International Limited which holds about 19.1% of the issued Shares.

Dato’ Michael Teh has over 15 years of experience in the construction field.
Prior to his joining of BGMC Corporation as its project director in April 2011, he
joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd., a housing and commercial property
development company in Malaysia, in September 2006, as a personal assistant
to the managing director for about five years. He was responsible for providing
guidance on contract and commercial practices and procedures to the managing
director, project managers or other operational staff.
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Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman, /ndependent Non-executive Director
and Chairman

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (“Datuk Kamalul Arifin"), aged 62, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director and Chairman on 7
October 2020. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Board
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin has years of experience in the real estate sector,
including but not limited to property valuation, property investment and
property management. Datuk Kamalul Arifin was appointed by the Malaysian
Government as the Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Pelaburan Hartanah Berhad from 2006 to 2018. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is currently
an independent non-executive director of Sentral REIT (formerly known as
“MRCB-Quill REIT"), a real estate investment trust (“REIT") listed on Bursa
Malaysia under the stock name SENTRAL (formerly known as “MQREIT").

Datuk Kamalul Arifin obtained his Bachelor of Estate Management from Universiti
Teknologi MARA and his Master of Business Administration from Ohio University
in the United States of America. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is a fellow of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, United Kingdom, the Royal Institution of
Surveyors Malaysia, and the Malaysian Institute of Property and Facility Managers.
He is also a registered property manager with the Board of Valuers, Appraisers,
Estate Agents and Property Managers.

Kua Choh Leang, Independent Non-executive Director

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua"), aged 58, was appointed as an INED on 3 July 2020.
He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Board. He is also a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board. His experience as auditor will add to the
Board's expertise in the areas of performance, risk management and reporting.

Mr. Kua obtained his Malaysian Higher School Certificate from Tarc College in
1983. Mr. Kua has over 35 years' experience in auditing and business advisory. Mr.
Kua held various positions with Ernst & Young since 10 December 1984 up to 30
September 2019, where his last positions were executive director since January
2005 up to December 2008, and partner since January 2009 up to September
2019.

Mr. Kua was a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Malaysian Institute of Accountants since 1991 and 1993, respectively, up to
present.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERRE

Datuk Kang Hua Keong, /ndependent Non-executive Director

Datuk Kang Hua Keong ("“Datuk Kang"), aged 62, was appointed as an INED
on 24 June 2022. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Committee of the Board.

Datuk Kang has been engaged in the information technology industry involving
in hardware manufacturing, distribution and retail including software business,
e-commerce and international trade business since 1985. Datuk Kang graduated
from the National Taiwan Ocean University (formerly known as National
Taiwan College of Marine Science and Technology) with a bachelor's degree in
engineering.

Datuk Kang is currently the chairman of Danong Group, a council member of
the National Employment Council, Prime Minister's Office of Malaysia, a council
member of the National Recovery Council, Prime Minister's Office of Malaysia,
managing director and chief executive officer of SMB Connection Sdn. Bhd.
(former publisher of SME Connect magazine for small and medium-sized
enterprise community), a director of SMB Solutions Management Sdn. Bhd. Datuk
Kang was a former director of Asia Media Group Berhad, a company incorporated
in Malaysia, the shares of which are listed on Bursa Malaysia (stock code: 0159).

Senior Management
Dato’ Michael Teh, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, 39 years old

Dato’ Michael Teh is primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the
overall business of the Group. Please refer to the paragraph headed "Directors” in
this section above for his biography.

Chiang Wai Lam, Project Director, 43 years old

Chiang Wai Lam is a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily responsible for
supervising and overseeing the construction projects of the Group. He graduated
from the University of Sheffield Hallam, England with a Bachelor's degree in
Building Construction Management in September 2002. He has around 15 years
of experience in the construction field. Prior to joining BGMC Corporation as
a project manager in April 2011, he held the position of quantity surveyor at
Modular Construction, a construction company in Malaysia, from October 2002 to
July 2007, where he was responsible for cost estimation and contract documents.
In October 2007, he joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd., a construction
company in Malaysia, as a senior quantity surveyor/cost planner for 3 years. He
was responsible for contract documents, cost estimation and cost planning.

BGMC International Limited
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Ee Kian Yiaw, Project Director, 45 years old

Ee Kian Yiaw is currently a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily responsible
for supervising and overseeing the construction projects of the Group. He
graduated from the University of Hertfordshire in England with a Bachelor's
degree in Engineering in June 2000. He has over 20 years of experience in the
construction field. Prior to his joining BGMC Corporation in April 2011, Ee Kian
Yiaw joined Mie Industrial Sdn. Bhd., a construction company in Malaysia, in
November 2000 as a trainee engineer and was subsequently promoted to project
engineer. He was responsible for planning and implementing construction
projects. In February 2004, Ee Kian Yiaw joined Best Ventures Sdn. Bhd. as a
project engineer for 7 years. He was responsible for supervising and monitoring
the construction projects.

Joan Ong May Ean, Chief Financial Officer, 39 years old

Joan Ong May Ean is a Chief Financial Officer of the Group and BGMC
Corporation. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily
responsible for supervising and overseeing the overall financial management of
the Group. She graduated from Swinburne University of Technology, Australia
with a Bachelor of Business in Accounting in December 2005 and obtained her
Master of Business Administration from University of Wollongong, Australia in July
2016. Joan Ong May Ean is an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales ("ICAEW") since November 2013 and she is a member of
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) since December 2014.

Joan Ong May Ean had over 4.5 years' experience in auditing field with Deloitte
KassimChan Sdn Bhd. She has over 7 years of experience in the account and
finance field. Prior to her joining BGMC Corporation as the Chief Financial Officer,
she joined Sime Darby Global Services Centre Sdn Bhd as team lead, Market
Research and Strategy Assistant manager with Sime Darby Bhd — Global Trading
and Marketing, and was the Head of Finance of EFCO Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

Directors and Senior Management

EEREREER

REWR HHBE 4558

RERIEF ANEE KBGMC Corporation I8 B 4
B - BINARRARETHBARICES  xZB8E
EEANEEMNREEEE - HR2000F6 ARENER
F R =R E (University of Hertfordshire) » &5 T 12
BA8(] - [RAB0FREITELR o BR2011F4
A BIABGMC Corporationdil * 7220004 11 A A0A G 2K
PhaE —REEEA AlMie Industrial Sdn. Bhd FEERE T
2R BEREZSF ABE TR BERENER
SRERTHE o 1R200442 A 11 ABest Ventures Sdn. Bhd.
EETEE T2A0 - £y F - BEEE@EEEE -

Joan Ong May Ean © E/ZA15E * 395%

Joan Ong May Fan:2 AN [E FIBGMC Corporationf) &
EHEE c BAHRARNTETHEARNES £
ZEEEEREEASEEBUYBER o 552005
FRARERBAMNTHEARE KRS  BEg
SIEEELTEM - WH20165F7 ARSI K F IEEA
BEEASIMEERETEA ° Joan Ong May Ean B
2013F 1N AR A EEEMAEE TRt ine
(MCAEW ) E 8 - 52014512 AR BB RE R
FETAIE (TMIADEIEKE o

Joan Ong May Ean® i Deloitte KassimChan Sdn Bhd.
8 ERFREAEFBBISFOHLR - RES
M RBERERBER7FOLR - RINABGMC
CorporationfEEEHE B 281 * HIMA T Sime
Darby Global Services Centre Sdn BhdiE(TEKE &
A ¥E{ESime Darby BhdZERE 5 N & 45 5 2hE ™5
TR AN ELRE B IR ACIE - WHETEFCO Malaysia Sdn Bhd
WIS EE -

F3R 2022

BRERZERERAT 19



20 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIG- e ERERHE

1. About this Report

This environmental, social and governance ("ESG") report is prepared in
accordance with the “comply or explain” provisions of the ESG reporting
guide ("Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Environmental key performance indicators
("KPIs") were calculated and presented in the form of intensities, where
the amount calculated is divided by either the total construction floor area
("CFA") or the office area that contributes to the KPI. Social KPIs, on the

other hand, were calculated using the relevant universal formula.

This report presents the environmental and social performance of BGMC
International Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group” or "“BGMC") for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022

("FPE2022").

During FPE2022, all of the Group's operations were located in Malaysia,

hence the relevant laws and regulations mentioned in this report are those

legislated in Malaysia.

2. Sustainability Management Objectives, Strategy

and Approach

The Group aims to instill the ESG concepts in its business and growth and
to continuously improve its performance in each relevant subject area of
the Guide. It does this by adopting ESG objectives, policies and procedures,
allocating good resources for ESG, embedding ESG objectives into the

Company's Qube System, and creating an ESG identify for the Group.
2.1. Adopting ESG Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Group has adopted the following ESG objectives:

To ensure the company’s operations are environmentally

sustainable.

ii.  Toensurethe company's operations are socially sustainable.

ii. To ensure the company’s operations adhere to good corporate

governance practices.
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2.3.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has in place the following set of policies and procedures
aimed at achieving the above ESG objectives.

Waste Reduction Policy
ii.  Emission Reduction Policy
ii. ~ Personal Data Protection Policy
iv.  Intellectual Property Protection Policy
v.  Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy
vi.  Policy against Child Labour and Forced Labour
vii. ~ Set of procedures on workplace environment, safety and health
viii. ~ Set of procedures on quality management
ix.  Set of corporate governance policies
Policies and procedures above mentioned explained in this report
under their respective related ESG aspects. The Group’s Corporate
Governance policies are described separately in the Group’s Corporate
Governance Report.
Allocating Good Resources for ESG
The Company's board of directors ("Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. In line with the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
Group's ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place.
Embedding ESG into the Qube System
The Group has a proprietary system called the Qube System 2.0. There
are eight elements in the Qube System 2.0 that drive the everyday
efficiencies that stack up as quality, time and cost advantages for the

Company’s stakeholders. Two of the eight elements are in line with
the Group's emphasis on ESG. They are:

(@) “Sustainability’ — Conducting business responsibly in the
environments, economies and communities the Group operates
in for the benefit of today’s and future generations.

(b) “Governance’ - Balancing the interests of all stakeholders to
operate with accountability, fairness and integrity.
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2.3
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2.4. Creating an ESG Identity 2.4. BIZEESGH1E
To garner greater awareness and unite all stakeholders towards 7T BEEFTA Rz T A RIR SR
achieving ESG objectives, the Group has adopted a stand called “Better EI’J RABE —BERLFRMESGEE » K
Together” — a movement that creates an identity for the collaborative EEETRB[EFUE NES  E-
nature of its ESG activities. Under the "Better Together” movement, the JLESGE\EXT%T’E% M HHENES o [
Group has the following three specific mottos: ?E&iﬁj E@JW%@@JT CAREERE T
= ERFRIEE
(@) “Sustaining Together’ - The Group uses this motto to promote @) [BFKEBRR| - AEEUESHE
environmental sustainability. It is associated with initiatives to BERREMAFELE - ﬁtiﬁ@)ﬁ%@l
reduce emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases, as well DB ZE RIS A AG = RSB
as to reduce hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. o A ROR A ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ’\]}%ﬁ%%ﬁ'\]
B -
(b) “Prospering Together’ — The Group uses this motto to (b) Hﬁ%%*ﬂ*ﬁglb{&ﬂ Efiid-2an
promote social and economic sustainability. It is associated DA ER A IFEERE o EE (SR
with efforts in balancing the interests of all stakeholders and @U]E/\%T—rﬁﬁﬁﬂ SARRE T AR ﬂ?
operating with accountability, fairness and integrity. & MR - A TFNEENRAEE
NS
(c) “Caring Together’ - The Group uses this motto to promote © [BFEE] - FAEENLEEHERML
community investments as part of social sustainability. It RiIE  EAMERAIREERMAS
is associated with initiatives such as supporting charities, —IR o WEEEBRBIE T IHEEE

g - HEBFEANIEERT

o

community sponsorships, and employee welfares. ®
=
=5

SUSTAINING PROSPERING CARING
TQSETHER TQSETHER

3. Stakeholder Engagement 3. FZ=AEEEF RIS
The Group recognises that the expectation and feedback from its REBEEHI AT = EEE N AE RREHA
stakeholders are vital to the sustainable development of the Group. An SENREZREFEE - AQRFEBAF
effective communication with stakeholders is maintained through daily EE(Hlfg - AR, LR - EHS
operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website, social media, BFEH - BIE)REEMNZAEBENERE
written/electronic correspondence, training etc., to develop open and B B EEEE R AR ENRER - K
honest relationships with stakeholders. Key stakeholders of the Group SENE2NEMEEEFBET - Hﬁ%/?ﬁé{
include government, shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers, E BP HEN - HEN - TEL2HEE
subcontractors, industry players, employees and community etc. TRt -
We engage with all stakeholder groups regularly through a structured ﬁff’ﬁ‘iﬁ‘ i%{ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁ BE R
mechanism. An effective communication with stakeholders is maintained BBEE) - ApRFEBATEEWFE - AF]
through daily operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website, social iﬂiﬁ ﬁxﬁ%ﬁ“ EHEFEH - BIIER
media, written/electronic correspondence, training etc., to develop open FEAZEBEENBRER - NENZEEE
and honest relationships with stakeholders. BB ERNRBR -
While senior management is primarily consulted during the preparation of RERBEAZARETEANRREREE  HA
this statement, its contents are aligned with stakeholder interests whenever AEAREEF A E N S IRIF K -
possible.
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Identifying key stakeholder groups helps us gauge the actual or potential
impacts our business has on them and vice versa. Key stakeholders of the
Group include government, shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers,
subcontractors, industry players, employees and community etc.

Materiality Assessment

The Group has assessed the materiality of each ESG subject area, aspect and
KPI listed in the Guide. As a result, some KPIs under the Guide’s “comply or
explain” provisions have been determined to be immaterial to the Group's
business and hence are not measured and disclosed in this report. They are
explained in Figure 1.

R 8 RERKRS

HEE T 2 MR E B A BRI PR S %7
BN ERRKEETZE  R2ITA - AEE
MEEMBBEEBRERN - RRREE
BP gD HER - f7X28E BIM

RS o
BEEMFML

REEHSIRAEE S ENE —EESGHRE - B
EAMKPIMEZMEETT TRHE - BRE - A%RE
IR LKPIFEFE | 0 NESTRLBERE | IR T
WHERBHARENEBZERM - FIR
BETAEARBBREARET (SEBRIE

HE—TIRER)

Aspect or Component under the “comply or

KPI no. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported

EEs

KPIF5 [TETFHRERIGRT RE 2N REHERA

Al.1 Emission data from gaseous fuel The Group uses a very insignificant amount of gaseous fuel.
consumption.

SRESIREHE B A BERBUR - AEBEEAIET D ERREBIRE -

A1.2 Hydrofluorocarbons (‘HFC") and The head offices of the Group use a centralized chilled-water
perfluorocarbons ("“PFC") emissions from air-conditioning system that does not require HFC or PFC as
refrigeration/air-conditioning. refrigerants. Other locations use very insignificant amount of refrigerant.

2/ EREFNERIC(THFC)IA  AEEBELRAEZHABNEH RFITNSAKERES - WEE
Kzt (TPFCHEL - P FHFCEPFCARELE - HhinEBIEAIEET L ERRLH -

GHG removals from newly planted trees. The Group did not plant any trees in the FPE2022.

FTBIE B AUBERGHG © AR B FPE202230 A AE A o

Indirect emissions from purchased gas. The Group uses a very insignificant amount of purchased gas.

SN SR B AV BERR REBEERIEDTLENINERE

Other indirect emissions from electricity used ~ The amount of sewage produced from the Group's operations is very
for processing sewage by government insignificant, as most of the fresh water used by the Group goes into
departments. the public drainage system.

BTERPIEE A BRERIDS/KBIEMESY  AEBEKMELNSKRERMTEME - mASEMES
B0 B A IR HE PR - BB AR B3R K ERBE R A H B R GTE -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The completed works of the Group do not require packaging. Although

products per unit produced.

BEE—ARRERNBBEN

the Group sometimes protect the finished parts with materials such
as paper, plastic, and plywood, these are usually salvaged from
construction wastes.

AEETIHIAREFTERBEME - MERAEEER RS ER
—LYPRHRER T - AR - BRMB AR - MEEBERER
SRR o
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Aspect or Component under the “comply or

KPI no. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported

EEs

KPIF5 [TETFHRBRIGR T RE2HRNID REREA

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  The Group uses most of the localized suppliers for its project materials

and services.
i EE D HEREE - REBFE B RIS IR Wk KRG R At L ERY -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging ~ All suppliers and subcontractors are required to undergo a stringent
suppliers, number of suppliers where the selection process to ensure their products and services met our
practices are being implemented, how requirements concerning quality, price, delivery, terms of payment,
they are implemented and monitored. and health and safety.

BESEHERMENEBARCE - EEB1T MARERLY BRAKSBEBNFERRF - BREER MRS
SRROEEEAR  MTHEREE  FARMPOER @ XM SRR RRER 2 5
TAREE - Bk -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are The Group uses the motto of “Sustaining Together” to promote
implemented and monitored. environmental sustainability. Hence, we strive to engage suppliers

1A BRI IR SR B (RIR AR O BRI AL and subcontractors, who incorporate the consideration of
SEBRHOED] - ARIEBRITRERT environmental and social risks into their supply chain management,
e with responsible acts to society as defined in item 6.5. Aspect B5:

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain Management.
environmentally preferable products and AREAMEFERR R T HRBERRN AT RHEER - it
services when selecting suppliers, and how  BRIEUTR ERERE R & BRMAGIAEE - WiEH6S
they are implemented and monitored. BERRESHERAEENTHNMHER LD B/ - BHBS : #

MR EERREZMBRERE  BREER.
RRFSEVIE D - LA RARREEN AT R BE 225
& e
B6 Information on policies and compliance with ~ The Group does not advertise or label its products or services.

relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to
advertising and labelling.

HRBESEENRE - BTG
TTABBREZENBERERIASLETE
RAHDER MR

AEBERAHERIMBETES
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Aspect or Component under the “comply or
KPI no. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported
EEs
KPIF5 [TETFHRBRIGR T RE2HRNID REREA
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Disclosure on the number of products sold or shipped subject to
subject to recalls for safety and health recalls for safety and health reasons was not applicable due to the
reasons. Group's business nature.
AzzRREnFRRmMEAENEEhst EX2ERENREAMKERNEELNDELERNHBERE
EEHEMMRERBENADL - AAREENEFEE ML T EA -
B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are The Group regularly controls and monitors the proves of each
dealt with. project in order to ensure that it delivers high-quality services and
PR E S R RS BRI R e B U R sustainable projects to our customers by our Quality, Health and
B o Safety team as defined in item 6.6. Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility.
REETFIIEHYERZIAANEZR  URREMOES &
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and BRE2EN AR IR Mt TR T B E RS R &S
recall procedures. HoEEB: ERSME -
HE ERFBEU KRG BRZ RN o
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to  The Group encourage staff to actively participate in charitable
the focus area of community investment. activities. See disclosure defined in item 7.1. Aspect B8: Community
Investment.
HEFWENOHEREMMTHNER(IN FAEEXBEIRELEZAEEY - F2H7 1 BREHRKE -
S EKER) - JEmBS : HHRIE -
Figure 1:  Unreported KPIs under the “Comply or Explain” Provisions of the Guide and Their Bl - FEESIATETHEENEH TR ZEHA
Explanations KPILA R HE G 7
FiR 2022 BIAEBRERERDIF 25
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5. Sustaining Together: Environmental Aspects 5. BFKERE  RREE
5.1. Aspect A1: Emissions and Wastes FEEAT : BER AR EERY
Policies and Targets BREBE
The Group has an emission reduction policy to reduce the emission AREBAE —ERDBERDOBEER LU
of air pollutants and GHG. The policy includes incorporating greener R LAY FGHGHERR - ZIRBIE T &
options into the maintaining efficient vehicles and machinery; MR TR B2 A = R MBS (R DA hN
conscious use of air-conditioning, electricity and paper; and setting up IRRAPETE  AEMEFERZTH - MK
rainwater harvesting systems at project sites. 3R RIEIEH BBV RKEE RS
The Group also has a waste reduction policy to reduce its hazardous AEBHE —ERPBEZMABER - ful
and non-hazardous wastes. The policy includes reducing the spillage TR BEEANEEREZYHIRR o
of hazardous waste by using methods like dip trays and bund walls, R BT R ARKIERMEREE AR
reducing the use of hazardous substances by exploring alternatives, VEEREZEDAER  ROERAEEDE
as well as reducing, reusing, and recycling products that result in non- WERERD - AR - ERAME AR
hazardous wastes. é?%i,m%}iﬁii‘@ﬁ'ﬂ%ﬁ: °
Laws and Regulations SEERBEGRR
Emission of air pollutants and handling of hazardous and non- ERERTEYBERANE E AR mERE
hazardous wastes are governed by the Malaysian Environmental EYRRIER| SR AREE KT E’]%Xﬁ
Quality Act 1974 and amendments, with which the Group complies. 1974 FIRIBRE LN EEBFTAENR
Air Pollutants ZERIEEY
In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, air pollutants refer to RIFIRIBKPIIES| - ERSAYIENERE
nitrogen oxides ("NOx’), sulphur oxides (“SOx’), and particulate matter £ (TNOL]) ~ FREAE Y ([SO.]) LA K REHI
(“PM"). The main sources of air pollutants in the Group's operations YI(TPM]) - KEBEBEENZTERS
are construction machinery and motor vehicles used. Figure 2 below 2YEERE N TRREFIRIEA RSN S
shows the amounts and intensities of air pollutants emitted by the 8 - A TER2ERAREB EFPE2022H)
Group's operations during FPE2022. EBFEENZER AN EMNAE -
KPI Results
During FPE2022
KPI Description KPIZ% 85 FPE2022 KPIEE R
Amount of air pollutants RSN E 2.42 tonnes
Mg
Amount of air pollutants per CFA CFAREIZE RS2 E 6.261 grammes/m?
=/FHK
Figure 2:  Air Pollutants Emitted by the Group’s Operations During FPE2022 BZo :  NEEIEFPE202289 Z IS BT HEIN B ZE5m,5
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Greenhouse Gases

In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, GHG emissions refer
to the sum of carbon dioxide ("CO.") emission and the CO, equivalent
emissions of methane (“CH4") and nitrous oxide (“N.O"). GHG
emissions are categorized into direct emissions and indirect emissions.

The main sources of direct emission of GHG in the Group's operations
are motor vehicles used for employee commuting and transporting
goods, as well as machinery and power generators for construction
activities. The main sources of indirect emission of GHG in the Group's
operations are the use of purchased electricity and paper waste
disposed at landfills

Figure 3 below shows the amounts and intensities of GHG emitted by
the Group's operations during FPE2022.

R 8 RERKRS

BERE

RIBIRIBKPIFES| - GHGEVEERIERN R — &
iR (TCo DHEME ~ Fh([CH)FEAL
TAR(TN0 D HEERCOMBEREN LR
GHG B BE PR AT LA 2 753 B 4 HF RO ) 52 B
B e

REBEBEENGHCEEHMERR
BB THBHMNEREYIATE RN
PE - AMETESERNEMRMEE
1 o T AR5 B A5 P EE AR FUGHG IR BE IR
AXTEREMNMERABESN REREHIE
[ H) AR REZRY)

VAT Bl R 3BERANE B IEFPE2022 K ¥ 75 AT
EAMGHGEEE FI5&E -

KPI Results
During FPE2022

KPI Description KPI=% 83 FPE2022 KPI%E R
Direct GHG emissions due to mobile and stationary % E)FN B 2 5 AR P E By 2,743.43 tonnes
combustion (motor vehicles, machinery and power ERGHGHER (4B - R Mg
generators) AREFEEH)
Indirect GHG emissions due to consumption of I GHGEEM (A AFTEE /) 1,382.92 tonnes
purchased electricity Mg
Other indirect GHG emissions due to paper waste AEZEHIERNREEEYERN 3.39 tonnes
disposed at landfills Ho A EE GHGHERR WA
Total GHG emissions GHGHI A E 4,129.74 tonnes
Mg
Total GHG emissions per CFA CFARKIGHGHE A & 0.0107 tonnes/m*
g, F5 oK
(10.7 kg/m?)
(10.7F 5% 75 K)

Figure 3:  GHG Emitted by the Group’s Operations During FPE2022

B3 KEEEFPE202289 % T T HERBIGHG

i 202 WABMZRERAT 7




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERS

Hazardous Wastes

Hazardous wastes from the Group's operations are mainly unwanted
hazardous substances includes diesel oil, lubricants, paints, and
coating, contaminated soil due to spillage, empty drums or containers
previously contained hazardous substances. Figure 4 below shows the
amounts and intensities of hazardous wastes produced by the Group's
operations during FPE2022.

KPI Description KPIF% BB

BEERY

REEEBAEENESEEMEEEN
EEENAEME(RIEEH - HEH -
/E’ﬂ/ﬁ&i) /ﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ&/? nE’Ji
RERBREEEMENZERATEE - LT
Bl R4 RANEEEFPE2002M ETGATEE
HESEEMHENRE o

KPI Results
During FPE2022
FPE2022 KPI&E R

Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites EHEE ITHEANAERZEY 2.505 tonnes

L]

Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA CFARTEIE B THPTEAMEEREEY 0.00000647 tonnes/m?

W, oK
(6.47 g/m?)
(6.475% 75 3K)

Figure4:  Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group’s Operations During FPE2022

Non-Hazardous Wastes

Non-hazardous wastes from the Group's operations include all
other domestic and construction wastes like paper, plastics, wood,
and metal. Figure 5 below shows the amounts and intensities of
non-hazardous wastes produced by the Group’s operations during
FPE2022.

avs

KPI Description KPI% A

B4 . KEBEFPE20228E AT E L) B Z5E
E2/

REEXBAEENEEEEYBEME
HMREMLIEEZEY - 0k - 28
AMAREEB - LU TERBERAEEE
FPE20ONFREBELENBEEEZYE
EMFEE

KPI Results
During FPE2022
FPE2022 KPIE R

Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites HHEBIWMELSERNEEEEY 2,619.017 tonnes

L]

Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA  CFANTETE B THiFTE A M EEREEY) 0.00683 tonnes/m?

W8, 773K
(6.83 kg/m?)
(6.83F = FFHK)

Figure 5: Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group’s Operations During FPE2022
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5.2. Aspect A2: Use of Resources
Energy Consumption

The Group consumes energy in the form of electricity for both its
office and worksite. It also consumes energy generated from diesel oil
for construction machinery. Whenever possible, the Group taps into
the existing electricity supply network to power worksite operations
to minimize the usage of diesel oil which emits more GHG. Figure 6
below shows the amounts and intensities of energy consumed by the
Group's operations during FPE2022.

R 8 RERKRS

5.2. BHEA2 : ERER
BERHEE

NREFBERAER THMERNERTIE
BN o FIREF R REEIRIET 2%
W AEBERAEOERBNE JHIE
EmATHEEHRE  BR EAELY
BLZGHGHEEH - U TER6BERAEE
FEFPE2022H) TSR BEIRBFREE FSRE o

KPI Results
During FPE2022

KPI Description KPIF% BB FPE2022 KPIE R
Energy Consumed by Project Sites TH B THhpEFE(FEE ML) 11,211,799.92 kWh
(purchased electricity and diesel oil) FRE
Energy Consumed by Project Sites CFANRYIE B T HbREFE 28.922 kWh/m?
(purchased electricity and diesel oil) per CFA (BEEAMEH) FREEHXK
Energy Consumed by Offices (purchased electricity) WAZEEFE(EE 81,625.87 kWh
F R

Energy Consumed by Offices (purchased electricity) RIEEEETEMNIAEEFE(EE) 36.52 kWh/m?
per Office Floor Area FERE FhHK

Figure 6:  Energy Consumed by the Group’s Operations During FPE2022

Water Consumption

The Group consumes water for its worksite construction activities.
The amount of water used at its offices are very insignificant and
immeasurable as the head offices share the building’s public
restrooms. Figure 7 below shows the amounts and intensities of water
consumed by the Group's worksite operations during FPE2022.

BF6 - KEFIEFPE20226) 2T AT HEFE

FKE

REB R Tt TIEBN B FEFAK o i
REMFKEANZBOMEELHEN -
ERERAAEENBIRAZTERATAEKR
EHAREER - W TEBR/BRAER
TEFPE20228) T ZEFEH BV FEK EFI98[E o

KPI Results During FPE2022
FPE2022 KPI& 3

per CFA
KPI Description KPIZ: BH CFAR
Fresh Water Consumed by Project Sites T8 E I REKE 13,948.44m* 0.03618 m3/m?

MEK AFKFTIHK

Figure 7:  Water Consumed by the Group’s Worksite Operations During FPE2022

7 REFFFPE202289 T it 5P AIFEKE
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

As part of the clients’ requirement, some of the Group’s activities
involved clearing lands, exposing slopes, and handling of hazardous
substances. Heavy vehicles are also prone to tracking mud and silt.
Construction sites are also notorious for producing wastes. If the
above is not well contained and controlled, it will contaminate and
pollute the surroundings environment.

To reduce impacts on the environment, the Group provides more
localized systems and protections such as slope protection, dip trays
and bund walls to contain hazardous spillage, washing bays for heavy
vehicles, rainwater harvesting, solar-powered floodlights, and ample
waste bins. Where relevant, these systems and protections adhere
strictly to requirements of the Malaysian Department of Environment
under the Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources. To further
reduce impacts on the environment, the Group has also implemented
the 3Rs exercise (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle) at site wherever possible
such as replaced the usage of timber to aluminum formwork for
scaffolding.

Aspect A4: Climate Changes

Increased severity and frequency of extreme weather events could
lead to project suspension and schedule delays as a result of power
outages, destruct operational sites, cause injuries of employees,
damage to completed works and damage to plant and equipment.
Also, regional transport routes may become impassable for the
delivery of materials.

The Group has appropriately responded by establishing relevant
measures and policies for mitigation and adaptation such as
formulated contingency plans and guidelines for working under
extreme weather, keep materials to covered area, place equipment in
a secure location and maintain a good communication with clients on
project progress.

BGMC International Limited
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6. Prospering Together: Social Aspects

6.1. Aspect B1: Employment

The Group strives to provide its employees with decent working
environments with fair opportunities to grow with the Group. During
FPE2022, all of the Group’s employees were based in Malaysia.
Therefore, the Group adopts employment policies that comply
with the Malaysian Employment Act 1955 and Malaysian Industrial
Relations Act 1967 (and their latest amendments), among other
Malaysian laws and regulations that govern employment practices.

The Group’s employment policies are merit-based with a structured
compensation system. Employees’ individual performances are
transparently reviewed in a systematic appraisal process. The Group
practices fair and non-discriminatory recruitment, promotion and
other employment policies where all candidates are given equal
opportunities (See Note A below). Diversity of employees is a
significant factor in establishing workplace policies, in order to ensure
such policies do not pose unfair advantage or disadvantage to any
particular group of employees. Benefits and welfare such as annual
and sick leave entitlement, medical and dental fees reimbursements,
marriage and bereavement allowances, and insurance coverage that
are above and beyond the minimum statutory requirements are also
provided. The Group adopts fair dismissal provisions where employees
are fully informed of their rights with respect to termination of
employment, and takes great measures to ensure dismissal cases
are handled ethically, sensitively, and cordially. Above all, the Group
provides a clear and unobstructed employee grievances channel
where employees have free and convenient access to high-level
management and the Group’s human resources department (“HR
Department’) to channel their grievances.

Note A:  Construction services being one of the Group’s main core businesses, it is
natural that a larger percentage of the Group’s employees are males.

R 8 RERKRS

6. BFEL HEEME
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Figures 8 to 9 below show the total workforce and turnover rates by
gender and age group during FPE2022.

LA Bl RS = 0FA R AL B AEFPE20221% 1%
%IJEﬁiiﬁ MRBONETBABNRE TR

KPI Results During FPE2022
FPE2022 KPI%5 R
No.of Employees  Turnover Rate

Gender B EBEAE BIRAR
Female L8 44 5.05%
Male ES 122 3.88%

Figure 8:  Average Number of Employees During FPE2022 (by Gender) & Average
Monthly Employee Turnover Rate During FPE2022 (by Gender)

EIFXS8 ©  FPE20221% 14 5 &) 7 19 F 15 18 B A B K
FPE202212 14 FIIZ) 77 19 F #5962 A B T sk
;,:«i?

KPI Results During FPE2022
FPE2022 KPI#% 3
No.of Employees  Turnover Rate

Age (Years) Fir(BZE) EEAH ETIRKE
1810 30 182 305% 40 6.51%
31t0 40 312405% 78 3.48%
4110 50 41E505% 28 3.16%
Above 50 5055 A £ 20 3.74%

Figure 9:  Average Number of Employees During FPE2022 (by Age Group) & Average
Monthly Employee Turnover Rate During FPE2022 (by Age Group)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group’s Environment, Safety and Health ("ESH") Division is
dedicated to managing all workplace health and safety matters. It
strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment for the
Group's employees as well as sub-contractors. A comprehensive set
of policies and procedures on workplace safety and health is strictly
enforced by a team of qualified safety and health officers, supported
by dedicated safety and health personnel, that form the Group’s ESH
Division.

B9 :  FPE20221ZF 82 [EE| 77 B9 FHIEE A SR
FPE20221ZF e /B &) 77 1y F 19/ A 8 L
HFE

[EHB2 : REHEZE
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The Group complies with the latest safety and health laws and REBETHRHZEHEEEERNEEN
regulations including but not limited to the Malaysian Occupational &R - BIRE R H19944F f5 2R 78 on ik
Safety and Health Act 1994, Malaysian Factories and Machinery Act HEL2EBEERS) Q67 FERFAL T
1967, and Malaysian Construction Industry Development Board R ERLAE AR 5 2 DA Je 1994 6F B PR PR gn T %
(“CIDB”) Act 1994 (and their latest amendments). The compliance EERB([CIDB)))ES) - ZEAKIEER
includes providing the necessary personal protective equipment EAEMEEBTIRHNE@MAIEERE B
to all employees, training on good workplace safety and health BITEWE R TERBRBSE - A5
practices that are tailored specifically to the nature of work and REWFITIESMZ 2 EBEEEEBE
working environment, training on ergonomic habits and practices BB TESFEANFAEARTIEZMEEN
at the workplace, ample safety and health signages, inclusion of EROEI - ERAEM IR B
other organizations’ employees in the Group's safety and health TR EEFRBENETE - EEMASD
programmes for better effectiveness, and providing adequate first-aid BETMTARSEANEENEZ 2 BERT
boxes. ZNELR S BN AE - UREHRAEM

T T R A 2AR

Figure 10 below shows the number of work-related fatalities and lost AT B R 10 RRFPE2022 TERBEE T
days due to work injury in FPE2022. EWHEURAILGEINMIBLRNIER
gy o
KPI Results

During FPE2022
KPI Description KPIZH BH FPE2022 KPI%E R
No. of Work-Related Fatalities in the FPE2022 FPE2022 TYEABREHIG T E A H 0
No. of Lost Days Due to Work Injury in the FPE2022 FPE2022A TS5 EAMNMIB R A T1ERER 0
Figure 10:  Work-Related Fatalities and Lost Days due to Work Injury in the FPE2022 E710 : FPE2022T(EFERERIE T FAREATIEE

INTHBL A TIET R

Aspect B3: Development and Training 6.3. EMEB3 : &ERIEFI
The Group, via the HR Department and respective heads of divisions, REBEBBANBERIBPARSIHIEE -
ensures that its employees are provided with sufficient development BRAE TIRHE MM EREE - RNE
and training. A systematic procedure is in place to determine the EHEE - EBEBNETATHRE LB
training and development needs of each employee. The Group THEIEIIHEERNER - AEE@EHE
sponsors its employees to attend training courses as well as T 2 hNse SR I+ A0 A1+ 8E O £ )l BRAZ A
continuous professional development courses which enables them to RISEEXERERE -

upgrade their knowledge and skills.

Figures 11 and 12 below show the percentages of employees trained AT B 5% 11 2 1288 /RFPE20224% 1 Bl £ (&
and average training hours completed per employee by gender and BAFIESNEIETED L UREMNE
employee category in the FPE2022. TEFERAFEETIRES o
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KPI Results During FPE2022
FPE2022 KPI% R
Percentage of Average
Employees Training Hours

Trained Per Employee

BNETH
Gender 4 51 FIEITESH 3T I B
Female Loy 2.78% 6.04
Male S 1.46% 15.39

Figure 11: Percentage of Employees Trained in the FPE2022 (by Gender) & Average
Training Hours Completed per Employee in the FPE2022 (by Gender)

BEIZ11 : FPE20221% 14 FI&) 7569 58 T B 75 H X
RFPE202212 11 FI&) 77 1y 537 B T B 5/
BYF1G 1555 2L

KPI Results During FPE2022
FPE2022 KPI% R
Percentage of Average
Employees Training Hours
Trained Per Employee

BNETH
Category &5l ZHETESE  FIEAIEEE
Management EEE 2.45% 11.95
Executive FTIR P 1.57% 11.24
Non-Executive TR E 2.37% 12.49

Figure 12: Percentage of Employees Trained in the FPE2022 (by Category)
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has a strict policy against employing illegal child labour
and forced labour, in line with the Children and Young Persons
Employment Act 1966 of Malaysia (and its latest amendments). It
ensures that all of its employees work voluntarily for the Group and
are not intimidated or threatened to enforce employment.

Employees may voice out any contravention to this policy via
employee grievances and whistleblowing procedures as set out in the
Group’s employee handbook. The Group restricted its supplier or sub-
contractor to employs illegal child labour or forced labour, the Group
will instruct the supplier or sub-contractor to cease the use of illegal
child labour or forced labour immediately, report the supplier or sub-
contractor to the relevant authorities, and blacklist the said supplier or
sub-contractor from all future projects.

BE1Z12 - FPE20221ZR BIE| 7 9258 T B2
fEEB4 : &5 T %8|
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

During vendor selection, the Group considers the distance that the
supplier will travel to deliver items to project sites especially when
the items will be delivered at high frequencies while weighing other
feasibility factors such as product specifications, vendor performance,
and after-sales service.

Most products used by the Group for construction projects are pre-
selected or pre-specified by its clients. However, whenever possible,
and subject to feasibility, the Group will use environmentally friendly
products sourced from responsible suppliers. The Group also
promotes the use of such environmentally friendly products to its
clients and consultants.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Quality, Health and Safety

The Group has a team of quality assurance and quality control
("QAQC") personnel that ensures construction and installation works
are carried out in accordance with clients’ specifications. The Group's
ESH Division, on the other hand, ensures construction services are
carried out in a safe and healthy manner. The Group also has in place
a quality management system (“QMS”) certified under I1SO 9001:2015
that aims to consistently achieve client satisfaction. Client complaints
are properly recorded and monitored until such actions have been
taken to address said complaints. Root cause analysis is also carried
out to prevent recurrence.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group observes and protects its clients’ intellectual property
rights in accordance with intellectual property laws and regulations
(and their latest amendments) such as the Malaysian Copyright Act
1987, Patents Act 1983 and Trade Marks Act 1976. As per the Group's
written policy, it is committed to respecting the intellectual property
of others, and requires its employees, consultants, professional service
providers, sub-contractors and other agents to use legal and ethical
resources to prevent the tainting of the Group's operations with
improper introduction of proprietary information of third parties.

R 8 RERKRS
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Privacy Rights

The Group has a personal data protection policy that complies with
the Malaysian Personal Data Protection Act 2010. The policy includes
information on the type of personal data that the Group may collect,
why and how the personal data are collected, the parties with whom
the Group may share the personal data, the possible transfer of
personal data outside of Malaysia, the choices the Group offers its
stakeholders, responsibilities on personal data protection, retention
period, and stakeholders’ consent.

The Group assures its stakeholders that personal data collected are
wholly for the purpose of properly carrying out its obligations to its
stakeholders, that it does not unnecessarily disclose personal data to
third parties, that it protects personal data with its best endeavors, and
that its stakeholders have options to control how their personal data
are used.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group complies with the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission
Act 2009 and its latest amendments. It has in place an anti-bribery
and anti-corruption policy which forms part of the Group’s employee
handbook. This is intended to set out minimum standards to assist
such persons in recognizing circumstances which may lead to or give
the appearance of corruption or unethical business conduct.

The Group has developed a training video on anti-corruption and
shared to all directors and staff. Through this training, all directors
and staff will have a better understanding of bribery offences and
corporate liability, how to effectively deal with corruption risks and
ways to avoid such risks, as well as our anti-bribery and anti-corruption

policy.

In addition, the Group has in place a whistleblowing policy as part
of its employee handbook which explains the provision of a secure
whistleblowing channel for its employees that leads directly to the
Group's compliance officer. The policy also protects whistleblowers
against unfair dismissal, victimization or unwarranted disciplinary
action even if the concerns turn out to be unsubstantiated.

During FPE2022, there has been no confirmed non-compliance
incidents related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
within the Group.

BGMC International Limited
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7. Caring Together

7.1.

7.2.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Group endeavors to contribute its resources to the wellbeing
and sustainability of the community in various ways through
communication with the stakeholders including customers, suppliers,
employees, social media through different channels and platforms to
understand their needs and promote its environmental awareness to
the community.

In addition, we encourage our staff to actively participate in charitable
activities and volunteer works, especially on those related with
environmental protection.

Employee Care

The Group aims to ensure that its employees feel included,
appreciated, and valued. Various activities have been organised via
the Group’s HR Department to provide platforms where employees
were able to unwind and connect with each other amidst enjoyable
environments.
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Corporate Governance Practices

BGMC International Limited (“Company”) is committed to fulfilling its
responsibilities to its shareholders (“Shareholders”) and protecting as well
as enhancing Shareholders’ value through good corporate governance.
The Company has adopted the principles contained in the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Stock Exchange” and “Listing Rules’, respectively), as its code of
good corporate governance, which the board of directors of the Company
("“Directors” and “Board’, respectively) recognises as essential to the
success of the Company.

The Board periodically reviews and continues to enhance the Company's
corporate governance policies and practices, and the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code
for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 (“FPE2022"), save for
the exception described in the following paragraph.

Board
2.1. Roles and Responsibilities

The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, to discharge their duties in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Board is responsible for the
overall management of the Group's business and affairs by establishing
the overall strategies, setting objectives and business development
plans.

The Board has delegated its powers to the management day-to-
day management of the Group’s operations. Under the leadership of
the executive Directors (‘EDs") of the Company, the management is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board and the implementation of the internal control systems and
risk management.

REPORT2022  BGMC International Limited
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2.2. Composition of the Board 22 EEGARK
The members of the Board during FPE2022 and up to the date of this RFPR20NREEZEARFHRAHNEST 2K
annual report are set out below: BHIWT

Executive Directors (“EDs")

BTES(HTES))

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (“Dato’” Michael Teh") (Chief executive officer)
BN EBEEAR ) (77844%)

Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif (‘Dato’ Arifin") (Vice-chairman) (Resigned on 30 August 2021)
2B Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif([ & Arifin |) (5/% /&) (72202148 A30 A BHE)

Mr. Ching Hong Seng (“Mr. Ching") (Chief financial officer) (Retired on 31 March 2021)
bR (BREED) (BEAFE)(R2021F3A31HRE)

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (“Tan Sri Barry Goh") (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020)
FTEEERERRE( AFERBE ) (LF) (72020510 87B BHE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")

BYFHTES(BUFIITES))

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (‘“Datuk Kamalul”) (Chairman) (Appointed on 7 October 2020)
2B Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman ([ £&Kamalul ) (£ /&) (72202010 7B EZT)

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua”)
fFEE(fxE])

Datuk Kang Hua Keong (‘Datuk Kang") (Appointed on 24 June 2022)
eETER((EBIT])(FR02F6A24HERT)

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri Kong") (Resigned on 8 April 2022)
M2 2B TEE(ISHETIHEE]) (R2022F4 A8HEHE)

Chan May May (“Ms. Chan") (Resigned on 7 October 2020)
RIE= (TR Z £ ) (722020610 A7 HEHE)
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Dato’ Michael Teh, an ED and the chief executive officer of the
Company (“Chief Executive Officer’) is a nephew of Tan Sri Barry
Goh, the former Chairman (who resigned on 7 October 2020) and
Tan Sri Barry Goh is the uncle of Dato’ Michael Teh. Save for the
aforementioned relationship between the Chief Executive Officer and
the former Chairman, there was no financial, business, other family or
other material relationships among the members of the Board during
FPE2022 and up to the date of this annual report. Datuk Kamalul was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 7 October 2020.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report. An updated
list of the Directors identifying the EDs and INEDs, and the roles
and functions of each Director, is also maintained on the respective
websites of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company reviews the Board composition to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the needs of
the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect
of any legal action against the Directors and the senior management
of the Group.

Meetings of the Board and the Shareholders and Directors’
Attendance Records

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days
in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice will be given in a
reasonable time in advance. All Directors are given draft agenda for all
matters for deliberation and resolution at the meetings.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
is responsible to prepare and circulate the abovementioned draft
agenda and board papers. All Board meetings’ minutes recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered and decisions reached will
be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are circulated to the Directors for comments
and records respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

BGMC International Limited
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Twenty one Board meetings and one annual general meeting of the RFPROLEREZEARFHRAL - ARFIE
Company ("AGM") were held during FPE2022 and up to the date By —t+—REFeZ L AREREF
of this annual report. Their meeting attendance at Board and Board re((RRAFAE)) ESHEESTE
committees’ meetings is evidenced by the attendance record set out eENEEREeeRIUATNTKREERER
in the table below. ff'?%ui‘
Meetings Attended/Held
HE/ BaNEE
2021 Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Risk General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
20215
BEitg Exe ENZBEE HMWZEE REZEE ERZEE RREEFAS
EDs
BITES
Dato' Teh Kok Lee (‘Dato’ Michael Teh') (Chief executive officer) 2/21 - - 4/4 5/5 1N

SELEN (2 BBER ) (778 E7)
Dato" Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif ('Dato’ Arifin") (Vice-chairman)

(Resigned on 30 August 2021) 1212 - - - 33 1N
278 Mohd Avrifin Bin Mohd Arif([ €& Arifin | )(5/Z /%)

(R202158A30BEHE)
Mr.Ching Hong Seng (‘M. Ching’) (Chief financial officer)

(Retired on 31 March 2021) 8/8 - - - - -
REAXE(REE)) (BETHE) R0 FIA3REL)
Tan Sri Dato' Sri Goh Ming Choon (‘Tan Sri Barry Goh') (Chairman)

(Resigned on 7 October 2020) 11 - - - - -
REESENERAB(AKERBE])(ZF)

(20205 10A7REHE)

INEDs
BUFHITES
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (‘Datuk Kamalul’) (Chairman)
(Appointed on 7 October 2020) 19/19 /11 4/4 3/3 5/5 1N
2B Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman([ £ EKamalul|)(£/)
(R2020F10A7HBZAE)

Kua Choh Leang (‘Mr. Kua') 212 1/11 5/5 2/2 5/5 N
mrE(ALE])
Datuk Kang Hua Keong ('Datuk Kang') (Appointed on 24 June 2022) 1/1 1 11 11 11 -

SETER(SEI)(RN2FAUREERE)
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri Kong’)

(Resigned on 8 April 2022) 17/17 9/9 2/2 2 4/4 1/1
A ERBTEE ([ BHETHEE]) (R00F4AsHEHT)
Chan May May ("Ms. Chan’) (Resigned on 7 October 2020) 11 - 11 11 - -

BEF(RLL])(R00F10A78ET)

FH# 2022 BINERZEREEAT 4
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2.4. Induction and Continuing Professional Development 24, \BRIEFEEEZR
The Company has from time to time arranged relevant trainings at ARARE T AMEESLTHMRBET -
the Company's expense to all Directors to develop and refresh their NERLEMRENBBLEBE - EAA
duties and responsibilities. All Directors have provided the Company RRBIZ - 2BEZEMAQFEMH
with records of the trainings attended by them during FPE2022. FPE20221% S5 AT FE 15 I MO AR 8% © IRIEAR
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the NATFEENEIGHE - KESBNFPE2022
types of trainings received by each of the Directors during FPE2022 EZHEYERRR T

are summarised as follows:

Attending
seminars/reading
materials relevant
to the director’s

Name of Directors duties
HERRES

BENHNE

EEpE R AR

EDs

HITES

Dato’ Michael Teh (Chief executive officer) v

BB (7TE &)

Dato’ Arifin (\//ce—cha/rman) (Resigned on 30 August 2021) v

2EAifin(81ZF/E) (7202198 A30HEHE)

Mr. Ching (Ch/effmancia/ officer) (Retired on 31 March 2021) v

REL(BEHMEE) (7202153 A31HEHE)

Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020) v

TR RAE(EE) (72202010 A7H &)

INEDs

BYFHTES

Datuk Kamalul (Chairman) (Appointed on 7 October 2020) v
EEKamalul(£/) (732020F10 7R EZ )

Mr. Kua v
fI5E 4

Datuk Kang (Appointed on 24 June 2022) v
SEIT(7R20225F6 H24A B E )

Tan Sri Kong (Resigned on 8 April 2022) v
FHTEITVEE (7202264 A8 B BHE)

Ms. Chan (Resigned on 7 October 2020) v

Rz (720205510 A7 H BHE)

Each of the Directors complied with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. BEHC B TFIPEE S TR FRNETAGS ©

4}
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3.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During FPE2022, Datuk Kamalul has been appointed on 7 October 2020
as the Chairman replacing Tan Sri Barry Goh and as the INED of the Group;
and Dato’ Michael Teh acted as the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman
performs the management of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
performs the day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses. Clear
division of their respective roles and responsibilities is in place and set out
in writing to ensure a balance of power and authority. The Chairman is
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to the Board.

INEDs

INEDs are appointed on a term of one year.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all Directors (including INEDs)
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the
Board), and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

During FPE2022, the Chairman held one meeting with the INEDs without
the presence of other EDs.

The Board as well as the Nomination Committee have reviewed the annual
written confirmation of independence from each of the INEDs and based
on such confirmations, the Company considers that all the INEDs are
independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during FPE2022 and up to date of this annual
report.

3.
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5. Board Committees

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Risk Committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The list of members of the four Board committees are as

follows:

Name of Directors

EEns

5. EEZXEE

BEFEgETORYMELZES W%ﬁ?%
g FWEEE - }m%i,ﬁ&ﬂfﬂ ZEg-
Aﬁfﬁﬁ*% ARRTRTEMEEER - EF
ZEgREHARERUEITHERE - HEAZ
EZEEMKEBRBENT

Board Committees’ Composition
ExZEamER

Audit Remuneration Nomination Risk

Committee Committee Committee Committee

EVEEE HFMZEREE REZEE EARZES

EDs

BITES

Dato’ Michael Teh (Chief executive officer)

BB (7TH#EH)

Dato’ Arifin (Vice-chairman) (Resigned on 30 August 2021)
B Aifin(8/1Z/E) (52202158 A30 8 BHE)

Mr. Ching (Chief financial officer) (Retired on 31 March 2021)
REE(BEHFE)(R20215F3 31 BEHE)

Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020)
FHIT R RAE(LE) (R2020F10 A7 B BHE)

INEDs

BUFHITES

Datuk Kamalul (Chairman) (Appointed on 7 October 2020)
2B Kamalul(F/E) (R20206F10 A7 B EZE)
Mr. Kua

ks

Datuk Kang (Appointed on 24 June 2022)
SET(R202F6 A24B BEE)

Tan Sri Kong (Resigned on 8 April 2022)
FHRETEE (72202254 AsAEHE)

Ms. Chan (Resigned on 7 October 2020)

BRZz (1202010 A7 B BHE)

- - Member Member

- - - Chairman

&

- Member - -
Member Chairman Member Member
Chairman Member Chairman Member
TE K& ESE X &
Member Member Member Member
Member Member Chairman Member
pd=| K& IE X &
Member  Chairwomen Member Member

The composition and the terms of reference (“ToRs”") of the Board
Committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they remain
appropriate and in line with the Company’s business and changes in
governance practices. The written ToRs of the Board Committees excluding
the Risk Committee are published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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5.1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members who are all
independent non-executive Directors and is delegated with the
authority from the Board primarily to oversee the Group’s financial
reporting and internal control systems, and the adequacy of the
external and internal audits. Details of the authority and duties of
Audit Committee are set out in the Audit Committee’s ToRs, which
has been published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Audit Committee has performed the following works:

Reviewed the appointment and remuneration of Moore
Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) as the Group's external auditor
for the FPE2022 and up to the date of this annual report;

ii. Reviewed the audit plans, scopes, methods and reporting
formats proposed by Moore;

iii.  Reviewed the external audit reports by Moore respectively, and
the management’s response to the reported findings;

iv. Reviewed the internal control audit report by external
consultant;

v.  Reviewed the adequacy of qualified accountants in the Group;

vi.  Reviewed the continuing connected transactions conducted by
the Group;

vii.  Reviewed the interim and annual financial statements, reports,
and results announcement of the Group for the FPE2022 prior to
publication;

viii. Reviewed the internal controls policies and procedures across
the Group, including those for accounting and reporting; and

ix.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board’s approval.

The Audit Committee held eleven meetings during FPE2022 and up to
the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual Directors
at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the table on
page 41.

5.1.

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

ERERES

B%EBEH=-RKBHEK  =EKEY
BENENTES - BRZEQRESE
Bk FZATEEAKENKHBEE
KRB R - LA RN R B EAZ A
O - BRZEENBEFBEHANEX
ZEERESER  HHRITIERERAT
AR B -

ERLZEBERITUTIE:
BEEAREINZBEIAES S
TR EBATBRAR([KAEFHEE )
FPE202 R EEZAFHA BN L
K

i BEREFBEMEZNEZTE
#ls - TARERE

il  BHEBAEGBERENIMBEZR
EREEEBHREERNOE

iv.  FEEIMBERRRA NI HIELER
Ao

B
I

SASBANGERSINRR
=

EAREBETHIFERERS

@h}

Vi.

vii, AT EE AT B A K B R FPE2022/) R
HRFEUBRE BEREERD

H -
=

vill. AR ET AR B R R EBIE BB R MR
B 5T M IE R A A B B R
iR &

ix. EBFRDEEE  HELNEENE
EXREEESHR -
?%%%Wmmﬁﬁi$$ﬁ5%
BI+—Kg& ANESLEEST
EZXEeemmisadlng MEWW

F# 2022 BINEREREEAF 45



Corporate Governance Report

CREABE

52. FZES

5.2. Remuneration Committee

46 ANNUALREPORT2022 BGMC International Limited

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, which
comprises at least two independent non-executive Directors
and is delegated with the authority from the Board to establish,
review, and make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
remuneration policy and practices. Details of the authority and
duties of Remuneration Committee are set out in the Remuneration
Committee’s term of reference, which has been published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During FPE2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the performance of individual EDs and senior
management, and recommended their discretionary bonus and
remuneration package;

ii. Reviewed the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

ii. Reviewed the Group's remuneration policy and annual bonus
policy;

iv.  Reviewed the management’s analysis on performance bonus
funding methods, and its underlying principles and metrics to
be used;

v.  Reviewed the remuneration bands of Directors and the senior
management; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during FPE2022
and up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the
table on page 41.
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5.3. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, which
comprises one executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors and is delegated with the authority from the
Board to formulate and implement the policy for nominating Board
candidates for election by Shareholders and assess independence
of independent non-executive Directors. Details of the authority
and duties of Nomination Committee are set out in the Nomination
Committee’s term of reference, which has been published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Nomination Policy which is
set out under the Section 6 “Nomination Policy” of this report.

During FPE2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.
No changes were recommended in view that the Board's
composition is still in line with the Company’s corporate
strategy;

ii.  Reviewed the confirmation of independence by the INEDs;

ii. Reviewed the re-election of the retiring Directors at the AGM

held on 31 March 2021;

iv. Reviewed the time commitment of the Directors for
performance of their responsibilities;

v.  Reviewed the Company’s succession plan for the Board; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during FPE2022 and
up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the
table on page 41.
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5.4. Risk

Committee

The Board has established a Risk Committee with written ToRs that
complies with the CG Code. The principle roles and functions of the

Risk Committee include but are not limited to:

Vi.

Vil.

Viii.

Advising the Board on the Group's risk appetite and risk
principles;

Advising the Board on other risk-related issues including
corporate actions and proposed strategic transactions such as

mergers, acquisitions and disposals;

Overseeing risk management framework and reviewing its
effectiveness;

Approving the Group's risk policies and risk tolerance;

Considering emerging risks relating to the Group’s business and

strategies;

Reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and
policies;

Reviewing the Group's capital adequacy and solvency levels; and

Monitoring stress testing results of the Group's key risk
exposures.

During FPE2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the Risk

Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed enterprise risk management ("ERM") reports;

Reviewed a risk analysis report for a new business segment of

the Group;

Reviewed the Group's risk management policies; and

After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Risk Committee held a total of five meetings during FPE2022 and

up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual

Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the

table
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on page 41.
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6. Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of the Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Without prejudice to the authority and duties of the Nomination
Committee as set out in its ToRs, the ultimate responsibility for selection
and appointment of the Directors rests with the entire Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
to the selection criteria which include, but are not limited to, diversity
of the Board, commitment for responsibilities, qualifications on both
accomplishment and experience, independence of INEDs, reputation for
integrity, potential contributions to the Board, and any plan(s) in place for
the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the selection,
appointment and reappointment of a Director, including an INED in
accordance with the following procedure and process:

A.  The Nomination Committee:

may take measures that is appropriate in identifying or selecting
suitable candidates, with due consideration given to prescribed
selection criteria and broad range of candidates who are in and
outside of the Board's circle of contacts;

ii.  may adopt any process it considers appropriate in evaluating
the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference check;

ii.  will provide the relevant information of the selected candidate
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of the
remuneration package; and thereafter make recommendation to
the Board;

iv.  The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not members
of the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

v.  All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or
any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.
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The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
re-election of a Director including an INED in accordance with the following
procedure and process:

The Nomination Committee will review the overall contribution and
service, and the level of participation and performance of the retiring
Director during the period of service.

ii. ~ The Nomination Committee will review and determine whether the

retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

ii. ~ The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information
of the selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such candidates.

iv. . The Nomination Committee will then, on the basis of the
recommendation made by the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, make recommendation to Shareholders
in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the following
general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate
as Director at the following general meeting, the relevant information
of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to Shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant following
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has a Board Diversity Policy whereby it recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, which enhances the
quality of its performance by achieving a sustainable and balanced
growth towards the attainment of its strategic objectives. It endeavors
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The design of the Board’s composition shall consider a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members, as well as the

measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board Diversity

Policy from time to time to endure its continued effectiveness.
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During FPE2022 and as at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises three Directors. The following tables further illustrate the diversity
of the Board members as of the date of this annual report:
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RFPE20R MM AERAL  EFECH-_RES
MR - TRE— SN ATRABPESTSK
BHZITLIER :

Educational Professional
Name of Directors Age Ethnicity Background Experience
EEpA Fie Bk HEER HEKER
EDs
HITES
Dato’ Michael Teh (Chief executive officer) 39 Chinese Law Construction/
(Malaysian) Property
B EBRN (7TEE#H) 39 HE EE BEE/REiE
(BRI TE#E)
Dato'’ Arifin (Vice-chairman) (Resigned on 30 August 2021) 59 Malay Science and/ Construction/
(Malaysian) or Others Property
EBAfin(8/7F/E) (7202158 A30B BHE) 59 BE BER/REM R FiE
(A aE#E)
Mr. Ching (Chief financial officer) (Retired on 31 March 2021) 49 Chinese Accountancy Auditing and
(Malaysian) Finance
BREELE(BEHMHE) (720213 31 BEHE) 49 ] &t it ke
(BRI TAE)
Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020) 58 Chinese Engineering Construction/
(Malaysian) Property
FHHTRREAE(F /) (FR2020510 A7 BB ) 58 HEH IR gBf/FitE
(A E#E)
INEDs
BAFHTES
Datuk Kamalul (Chairman) (Appointed on 7 October 2020) 62 Malay Estate Real Estate/
(Malaysian) Management/ Chartered
Real Estate Surveyor
B Kamalul(£/E) (R 2020F10 A7 B EEZT) 62 REs BEER/ FEHE,
(B TFE) 5 TRl = R0
Mr. Kua 58 Chinese Accountancy Chartered
(Malaysian) Accountant
RIS 58 B g5t FrATEEtaD
(A e %)
Datuk Kang (Appointed on 24 June 2022) 62 Chinese Engineering Information
(Malaysian) Technology
Industry
S2BI(R2022F6 H24BEEEE) 62 ZE Ti2 [EREMER
(BRI TAE)
Tan Sri Kong (Resigned on 8 April 2022) 72 Chinese Science and/ Public Service
(Malaysian) or Others
FHHTER)TIEZE (7R 202254 A8 H Bk fF) 72 EH BER/LEM NHRH
(A E#E)
Ms. Chan (Resigned on 7 October 2020) 56 Chinese Law Law
(Malaysian)
PR 22+ (742020510 A7 A BHE) 56 5 R ER
(AR aE#E)
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8. Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy ("Dividend Policy”) that sets out the

principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to

the declaration, payment or distribution of its consolidated net profits as
dividends to the Shareholders.

8.1. Principles and Guidelines

52 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

The Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, provided that the Company has a distributable
reserve and records a consolidated profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The recommendation of the
payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of
the Board and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders.

It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture
future growth opportunities. In proposing any dividend payout,
the Board shall also take into account, among other things,
financial results and conditions, cash flow situation, business
conditions, strategies and cycle, operations and earnings,
general economic and political conditions, capital requirements
and expenditure plans, interests of Shareholders, any restrictions
on the payment of dividends, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under all applicable laws (including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands), the rules, codes and
regulations, accounting policies/financial reporting standards
that the Group has adopted as well as the Articles of Association.

If the Board intends to declare or recommend any dividend
payment for a particular financial year, such dividend payout
ratio will not be less than 30% of the Group’s audited
consolidated net profit for distribution to the Shareholders/
equity owners of the Company for the financial year, subject to
the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and

there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.
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9. Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognizes that the Directors should be collectively responsible

for the corporate governance duties. Such duties include but are not limited

to:

Developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development ("CPD") of the Directors and senior management;

Reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;
and

Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

During FPE2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has

reviewed and performed the abovesaid corporate governance functions.

10. Audit and Accountability

0.1. Independent Auditor’'s Remuneration

Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) has been engaged as the
Group's independent auditor for the FPE2022.

The remuneration paid/payable to Moore for reviewing the FPE2022 is
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BR# B EAER
HK$
BT

Statutory audit services, review of annual result announcements and review of

continuing connected transactions for the FPE2022 1,500,000
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Total 1,500,000
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10.2. Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

[t is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the annual and interim reports,
inside information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
information required to be disclosed pursuant to applicable statutory
requirements, such that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The Board also confirms that the Company has
an effective process for financial reporting and compliance with the
Listing Rules.

Material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a
going concern are disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, Moore has stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report its
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the FPE2022.

11. Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the EDs has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of one year while each of the INEDs has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of one year. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at which he/she retires. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number
of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and
does not offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further Directors so to
retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last
re-election or appointment and so that as between the persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by
lot.
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12. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

13

14

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the FPE2022 are set out in
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Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. 14 o
Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the BIBEDZEEATREENSEANTRNEX - 24
members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose BIER B (BEBRIN PAFPE2022MH BN (FFIB &L
particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors and Senior RAFRIEERSREEAB | —)IZEES
Management” in this annual report for the FPE2022 by band is set out FEAT ¢
below:

Number of
Remuneration band (in HKS) Individuals
FrENAE Bl (B T) A
Nil to 1,000,000 4

= 21,000,000

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a model code (“Securities Code”) for securities
transactions by the Directors and the employees likely to possess inside
information of the Company (‘Relevant Employees”’) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (‘Model Code”).

Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on each of them, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code and the
Securities Code during FPE2022. No incident of non-compliance with the
Securities Code by the Directors and the Relevant Employees was noted by
the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chen Kun is the Company Secretary, who has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the eighteen
months ended 31 March 2022, Mr. Chen has taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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15. Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company

during FPE2022. A copy of the latest version of the Company's

Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the respective

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

16. Shareholders’ Rights

6.1. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an extraordinary

16.2.
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general meeting (“EGM”)

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall at all times have the right to require
an EGM to be called by the Board or the Company Secretary for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM by written
requisition ("Requisition”).

The Company will verify the Requisition; if found to be proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM
and/or include the proposal(s) made or the resolutions proposed by
the Requisitionist(s) at the EGM within two months after the deposit
of the Requisition.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them by post to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (presently at Unit 2413A, 24/F, Lippo Centre,
Tower One, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong) or by email to
info@bgmc.asia for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the AGM of the
Company.
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16.3. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the AGMs under the Articles of Association or the
laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals
or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in accordance
with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM” set out
above.

17. Investor Relations

18

The Company has been striving to maintain high transparency and
communicate with the Shareholders and the investors of the Company
through diversified communication channels. The Company holds press
conferences and analyst briefing sessions from time to time to provide the
latest business information of the Company to the investors. The website of
the Company contains the latest data and information of the Group so that
the Shareholders, the investors and the public can view/get the information
about the Company in a timely manner. The Company’s website address is

www.bgmc.asia.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
risk management. The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During FPE2022, the Company has implemented a framework with defined
levels of responsibility in the Company’s risk management system. On the
strategic level, the Board, via its Risk Committee, determined the strategic
and departmental objectives of the Group’s business, and set the risk
appetite for the Group (‘Risk Appetite”). Based on these objectives, the
Group's risk management working group ("RMWG"), which consists of the
Chief Executive Officer as the chairman and the senior management as well
as the manager of internal control and risk management division of the
Group ("ICRM Division”), determined the associated financial, operation,
reporting and compliance risks, possible root causes, and existing
mitigations. With due consideration of such existing mitigations, the RMWG
then assessed the risks by giving them ratings and compares them to the
Risk Appetite. Any risks that were rated higher than the threshold in the
Risk Appetite were further assessed to determine additional mitigation plan
to further reduce the risks until they fall within the acceptable level of Risk
Appetite. The entire process and its outcome were documented and will be
reviewed by the Risk Committee at least twice every year.
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The Company has engaged an external consultant to establish an internal
control audit function during FPE2022. The external consultant worked
closely with the ICRM Division and has assisted the Audit Committee in
carrying out an independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group.

During FPE2022, the external consultant has carried out internal control
audits in accordance with the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee,
which covered all functions of the Group. The reports, findings, and their
corresponding management'’s response were presented quarterly to the
Audit Committee meetings for its review and approval. In addition, the
Audit Committee and the Risk Committee also review the Groups' internal
control and risk management policy at least once a year.

As such, the Board confirms that during FPE2022 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk
Committee, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems and risk management of the Group and considers them
adequate and effective.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

As stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report contained in this annual
report, in Note 4(b) to the consolidated financial statements, which
describes that the Group incurred a loss of approximately RM59,299,000
and net cash used in operating activities of approximately RM87,337,000
during the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. However,
the Independent Auditor’s opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

On this, the Board would like to emphasize that a number of improvements
have been done by the Group during or after the end of FPE2022, which
include, without limitation, the following:

(i) BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. ("BGMC Corporation”) has entered
into the reNIKOLA Advance Agreement on 24 March 2022 and
the Supplemental reNIKOLA Advance Agreement on 13 May 2022
(Collectively known as “Advance Agreements”) with reNIKOLA, an
independent third party, who will purchase interest in 95% ordinary
shares in BGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd. ('BGMC Bras Power”), another
indirect subsidiary of the Company (as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 June 2022). reNIKOLA shall advance a loan
of RM49,900,000 to BGMC Corporation for the sole purpose of BGMC
Corporation advancing a loan of RM49,900,000 to BGMC Bras Power

BGMC International Limited
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

to (i) fulfill the terms and conditions under the Power Purchase
Agreement dated 27 March 2018 entered into between Tenaga
Nasional Berhad and BGMC Corporation; (i) pay the contractors of
BGMC Bras Power and (iii) pay the sums due and payable by BGMC
Bras Power under the sukuk bond programme. As of the date the
consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue,
RM47,781,000 has been advanced from reNIKOLA for the above
purposes;

a controlling shareholder has agreed to provide continuing financial
support to the Group for at least twelve months from the date the
consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue;

repayment from customers of RM26,200,000 which were under
dispute but settlement is expected to be received in the next twelve

months; and

completion of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power to reNIKOLA.

The Directors will continue to give careful consideration to the future

liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of financing

in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources

to continue as a going concern. The plans and measures undertaken to

mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position of the

Group are summarised in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

contained in this annual report.
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The directors of the Company ("Directors”) are pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ("Group”)
for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 (‘FPE2022").

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company's subsidiaries during FPE2022 are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Group Reorganisation and Global Offering

The Company was incorporated on 18 November 2016 (‘Incorporation Date”)
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) in the Cayman Islands. To rationalize
the corporate structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the shares
of the Company (“Shares”) in issue on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange” and “Main Board’, respectively), the
companies now comprising the Group underwent the corporate reorganisation
("Reorganisation”), pursuant to which the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 6 December 2016. For details of the Reorganisation,
please refer to the sub-section “Reorganisation” in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the Company dated 31
July 2017 (“Prospectus”).

The issued Shares have been listed on the Main Board since 9 August 2017
(‘Listing Date” and “Listing’, respectively).

Business Review

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business during FPE2022, future
business development and the risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set
out below and in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the "Management Discussion
and Analysis” ("MD&A") sections of this annual report.

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. The MD&A section also provides
a detailed analysis of the Group's financial performance during FPE2022 using
financial key performance indicators.

Details regarding the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group, are set out on page 63 of this annual
report.
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Risk Management
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Under the Group's risk management and internal control framework, the risk — BIFEE AR EIE & A ERIEHITEZE » AN BR)E

committee of the Company (‘Risk Committee”) determined the strategic and
departmental objectives of the Group's business, and set the risk appetite for
the Group (as stated in the sub-section “Risk Management and Internal Control”
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report). Based on these
objectives, the Risk Committee assesses its likely impacts and evaluates the risks
in order to develop effective internal control activities for mitigation of the risks.

Principal Risks

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal risk factors that the
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Group is exposed to and the key mitigation strategies are summarised below: BEEA an T -
Principal Risks Mitigation Strategy
TERMB R R

Unfavourable economic environment and unable to
secure business opportunities

TR O AR IR IR e B DA N

Due to sluggish market condition affected by the global
pandemic outbreak, the Group'’s business and operation is
affected and is experiencing intense competition in securing the
future project.

HR TR 55 R 2R IEARTTHI &% - KNEE ) E
BREELZDZE  HFAKIEA 7 EE AR

Diversify client base.

BRZITCNEFES -

Renew business model to adapt to current economic situations.
AEEEERX - BEERKELY -

Emphasis on concession business to generate stable concurrent
income.

EHBRFAEEERET  BUSRBERA -

Explore the stimulus package by local government and find project
which suit our capability.

BRA BT BRI E R e ERFae TR IER -

Selective in tender that meet Group's size and technical objectives.

BB PR A ANEERR L 540 B R BFRER -

Insufficient credit facilities and unstable company
finance

FEEETERARMBIRE

Due to global economic slowdown in construction/property
industries and insufficient/ineffective financing facilities, the
Group has been affected by collection issue and difficulty in
replenishing order book as clients delay new property launches.

HR BB EME - NETREBERERBEFEZTE
BN AEERLESEEZE - R R EFEENE
FEEE  Ex BT E T EE SN -

To ensure sustainability and continuity of business by monitoring
order book.

BBEE TIRR] ERERERH AN MBS -

Engage with more bankers regularly to widen financing options.
HEZRITERES  UEHRERERR -

Building cash reserves by getting financing facilities ready.

BEERRERE BRATHIE

To establish short-term, mid-term and long-term financial planning
against economic slowdown.
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Principal Risks
TERMR

Mitigation Strategy
AR AR SR B

Inability to adhere to work program

BREBRIERR

Progress at all our construction site have been affected by the
imposition of Movement Control Order by the Government to
curb the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic. Not only the working
hours are shortened, the supply of labour to the construction
industry and thus our construction site have been seriously
plagued by an alarming shortage issue. As such, the Group
is not able to adhere strictly to the work program originally
planned.

BT B R S AR 1Y 3 [Z 1T R BT 7348 5201978 ik i B
BRIGREMEMN ZETTHE TR ZE - EEE
TETIFHER - A HET 2 IR R TN
TR BT B B o Ut - K EEAL K TR
FTEIB TIELHE -

Implement and introduce innovative work method that requires less

resources.

SIARERERFERERDHRIF TIETE -

Ensure proper site possession, pre-planning of material and fund
allocation.

ERAEEA T - RAARVMHARES DR

Close monitor and prompt update to relevant parties that does not
adhere to the master plan.
BB R A BREARRBE R NS S HER T -

Negotiate with vendors for alternative payment plan and arrangement
of workforce.

BRI RGBS TP TRERS ©

Establish a plan/standard operating procedure (“SOP") to ensure
continuity of site operations in the event of occurrence pandemic
lockdown.

HIERT R REEERRF ((BEEERRF )  BRTEIBHHEHE
T RERFAREE -

Strictly comply to relevant regulatory and authorities’ requirements.

BRR B TR B ARE R B R EFIMARE

Particulars of Important Events after the Reporting EEREHEEEEHMFES

Period

Please refer to Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The board of Directors ("“Board”) has overall responsibility for the Group's

-
environmental, social and governance ("ESG”) strategy and reporting. The Board is B A([BIE - HEREA
responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management and internal control systemsto &

=

ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met.
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The details of ESG are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report ~ BB3E « it & R B AR EIBHN A ERE20E378 W

on pages 20 to 37 of this annual report.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has adopted risk management and internal control policies to monitor
the on going compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

During FPE2022, as far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impacts on its business and operations.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and certain policies
have been implemented to ensure that its employees are provided competitive
remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous professional training.
The Group also maintains good relationships with its customers and suppliers,
without whom success in the Group's production and operation would be at risk.

Contingent Liabilities

(@) On 28 March 2019, the Company received a writ of summons together
with an indorsement of claim dated 19 March 2019 in the High Court of
Shah Alam, Malaysia by 47 plaintiffs ("“Plaintiffs”) against Kingsley Hills
Sdn. Bhd. as the first defendant and BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. ("BGMC
Corporation”), as the second defendant. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement of 28 March 2019 for further details of the litigation.

BGMC Corporation had filed an interlocutory application to strike out the
Plaintiffs’ case as well as a counterclaim against the Plaintiffs’ claiming for
alleged additional liquidated ascertained damaged absorbed in good faith
and spirit of the full and final settlement agreement. The High Court has
allowed BGMC Corporation’s application and struck out the Plaintiff's writ
and statement of claim. 13 Plaintiffs have appealed against the High Court’s
decision to the Court of Appeal. On 25 August 2021, the Court of Appeal
has unanimously dismissed the 13 Plaintiffs' appeal and affirmed the High
Court's decision to strike out the Plaintiffs’ claims.

As to the counterclaim initiated by BGMC Corporation against the
remaining Plaintiffs who did not appeal against the High Court’s decision (34
Plaintiffs in total) as disclosed above, the application has been dismissed by
the High Court on 20 August 2021.
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In the ordinary course of business, Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd.
(‘Built-Master Engineering’), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, had
awarded a sub-contract for electrical work to a third party in 2018. The said
sub-contract was subsequently terminated by Built-Master Engineering
due to breach of certain terms and conditions of the sub-contract on the
part of the third party. The third party initiated a legal action against Built-
Master Engineering claiming, amongst others, the balance payment of
approximately RM733,000 and interest at 5% per annum from the date of
the Writ, i.e. 21 March 2018 until the date of the full and final settlement on
the basis that the termination was wrongful. Built-Master Engineering has
entered their defence denying the claim and thereafter filed a counterclaim
against the said third party. On 22 July 2020, the High Court of Malaysia
granted judgment against Built-Master Engineering and dismissed Built-
Master Engineering’s counterclaim. On 6 August 2020, Built-Master
Engineering lodged appeal against the said judgment.

On 22 May 2021, Built-Master Engineering and the third party have entered
into a settlement agreement to settle the judgment sum of RM764,000
which is included in trade payables as at 31 March 2022. As amicable
settlement has been reached, Built-Master Engineering has withdrawn the
appeal filed at the Court of Appeal with no order as to cost and no liberty to
file afresh.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020, a
subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had disputes
with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed in
completing the works under two contracts arising out of the same project.
Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group’s two performance bonds in
the amount of approximately RM25,800,000.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an injunction in
the Court and has obtained an ad-interim injunction order dated 29 May
2020 against the forfeiture of the performance bonds by Customer A.On 16
April 2021, the High Court granted the Group the injunction order. The next
case management date for the matteris 11 August 2022,

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 (which was
withdrawn and retained as two arbitrations on 26 October 2020) to
dispute the validity of the terminations by Customer A and claim against
Customer A for (i) losses of profit of approximately RM35,000,000, (ii)
return of retention sum of approximately RM4,400,000 and (iii) return of
the sums under the two performance bonds amounting to approximately
RM25,800,000.
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On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of approximately
RM126,400,000 (which then became counterclaims of approximately
RM83,000,000 in the two arbitrations) in the arbitration proceeding against
the Group.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been authorised
for issue, the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing. The next preliminary
meeting for the matter is 6 September 2022.

The Group's legal counsel is in the opinion that the Group has a stronger
case to persuade the arbitrator to rule the facts in the Group's favour.

On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation received a demand letter
from a licensed bank in Malaysia (“Bank”), in which the Bank alleged that
it had received a demand against a bank guarantee from a beneficiary
("Beneficiary”) being a customer of BGMC Corporation, in the sum of
approximately RM5,500,000, and unless the Beneficiary withdraws its
demand or the Bank is restrained from performing its obligations, the Bank
would effect payment of the sum demanded to the Beneficiary on 24
November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by BGMC
Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for which the
Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly performed its
contractual obligation.

On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors, BGMC Corporation filed an
application (“Application”) to the Kuala Lumpur High Court against the
Beneficiary, which restrains it from receiving the sum demanded by the
Beneficiary. On 24 November 2020, the Kuala Lumpur High Court granted
an interim injunction in favour of BGMC Corporation, which restrained
the Beneficiary, their respective agents, employees and/or officers from
effecting the claims of the performance bond or receiving the payment
or part payment under the performance bond from the Bank until the
disposal of the originating summons filed by BGMC Corporation against
the Beneficiary. On 20 May 2021, the Kuala Lumpur High Court granted the
injunction order in favour of BGMC Corporation.

The Beneficiary has applied for an appeal. The estimated payout is the bank
guarantee in the sum of approximately RM5,500,000 should the action be
successful. The matter is currently fixed for case management on 7 July
2022.
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The burden of proving any mistake in law made by the Honourable High
Court for the appeal is on the Beneficiary while the Beneficiary was still
holding on to the retention sum tantamount to unconscionable conduct
since the alleged back-charges for defects were certified and estimated to
be approximately RM3,644,000.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors consider
BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation and has not
provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these consolidated
financial statements.

(e) Pursuant to a call and put option agreement entered into between the
Company, BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd., DPI Solar 1 Pte. Ltd. (‘DPI Solar 1") and
Sparks Energy International Limited (“Sparks Energy”) dated 29 August
2019, in the consideration of the put option fee and the mutual covenants
and undertakings, the Company irrevocably grants to DPI Solar 1 an option
to require the Company to purchase the put option shares from DPI Solar
1 at the option price of USS1 per share. On 19 February 2021, DPI Solar
1 exercised the said put option and required the Company to purchase
the put option shares, which is 50.1% of the Class 1 Preference Shares
amounted to US$10,736,000.

The Company did not purchase the said preference shares. As a result, DPI
Solar 1 commenced arbitration proceedings against the Company. As at the
date the consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue,
the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors consider
the Group has a valid defence against the litigation and has not provided
for any claim arising from the litigation in the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during FPE2022 are
set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the FPE2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 92 of this annual report and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”), provided that the Group records a profit after
tax and that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. Details of the Dividend Policy are set out in the
section headed "Dividend Policy” in the Corporate Governance Report.

Reserves

Details of movements of the Group's reserves during FPE2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 95 of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company had reserves amounting to approximately
RM40.9 million (2020: RM69.4 million) available for distribution as calculated
based on the Company’s share premium and accumulated losses under
applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During FPE2022, the Group did not acquire any property, plant and equipment
(2020: RMO0.1 million). Details and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during FPE2022 are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during FPE2022 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (Chief Executive Officer)
Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif (‘“Dato” Arifin")
(Resigned on 30 August 2021)
Mr. Ching Hong Seng ("“Mr. Ching") (Retired on 31 March 2021)
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (“Tan Sri Barry Goh”)
(Resigned on 7 October 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Chairman)
(Appointed on 7 October 2020)
Mr. Kua Choh Leang
Datuk Kang Hua Keong (Appointed on 24 June 2022)
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri Kong")
(Resigned on 8 April 2022)
Ms. Chan May May (“Ms. Chan") (Resigned on 7 October 2020)
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Pursuant to article 112 of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”), the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the Shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association provides that notwithstanding any
other provisions in these articles, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Dato’ Teh Kok Lee and Datuk Kang Hua Keong will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, each
of Tan Sri Barry Goh, Ms. Chan, Mr. Ching, Dato’ Arifin and Tan Sri Kong has
confirmed respectively that he/she has no disagreement with the Board and
there is no matter that needs to be brought to the attention to the Shareholders.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of this

annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of
Appointment

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter
(‘Directors’ Service Contract’) with the Company for an initial fixed term of
one year. None of the Directors who offered himself/herself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a Directors’ Service Contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

Saved as disclosed in the sections headed “Group Reorganisation and Global
Offering” and the “Connected Transactions” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in
which any Director or controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or an entity connected with him/her had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during FPE2022.

Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares; or (ii) require the Company to enter into any agreement that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company during
FPE2022 or subsisted at the end of the FPE2022.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 3 July 2017, the
Company adopted a share option scheme conditional upon the Listing (“Share
Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date. No share option under the Share Option Scheme (“Option”) has been
granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and therefore, there
was no outstanding Option as at 31 March 2022 and no Option was exercised or
cancelled or lapsed during FPE2022.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:
(@) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established as
incentives or rewards for the contributions or potential contributions that
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) had or may
have made to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.
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Who may join

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an Option to the following
persons (collectively “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe for such number
of new Shares as the Board may determine at an exercise price determined
in accordance with paragraph (f) below:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including INEDs) or directors of any of the Company’s
subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons, who in the sole opinion of the Board
will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the Options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of RM1.0 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company on or
before the relevant acceptance date.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10.0% of the total
number of Shares in issue immediately following completion of the Listing,
being 180,000,000 Shares. As at the offer date of any proposed grant of
Options, the maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may
be granted is such number of Shares less the aggregate of the following
Shares as at that offer date:

(i) the number of Shares which would be issued on the exercise in full
of the Options or options under any other scheme but not cancelled,
lapsed or exercised;

(i) the number of Shares which have been issued and allotted pursuant
to the exercise of any Options or options under any other scheme;
and

(iii)  the number of cancelled Shares.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option

Scheme is 180,000,000 Shares, representing 10.0% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report.
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(e) Maximum number of underlying Shares comprised in Options

to any one Eligible Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the Options and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant (subject to the following paragraph) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not, when aggregated with:

() any Shares issued upon exercise of Options or options under the other
schemes which have been granted to that Eligible Participant;

(i) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise of outstanding
Options or options under the other schemes granted to that Eligible
Participant; and

(i) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of Options or options
under the other schemes which had been granted to and accepted
by that Eligible Participant, exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of grant.

Options cannot be granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any INED or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) resulting in the number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of Options granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other percentage as may
be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules of the Shares in
issue on the date of grant; and

(i having an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million or such other
sum as may be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules,
based on the official closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant.

Unless provided otherwise in the Listing Rules, the date of the Board
meeting at which the Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible
Participant shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price of the Shares.
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Subscription price of Shares

Subject to any adjustments on certain circumstances, the subscription
price of a Share in respect of any particular Option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Time of exercise of Option and duration of the Share Option
Scheme

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the Option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years
from that date. Subject to termination, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for the scheme period after which no further Options
shall be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of any Options granted prior thereto or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and Options granted prior thereto but not yet exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

Minimum period for which an Option must be held before it
can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an Option granted must be held
before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the Board.
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Change of Directors

There have been changes to the Board composition during the Period and as at
the date of this annual report:

(@)  With effect from 24 June 2022, Datuk Kang Hua Keong (“Datuk Kang")
has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director ('INED"), a
member of the audit committee of the Board ("AC" or “Audit Committee”),
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board ("RC") and a
member of the nomination committee of the Board ("NC").

(b)  With effect from 8 April 2022: (1) Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri
Kong") tendered his resignation as an INED and ceases to be a chairperson
of the NC, a member of the RC and a member of the AC; and (2) Kua Choh
Leang ("“Mr. Kua") and INED, has been appointed as the chairperson of the
NC.

() With effect from 30 August 2021, Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif tendered
his resignation as an executive Director.

(d) Mr. Ching Hong Seng (“Mr. Ching") did not offer himself for re-election
and hence retired as an executive Director upon the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 March 2021 due to his
commitment on his other business. Details of the retirement of Mr. Ching
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2021.

(e) With effect from 7 October 2020: (1) Tan Sri Barry Goh tendered his
resignation as an executive Director and ceased to be a member of the RG;
(2) Ms. Chan May May tendered her resignation as an INED and ceased to
be a chairperson of the RC, a member of the NC and a member of the AC;
(3) Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman has been appointed as an INED, the
chairperson of the RC, a member of the NC and a member of the AC; and (4)
Tan Sri Kong, an INED, has been appointed as a member of the RC.

Retirement Benefit Plan

As required by the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 of Malaysia, the Group
makes contributions to the federal statutory body, Employees Provident Fund
("EPF"), which manages the compulsory savings plan and retirement planning for
employees in Malaysia. Both the employer and employee are required to make
contributions into the employee’s individual account in the EPF at a specified
percentage of the employee’s monthly income. During FPE2022, the Group is
in compliance with this requirement. For details, please refer to Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and Chief
Executive in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong
("SFO")), which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules ("Model Code") were as follows:

Interests in the Shares

Name of Directors

EEns

Capacity/Nature of interest

LV +3:31

EERERITHRAERA R R AR
EE 2R HERG REER T 2
mRAR

202253 A31H » FEZRARAEBZITHRAER
RAT S HEA A EE(ERRBBENENE
BHEMEEGEN([BHRREBEMRE ) BEXVED) KA
7~ HBERG REEER  BEREEZFLRBERK
B EEXVEBSE7 85y SR A M E AN A 7] R B XX P Ay HE 25
R#E (BRBEESRAERINZERTHEE
IREBEBNEREAE)  AIRBEFFEHAEKR
B EE3521&B R ARZ R It A Q B & Fe M A Mo
B HBRE EHRAMSRIORESR LR ITAESE
TRFRSHREFA([ZEESTE ) BHNEARAF]
MRS AR AT -

igrigi

Approximate
Interests in
Shares®>?  shareholding®o?

IR ) RN E D e

percentage of

Dato’ Michael Teh®ete 1

Interest of a controlled corporation and

1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%

interests held jointly with another person

S E AR
Rt

RiprEE s R EE AT RFRE

‘L" denotes long position
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Notes:

(1) On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato” Michael Teh entered into a concert party
confirmatory deed (“Concert Party Confirmatory Deed’) to acknowledge and confirm,
among other things, that they had been parties acting in concert with each other with respect
to their interests in or the business of the relevant members of the Group since they became
shareholders of BGMC Holdings Berhad, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and would continue to act in concert after the signing of the Concert Party Confirmatory
Deed. For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation — Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” in the Prospectus.

As at 31 March 2022, the 1,208,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of
(i) 864,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International Business Limited ("“Prosper
International’) which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh, and (ii)
344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva International Limited ("Seeva International’)
which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Dato’ Michael Teh. Each of Tan Sri Barry Goh and
Dato’ Michael Teh is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or deemed to be held by them
in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

(2)  These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March
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(1) R2016F12H158 « FETERHER 2 EEEFHFZT 7 —

HITEIN 1+ HERE S ([ —HAITEIA L RERBRIR | ) LR

R SR (K 615 155 F 5L BBGMC Holdings Berhad (%

RE]—REE2ENE R F)RFAE - GLATH A EEER

BN AR B HITEMA L - AREF —

HITEIN TR e S BE—HTTE) - FZ:F 8BS

BERERNFEL « FRMAEBH— — KT L HERR
1B)—E -

BR2022F3 31 H - #EHF 1208250000/ 1R (7 49 ##
o BB EEERE SR NG ([1ELERE ) Za
i #7864,000,000 8 R 17 - 1T 1 £ B BR Al /7 /3 HF B R
B & 2 EHA - Ki)HSeeva International Limited
([ Seeva International |) & 7 £7344,250,000f8 B 17

iSeeva International Al 2 BB B 2 £ E1EH © 1RIK
EHREEEA - SETERAER 2B FIHE AR
BEFis BB BREMFEABERGFERES

2)  EEEDHTIER20229F3H31H.2 1,8000000004% 2 %

2022. TR -
Interest in the Shares of Associated Corporations REREER 7 RS
Name of associated Capacity/Nature of Interests in Percentage of
Name of Directors corporations interest ordinary shares shareholding
EEng HEEEAR B RmitE IR A7 %R BAERES L
Dato’ Michael Teh Seeva International Beneficial owner 1 100%
BT Seeva International EnEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she
was taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

B ESCFTIREEE SN - FR2022F3A318 » HEAR A A
BEYEREITHRABEE AQ)RIEES KAEEG
EXVERE 7R 8D BB (B IR IRIEEF R A E K01 H B 5k
NEWEEIRARENESZ AR AEANT R
BZZFT 5 sl(b)IRIEFE 55 R ER & 16171 5B 35216 F #AFZ
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B R TR A AR R Bl sk AR AR (T & R
F R AEEBIZEXVER) AR - B, REHE
R SRR °
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the Chief Executive had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRAQXFRG REBERD 2
BmRIKRE

BARNBESRA > R20226F3A8318  FHIQFE
AT (BEERESITBABRIN RARMD ARG
PR RIBEE S RIEGAIEXVEBE2 R33N EHIEX
BYRBAORZIAR @ KEBHERARRFHFK
IS &G 33616 AT E 2 B MR « FBT

Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding?
REREE B RnitE RDER BAOFRE D)
Prosper International®ete?) Beneficial owner and interests held 1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%
jointly with another person
LR EnEAANES —BATHEHANER
Seeva International ete Beneficial owner and interests held 1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%
jointly with another person
Seeva International #i7) BB ARBES -2 ATHERENER
Kingdom Base Beneficial owner 141,750,000 (L) 7.9%
Kingdom Base E=mAA
“L” denotes long position FEIFTFRE

Notes:

(1) On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato” Michael Teh entered into the Concert Party
Confirmatory Deed to acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they had been
parties acting in concert with each other with respect to their interests in or the business of the
Company and the relevant members of the Group since they became shareholders of BGMC
Holdings Berhad and would continue to act in concert after the signing of the Concert Party
Confirmatory Deed. For further details of the Concert Party Confirmatory Deed, please refer to
“Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” sub-section in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

As at 31 March 2022, the 1,208,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of (i)
864,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International which in turn is beneficially and
wholly owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and (ii) 344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva
International which in turn is beneficially and wholly owned by Dato’ Michael Teh. Each of
Prosper International and Seeva International is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or
deemed to be held by Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

(2)  These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March
2022.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors or the Chief Executive are aware
of, as at 31 March 2022, no corporation or person (not being a Director or the
Chief Executive) had any interests or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Arrangement for Directors to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

At no time during FPE2022 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

During FPE2022 and thereafter up to the date of this annual report, the Company
did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
made by the Company with each of them, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required dealing standards set out in the Model Code during
FPE2022.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance in order to achieve sustainable development and enhance corporate
performance especially in the areas of internal control, fair disclosure and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“CG Code”) as its
own code of corporate governance. During FPE2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses, which they or any of them shall
or may incur or sustain by reason of any act alone, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for all
Directors and senior management of the Company, who subject to the applicable
laws, will be indemnified against the costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
for legal action incurred by such a Director or officer in the execution of his/her
duties or otherwise in relation thereto.

Management Contracts

Save for the Directors’ Service Contract or contracts of service that any members
of the Group has entered into with the Directors or any person engaged in
the full-time employment of the Company, no contract by which a person
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group's business was entered into or subsisted during FPE2022.

Confirmation of Independence of INEDs

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation in
writing of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is
not aware of any unfavourably reported incident. Therefore, it considers all the
INEDs to be independent for the FPE2022 and thereafter up to the date of this
annual report.

Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration committee of the Company (‘Remuneration Committee’)
determines the remuneration and other benefits of the EDs (including the
Chief Executive who is an ex-officio member of the Board), and considers and
recommends to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration paid
by the Company to the Directors (including the non-executive Directors). The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to monitoring by the Remuneration
Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and compensation
are appropriate. Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals in the Group during FPE2022 are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BGMC International Limited
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors is interested in any business apart
from the businesses operated by the Group which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during FPE2022
and up to the date of this annual report.

Deed of Non-competition

A deed of non-competition dated 3 July 2017 has been entered into by Tan
Sri Barry Goh, Prosper International, Dato” Michael Teh and Seeva International
(collectively “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of the Company (‘Deed
of Non-competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the
Controlling Shareholders has undertaken, jointly and severally, to the Company
that he/it would not, and would procure his/its close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and/or companies controlled by the respective Controlling
Shareholders not to, directly or indirectly, either on his/its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other
things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in
each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise) any business
or activity which is or may be in competition with the business of the Group.
Details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section headed
“Non-Competition Undertakings” in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Despite the fact that Tan Sri Barry Goh had acquired his interests with effect from
the end of June 2019 in B&G Capital Resources Berhad ("B&G Capital’) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “B&G Capital Group”), the Board was satisfied that the
business undertaken by B&G Capital Group was not in a competition with the
Company or its subsidiaries, taking into account the differences in various aspects,
including products and services, external revenue source, customers, suppliers,
management as well as strategy, growth and expansion plan.
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The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from each of the
Controlling Shareholders confirming that he/it had complied with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance with and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that all the
undertakings thereunder have been complied with since the date of the
execution of the same and up to 31 March 2022.

Related Parties Transactions

Details of the related parties transactions are set out in the Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of the related party transactions as
disclosed constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules and the
Company had complied with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during FPE2022.

Connected Transactions
During FPE2022, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions:

A. Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements

(a) Construction services to B&G Capital Group

The Group provided various construction services to B&G Capital
and its subsidiaries for their construction projects in Malaysia. Such
subsidiaries included B&G Superb Property Sdn Bhd, D’ Pristine Medini
Sdn. Bhd. and Kingsley Hill Sdn Bhd.

During FPE2022, the Company had not provided such construction
services to the B&G Capital Group, which included but were not
limited to carrying out the construction works in accordance with the
given specifications and building plans as well as supply of labour,
materials, machineries and tools for the construction works ("‘B&G
Construction Services”’).

BGMC International Limited
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Transaction amounts RHBHE
During the following financial years, the Group derived the following RUATEBFE - AEEMBRG CapitalE
revenue from the provision of the B&G Construction Services to the B SR HBRGE RIS MES LA -

B&G Capital Group:

Transaction amounts

Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended period ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 31 March
2018 2019 2020 2022
BZ20185F BZ20195F BZ2020F BZ2022F
9H30H Lt 9H30H Lt 9H30H Lt 3A318 L
MREE MREE MREE BA B HA R
RM million RM million RM million RM million
BEMES BEMNSES BHENSS BEMEH
The B&G Construction Services 2499 78.5 6.6 Nil
BRGEE R =
Annual caps and basis of determination FELRRETELE
The following sets forth the annual caps under the Master B&G AT #EPIBRGARREHZEIB NHFE LR
Construction Agreement and the proposed annual cap under the MEBRGHEZEFIE THERFE LR -
New Master B&G Construction Agreement:
Annual Caps
FELR
Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended period ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 31 March
2018 2019 2020 2022
BZ20185F BZ20195F BZ2020F BZ2022F
9H30H Lt 9H30A Lt 9HA30R Lt 3A31H1E
MREE MREE MRFE BA B HA
RM million RM million RM million RM million
BEMNES BENSS BEMNSES BEMSEH
The B&G Construction Services 370.0 180.0 70.0 Nil
BRGIEEEARTE z
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Sub-contracting to EXA Power

The Group sub-contracted part of its electrical works to EXA Power
Sdn. Bhd. ("EXA Power”") in relation to its construction projects in
Malaysia. During FPE2022, the Group sub-contracted electrical works
to EXA Power, which included but were not limited to the supply of
material, equipment, labour and tools for the complete installation of
the electrical services in accordance with the relevant drawings and
specifications ("Electrical Works").

As at the date of this annual report, EXA Power was owned as to
(i) approximately 24.0% by Mr. Wong Zheng Kai (“Mr. Wong"), a
brother-in-law of Dato’ Michael Teh, a Controlling Shareholder;
(i) approximately 6.0% by Ms. Lee Chiew Yen (“Ms. Lee"), a sister-in-
law of Dato’ Michael Teh and (iii) approximately 70.0% by independent
third parties. Due to the close relationship of Mr. Wong and Ms. Lee
with Dato’ Michael Teh, EXA Power was deemed as a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.21 of the Listing Rules.

On 3 July 2017, the Company entered into a master sub-contracting
agreement (“Master EXA Agreement”) with EXA Power, pursuant
to which the Company would sub-contract the Electrical Works to
EXA Power for a term commencing on the Listing Date and up to 30
September 2019.

In view of the on-going and new constructions projects on hand and
to continue to regulate the provision of Electrical Works by EXA Power
to the Group, the Company and EXA Power had on 10 September
2019 entered into a New Master EXA Agreement (‘'New Master EXA
Agreement’) to renew the Master EXA Agreement, pursuant to
which EXA Power will provide the Electrical Works to the Company for
a term of two years from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2021.

The entering into of the New Master EXA Agreement was passed by
the independent Shareholders on 18 November 2019.

BGMC International Limited
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Transaction amounts

During the following financial years, the Group incurred the following
amounts of purchases for the Electrical Works provided by EXA Power:

Directors’ Report

RHEH
RUATHEREE + NREBFLEXA Powerfe i
BHIRAFEEYENSTEINT

Transaction amounts

ESERE

RBLH
Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended period ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 31 March
2018 2019 2020 2022
B £2018F B Z2019F HZ2020F BZ2022F
9A30H 1 9A30H 1t 9A30H 1t 3A31H1E
MHFEE MHEE MEREFE BB
RM million RM million RM million RM million
BEMEE BEMEE BEMNEE BEMER
The Electrical Works 1.6 28 6.7 20
BHTRE
Annual caps and basis of determination FELIREETEE

The following sets forth the annual caps under the Master EXA
Agreement and the proposed annual cap under the New Master EXA

AT ETIEXARIGZRIE TR FEE LR &
EXAB A THEZRTE LR -

agreement:
Annual caps
FELR
Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended period ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 31 March
2018 2019 2020 2022
B Z2018F B ZE2019F B Z2020%F B Z20226F
9H30RH Lt 9H30RH Lt 9A30H Lt 3A3181L
MHFE MHRFE MEREFE BB
RM million RM million RM million RM million
BEMNER BEMNEHE BENEHR BEMER
The Electrical Works 55 30 214 2.5
BHIRE
* Despite there is a change of financial year end date of the Company, the * BEARAVRFELHEATAES - BF

annual caps has been utilised on or before 30 September 2021.

E EREMR20219F9A308 sk 2 AIfER °
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In determining the above annual caps, the Company has considered,
among other factors, (i) the historical transaction amounts for the
purchase of Electrical Works provided by EXA Power; (i) the expected
demand for Electrical Works services in the upcoming years in view of
the business development of the Group; (iii) the estimated contract
value and any payment arrangement of projected new construction
projects to be entered into by the Group; and (iv) the estimated
increase in the average market rates charged for similar services due
to inflation and anticipated increase in cost.

Given that each of the Applicable Percentage Ratios in respect of
the Electrical Works under the Master EXA Agreement was/was
expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis,
the transactions contemplated under the Master EXA Agreement
were subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but were exempt from the circular and Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the highest of the Applicable Percentage Ratios in respect of the
proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under
the New Master EXA agreement exceeds 5%, the New Master EXA
Agreement is subject to the reporting, announcement, independent
Shareholder’s approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Confirmation from the Directors and Independent
Auditor

The independent auditor of the Company (“Independent Auditor”)
had been engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the FPE2022. The Independent Auditor had
provided an unqualified letter to the Board containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the FPE2022 disclosed above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Independent Auditor’s letter
had been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rule 14A.57 of the Listing Rules.

The Board including the INEDs had reviewed the Group’s continuing
connected transactions under the Master B&G Construction
Agreement and the Master EXA Agreement and was of the opinion
that the transactions (i) were entered into in the Group’s ordinary
and usual course of business; (i) on normal commercial terms; and
(iii) according to the said agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Major Suppliers and Customers

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 3.1% of the total
purchases of the Group for the FPE2022 (2020: less than 7.8%).

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 88.8% of
the turnover of the Group for the FPE2022 (2020: approximately 93.5%).

During FPE2022, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier were
approximately 30.6% (2020: 27.7%) and 1.7% (2020: 2.5%) of the Group's sales and

purchases respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

Donations

During FPE2022, the Group has not made any donation to charity communities
(2020: Nil).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or under the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

Public Float

Based on the information which is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient amount
of public float of at least 25% of the issued Shares during FPE2022 and thereafter
up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five years is
set out in the section headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 228 of this
annual report.

Directors’ Report

ESERE

TRHEBRER

REB R AR AN E B FPE20228- B A 5E R L I
1E73.19% (20204 : {EH7.8%) °

AEBRAARFP G AL BFPE2022 % 3 58 4788.8%
(2020%F : #793.5%) °

FAFPE20221A) - REEHF AR P EGIHERE R AS
Es AR EEE LR RBRES N A ANEBHERE
N EREEREEN30.6% (20205F & 27.7%) 52 1.7% (20206
25%) °

BREXHEEN  BBEEFAREZEEHEACE
ER TR FEMBRRBESHA - FHEAR

AIE BT M BB 85%) A ARSEEFPE2022 Fift A K
BENHEEETHEEERERD °

B

FAFPE2022 » AREE I B M ZE S EEEL TR BE
(20205 : &)

BrEERE

AHERARRFSEE AR (AR AR
BLERER) WEE LB ERAGR -

DNREFR

(il

RIBARBAFAIESNEN RIBEEEM  AQF]
RiE TR BIM R ERFPE202 R EEARERHHD
BRI ATIHRE  EEBTRHED25% -

T FHBEME

AEBEBEREFEZRE  EERAGHREERN
RERE28E AFIMEHE | —FT -

F3R 2022

BRBERERERAT 85



86 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

Review by Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the draft audited consolidated
financial statements and annual report before presenting them to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about
the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or
exercising of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

Independent Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Moore Stephens
CPA Limited (“Moore”) which would retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offers itself for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint Moore as the
Independent Auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will
be proposed to the Shareholders for approval at the forthcoming AGM. Prior to
the appointment of Moore as the auditors of the Group on 5 January 2022, the
former auditor of the Group, being ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, resigned on
28 December 2021.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysia, 30 June 2022

BGMC International Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report

38 M %% B R

M M OO R E Moore Stephens CPA Limited AERHEESHMEERBIRAT
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, BEBNE
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, RHERE305E

Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +8522375 3180
F +8522375 3828

www.moore.hk

To the shareholders of BGMC International Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of BGMC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 92 to 227, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Opening balances and comparative information

The opening balances and comparative information disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are based on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 September 2020. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2020 were reported
upon by another firm of auditors (the “Predecessor Auditor”), whose report
dated 31 December 2020 expressed a disclaimer of opinion due to various
limitations in evidence available to the Predecessor Auditor. The matters which
led the Predecessor Auditor to disclaim their opinion are described in paragraphs
(i) to (iii) below. Any adjustments found to be necessary might have significant
effects on the figures as at and for the year ended 30 September 2020 presented
as comparative figures in these consolidated financial statements and hence
affect the comparability of the current period's and period end’s figures and the
corresponding figures.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (continued)
Opening balances and comparative information (continued)

In addition, the closing balances as at 30 September 2020 of the assets and
liabilities of the Group are brought forward as the opening balances as at
1 October 2020 and hence entered into the determination of the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for the current financial period ended
31 March 2022. Hence, any adjustments found to be necessary to the closing
balances of the assets and liabilities as at 30 September 2020 in respect of the
matters described in paragraphs (i) to (iii) below might have significant effects
on the Group's results and cash flows for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31
March 2022 and related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022.
Accordingly, we were also unable to determine whether adjustments might have
been necessary in respect of the performance and cash flows of the Group for
the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flows.

(i) Provision for legal and professional fee and disclosure of contingent
liabilities

The Predecessor Auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy themselves as to the accuracy and completeness of
provision for the legal and professional fee of approximately RM967,000 as
at 30 September 2020. There were no other satisfactory audit procedures
that the Predecessor Auditor could adopt to determine whether the
contingent liabilities were properly disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 and further provision for
legal and professional fee was required.

(ii) Provision for performance bonds and impairment loss on trade
receivables and contract assets

As disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
had recognised the provision for two performance bonds of approximately
RM25,797,000 for the year ended 30 September 2020. The Predecessor
Auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy themselves as to the accuracy and completeness of the provision for
two performance bonds of approximately RM25,797,000 and provision for
impairment loss on trade receivables and contract assets of approximately
RM31,568,000 as at 30 September 2020.

BGMC International Limited
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (continued)
Opening balances and comparative information (continued)
(iii) The effect of provision for liquidation ascertained damages (“LAD”)

The Predecessor Auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy themselves as to the effect of LAD of a project to the
project contract sum, and project revenue for the year ended 30 September
2020 and contract assets as at 30 September 2020. There were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that the Predecessor Auditor could adopt to
determine whether the LAD was properly included in the calculation of
project contract sum and project revenue recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 and contract
assets as at 30 September 2020.

The matters described in paragraphs (i) to (iii) above no longer have
possible effects on the figures presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 4(b) to the consolidated financial statements, which
describes that the Group incurred a loss of approximately RM59,299,000 and
net cash used in operating activities of approximately RM87,337,000 during the
period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements which
states that the consolidated financial statements for the current period covers
an eighteen-month period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022. The
corresponding comparative amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows and related
notes covered a twelve-month period from 1 October 2019 to 30 September
2020 and therefore may not be comparable with current period figures. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Other Matter

The Predecessor Auditor who was engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2020 expressed a
disclaimer of opinion on those statements on 31 December 2020 in relation
to those matters as described above and material uncertainty related to going
concern, details of which are described below.

The Predecessor Auditor drew attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 published on 31 December
2020 which mentioned that the Group incurred loss attributable to owners of
approximately RM193,543,000 for the year ended 30 September 2020 and as
at 30 September 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RM62,424,000. In addition, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings amounting to approximately RM69,286,000 which would be due
for repayment within the next twelve months. The cash and bank balances,
pledged fixed deposits and restricted fixed deposits of the Group as at 30
September 2020 amounted to approximately RM5,617,000, RM22,768,000 and
RM16,356,000 respectively. Furthermore, the Predecessor Auditor was unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves as to the
continuous support of the Group's bankers and the timing of completion of
disposal of KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (the “Disposal”) as stipulated in Note 16
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020.
These conditions indicated the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020
had been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which mainly
depended upon the continuous support of the Group'’s bankers and the timing
of completion of the Disposal. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 September 2020 did not include any adjustments that would result
from the failure to obtain the bankers’ continuous support and unsuccessful
Disposal. The Predecessor Auditor considered that the material uncertainty had
been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 September 2020. However, in view of the extent of the uncertainty,
the Predecessor Auditor disclaimed their opinion in respect of the material
uncertainty relating to the going concern basis.

BGMC International Limited
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Responsibilities of Directors and those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chu Mei Yue, Michelle
Practising Certificate Number: P05826
Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEBEREMEERRAR

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022
2020510 A1 B E202243 A31 H A

Period from Year
1 October 2020 ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
20205
10H18% BE
2022F 202099 H30H
3A310 4/ IEFE
Notes RM’'000 RM'000
BfaE FHER TMHER
(re-presented)
(ge&:5)
Continuing operations BERSEEK
Revenue W= 8 285,828 190,473
Cost of sales SHEMN A (335,886) (272,425)
Gross loss 8 (50,058) (81,952)
Other income HAnlgA 9 50,742 1,735
Impairment losses of financial assets and PRIEEMERNEEZ
contract assets, net BB R F R 10(a) (13,786) (32,662)
Administrative and other expenses ITE R EMFES (35,491) (34,645)
Other gains/(losses), net Hapezs,/(B518) F5 10(b) 5,370 (50,419)
Finance costs Bh& BN 11 (3,887) (5,353)
Loss before tax from continuing operations R EHFERKE XK CKRFiAIER 13 (47,110) (203,296)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrissitE e, (%) 12 2,421 (5616)
Loss and total comprehensive loss from REBEREERZERR
continuing operations EHEIBHBE (44,689) (208,912)
Discontinued operations BRI EK
(Loss)/profit for the period/year from KEAE,FERE DKL
discontinued operations s (E8),/ %R 16 (14,610) 10,655
Loss and total comprehensive loss for HE EEEER
the period/year THERERE (59,299) (198,257)
Loss and total comprehensive loss UTATEEERSRE, FEBER
for the period/year attributable to: 2HEEBEEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEN
Loss from continuing operations FBICE X 2 B8 (42,190) (204,048)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations BRI EET 2
(E18),/ &7 16 (14,352) 10,505
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RARIEEAR AERER (56,542) (193,543)
Non-controlling interests IR R
Loss from continuing operations RIS E XS 2 B8 (2,499) (4,864)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations BRI ETG 2
(E18),/ 5@ 16 (258) 150
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEVERAR M2 FE (G B 1B (2,757) (4,714)
(59,299) (198,257)
Loss per share SREE
From continuing and discontinued REFER
operations BRI REER
Basic (RM sen) ERNHETHES) 17(a) (3.14) (10.75)
Diluted (RM sen) WEME ) 17(a) (3.14) (10.75)
From continuing operations REFESEER
Basic (RM sen) ERHEFTHFS) 17(b) (2.34) (11.34)
Diluted (RM sen) e (MZHs) 17(b) (2.34) (11.34)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BB R

At 31 March 2022
MR20229F3A318

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
720226 #2020%F
3H31H 9H30H
Notes RM’000 RM'000
BaE FHEF FhER
ASSETS &E
Non-Current Assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEMEE 18 145 235
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 279 18,894
Investment properties WEYE 20 25,188 25,507
Goodwill [EES 21 - -
Investment in an associate R—EBE iR E 22 - -
Investment in redeemable convertible FA BT HE o] A] EHR B SR RIS B
preference shares 23 - 1,708
Intangible assets M| EE 24 1,242 3,556
Trade and other receivables, B o REMBWHIE - Ze Kk
deposits and prepaid expenses ALY 25 = 7,686
Contract assets BHEE 29 - 120,052
Share application monies A1 ER R IR 27 - 2,886
26,854 180,524
Current Assets REBEE
Investment in redeemable convertible A E B AT E R IRE
preference shares 23 5,694 3,986
Inventories FE 28 - 7,720
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B 5N EM Y ERIE
prepaid expenses Ee RBERNEX 25 71,600 80,428
Tax recoverable ATk EF IR 3,902 4324
Contract assets BREE 29 115,519 224,175
Fixed deposits EBIER 30 35,236 39,124
Cash and bank balances R& RIRTTER 31 2,118 5617
234,069 365,374
Assets classified as held for sale DHEAEREREZEE 32 212,396 293,154
446,465 658,528
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e RE
At 31 March 2022
FR2022F3H31H

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
720226 20204
3H31H 9A30H
Notes RM’000 RM'000
M5t THEE TG
Current Liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities GBHBE 29 7,425 5315
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMER A 33 192,291 389,329
Borrowings — secured BE -2 34 2,794 69,286
Share application monies AR R EEFRIE 27 = 54,270
Lease liabilities HEBE 36 264 3,385
202,774 521,585
Liabilities directly associated with WO AFIEHE 2
assets classified as held for sale BEEEZBEENEE 32 124,803 199,367
327,577 720,952
Net current asset/(liabilities) REBEE(BE)EEE 118,888 (62,424)
Total assets less current Liabilities EEABERRBERE 145,742 118,100
Non-Current Liabilities ERBARG
Deferred tax liabilities BT IBEE 26 - 429
Trade payables B S ER A 33 47,897 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 36 161 18,258
48,058 18,687
Net assets BEFE 97,684 99413
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNEEE AEL R
Share capital &4 37 9,862 9,862
Reserves & 38 95,838 94,810
105,700 104,672
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R (8,016) (5,259)
Total equity e ] 97,684 99,413

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2022.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman

PHESESM2022F6 30 A#EZ

£ EKamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Director

5=
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Dato’ Teh Kok Lee

SEBEF
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERmEER

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022

20205E10 B 1A E 202253 A31 B B

Attributable to owners of the Company

LINGE 2N
Redeemable (Accumulated
preference losses)/ Non-
Share Share shares Other retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
TRE (RitEE)/ #iz
Rx  RORE BELREE  HtRE  REERN st WEs  ERAeR
RM'000 RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM000
Tiids  THER  THER  THER TR TR TR T
At 10ctober 2019 #2019%1081A 9862 135,571 - 65,000 56,052 266485 (545) 265940
Issuance of redeemable preference shares  E/TAEBEEER
(Note 27) (Wi27) - - 31730 - - 31730 - 31730
Loss and total comprehensive loss for NEEFER2EEFRAE
the year - - - - (193543) (193583) (4714) (198257)
At 30 September 2020 4202059430 9862 135571 31,730 65,000 (137497) 104672 (5259) 99413
Issuance of redeemable preference shares  E{TRIERIELR
(Note 27) (Wiit27) - - 57570 - - 57570 - 57570
Loss and total comprehensive loss for TEBERZESRAE
the Period - - - - (56,542) (56542) (2757) (59,299)
At31March 2022 #2022530318 9,862 135,571 89,300 65,000 (194,033) 105,700 (8,016) 97,684
FiR 2022 BIAEBRERERDIF 95




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022
2020510 A1 B E202243 A31 H A

Period from

1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
20204
10818 & Bz
2022%F 20204
33188 9A30HILEFE
Notes RM’000 RM'000
BiEE FHEH FHRE R
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Loss before tax from continuing operations SFEBICEZETS 2 BRI R RS 18 (47,110) (203,296)
(Loss)/profit before tax from discontinued BARIHEEER 2
operations BRAEAT(EB), 5 (9,311) 16,926
Adjustments for: KRBT EIE -
Finance costs B RA 11 14,732 18,997
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - BiE K REITE 18 87 3414
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 19 2,725 6,646
Impairment of goodwill EERE 10(b) - 2,155
(Reversal)/impairment of property, Y - BE&
plant & equipment B (EEED,RE 10(b) (6,916) 11,620
(Reversal)/impairment of right-of-use assets FRELE D), RE 10(b) (6,950) 12,016
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 24 2,314 776
Impairment of trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A EWRGRIBRE 10(a) 8,926 13,440
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange REBEINEEE 178 460
Imputed interest income from contract assets BHREEMENEWA 8(d) (32,224) (44,724)
Interest income from bank deposits IRITFRFEUA 9 (1,107) (1,564)
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 10(a) 4,860 19,222
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment Bapd 3V At &) 13 8,173 (763)
Provision for performance bonds JE 4OOR R4 10(b) = 25,797
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAEEE 2 W 10(b) - (531)
Gain on extinguishment of debts B EER R 9 (46,114) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AR ZEE 16 25,684 -
Net gain on derivatives PTHET B FEE 10(b) = (335)
Impairment loss on assets classified as PERABIEHEZ
held for sale BENRERE 13 - 11,150
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEYAIKERERE
in working capital (82,053) (108,594)
Decrease in inventories FERD 7,720 7,720
Decrease in trade and other receivables, B 5 M EH A EWFIR -
deposits and prepaid expenses e RFEMESRD 131,917 61,117
Increase in contract assets BHVEEEM (86,120) (58,775)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables B 5 Fz Efth i 1~ 2018 Ol 4>) 1 41 (60,148) 104,897
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities aHadEEm/ Cad) 2,110 (1,805)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations KE(FRA), /TSI e F5E (86,574) 4,560
Income tax paid BRFEHIA (1,598) (6,623)
Income tax refunded REIFTISTIR 835 8433
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESEE (PR,
operating activities FriS3a < F 58 (87,337) 6,370
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=] iﬁ%l)lb;%

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022
2020610 A 1B E202246F3 A31 B HAf

Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
20204
10818 & 3=
20224 20204
33188 9A30HILEFE
Notes RM’000 RM'000
FaE FHEH FHRE R
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Interest received BUF B 1,107 1,564
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME - BB L& HE - (119)
Proceed from disposal of property, uﬂ%%ﬁ 5 K
plant and equipment B Ikt 1,052 905
Proceed from disposal of right-of-use assets S AEEEMSHKIA 77 3,096
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties  H & 18 & W% Fr 15 0B 319 -
Proceed from disposal of subsidiary, &R B A R AT IR
net of cash and cash equivalents BEHNBRRERIBEE f’i% 16 88,660 -
Proceed from disposal of intangible assets & BB E TS R - 1373
Redemption of RCPS A& [0 7] & [B] AT 82 0B S iR = 16,350
Placement of restricted bank balances TR EIIRI T84 (18,878) -
Placement of pledged and restricted fixed deposits 172 35 3 K 2[R I & EATE 7k (2,521) (17,766)
Withdrawal of pledged and restricted fixed deposits  $2EX 2 K 7 K2 52 bR %Il 7E ER1E X 35,822 7467
Net cash generated from investing activities WEEEFSRESFE 105,638 12,870
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Interest paid ERFE (12,928) (17,472)
Lease interests paid BHEEFRE (1,804) (1,525)
New borrowings raised EENR 52,015 113,882
Repayment of borrowings BEEN (59,344) (158,928)
Repayment of lease liabilities HERBEERXK (4,258) (6/453)
Decrease in bank overdrafts RITERD (2,619) (6,284)
Increase in other payables FL A FE - SRIBIE AN 33(@a) 8,800 -
Advances from an associate 5?%@ LS = 5144
Receipts of share application monies WER B {7 FREE 7K IR - 48,770
Net cash used in financing activities mE EBFTHIR G F5E (20,138) (22,866)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMER

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022

202010 A1 H £20224-3 31 H HifE

Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
20204
10818 Z BHZE
20224 20205
3A31AHE 9A3HLEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHELE FHRE R
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERREEEMRD RHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,837) (3,626)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R/ FHORER
AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD/YEAR ReZEY 12,701 16,787
Effect of foreign exchange rates INISTE R 7 58 (178) (460)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RE/ FREER
AT END OF PERIOD/YEAR REZEEY 10,686 12,701
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year are determined as follows: H/ FRAECKESSEMETHOT ¢
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
H2022% 20204
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHERE FHRER
Cash and bank balances in the consolidated ERE IISARR R B
statement of financial position H& MIBIT4E% 2,118 5617
Cash and bank balances included STARBESEATNEEEZ
in assets classified as held for sale W& RIRTTHER 54 7,084
Fixed deposits with licensed banks RFFREERTITHYE BRfE 3K 35,236 57,424
Less: Restricted bank balances W ZRBIRITAE R (18,899) (9.997)
Restricted fixed deposits BRIl E BiTF 3K (2,761) (24,659)
Pledged fixed deposits EEREHEFER (5,062) (22,768)
10,686 12,701

BGMC International Limited




1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General and Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 9 August 2017. The Company was incorporated as
an exempted company and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 18 November 2016.

The addresses of the Company's registered office and principal place of
business are Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and A-3A-02, Block A, Level 3A, Sky Park One
City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia,
respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Since Prosper International Business Limited and Seeva International
Limited are parties acting in concert with each other with respect to their
interests in or the business of the relevant members of the Group, both of
them are considered as the ultimate parent undertakings of the Company.

Change in Financial Year End

In November 2021, the Directors of the Company resolved to change the
financial year end date from 30 September to 31 March in order to provide
a more meaningful basis for shareholders and investors to understand and
evaluate the Group's financial results, given that the Group's construction
operation has been impeded by COVID-19 and Movement Control Order
("MCQO") during the period from 1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021 and
the Group's operation level has improved since September 2021 as a result
of relaxation of MCO restrictive measures on construction activities. Also,
changing the financial year end to 31 March 2022 is preferable as compared
to changing to calendar year end (i.e. 31 December 2021) because it will
avoid a competition of resources in the preparation of the announcement
of annual results ending calendar year end.

The consolidated financial statements now presented cover a period of
eighteen months from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022. Accordingly,
the comparative figures (which cover a period of twelve months from 1
October 2019 to 30 September 2020) for the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes
are not comparable with those of the current period.

1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

AT REETERSBREE

3. Application of New and Revised International 3.

100 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Financial Reporting Standards
Adoption of Amendments to IFRSs

During the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 (the “Period"),
the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have applied
the following new and amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") and International Accounting Standards (‘lASs") issued
by the International Accounting Standard Board ("IASB”) that are relevant
to the operations to the Group and are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 October 2020:

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39
and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the “Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards” and the amendments to IFRSs in the current
period has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the Period and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

New standards and amendments to standards in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments*
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 20212

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to International Interpretation 5

(2020)*

Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies*

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Amendments to I1AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction*

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

P

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact
of adopting the above new and amendments to IFRSs and IASs. So far,
it has concluded that the above new and amendments IFRSs and IASs
will be adopted at the respective effective dates and the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4, TEESTBEME
(a) Statement of compliance (a) EHREH

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in SZAEUBHRERBRIEA G R &R
accordance with all applicable IFRSs, which comprise International LEHRE  HBIERBR T SHRE%ER
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"); International Accounting (BB E|mEED ) » HE a2
Standards (“IAS"); and Interpretations. For the purpose of preparation (TERSHER ) R2E - ARJGEE
of the consolidated financial statements, information is considered B HmEK  HENASEERETEFERE
material if such information is reasonably expected to influence FriERs - BIMBEERMR BEX o b
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated HEMBREMNABEBMEZIFMERA
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the AEE MR EHRA D EEERF
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange IR E 2 i AR -

(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial (b) HFEMBBRRERERE

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the Period comprise the HEAPRNEEVBHRERBEEARA L

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. ERTB AR FSHRE o

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the REERE %Zﬁm&#fﬁﬁﬁﬁ BEZIEE

Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic HUZEREECIERERR CE

environment in which the entity operates (the “functional ([ThEEEHE FTE - BARFEME FF ([

currency’). Malaysian Ringgit ("RM") is the Company’s functional S DARNATINEEEE L AREFBZYE

currency and the Group's presentation currency. o

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the REVTEHRREIRRBEL AR RS -

historical cost basis except for the use of fair value basis for investment MEFLIR & WD 3 N 3R] B (o] Al HA AR 48 SE IR IR

properties and investments in redeemable convertible preference B AT EERERI -

shares.

Reclassification due to discontinued operations FEALLREXEMEHIE

On 24 March 2022, BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (“BGMC 720223 A 248 + BGMC Corporation Sdn.

Corporation”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Bhd.([ BGMC Corporation | * 7x A 7]

entered into a deed of arrangement (‘“Deed of Arrangement’) with 2 EMB AT BB % = F5reNIKOLA Sdn.

reNIKOLA Sdn. Bhd. (“reNIKOLA"), an independent third party, to Bhd.([ reNIKOLA |) T3 & BEZ 5 ([ Z HE

dispose of the interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power 24 |) - LAHEBGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd.

Sdn. Bhd. ("‘BGMC Bras Power”). As at 31 March 2022, the Directors ([ BGMC Bras Power | ) £ 95% & i i 1

believe the disposal is highly probable and the net carrying value of o R202F3A31H EERAHEN

the relevant assets and liabilities of BGMC Bras Power be recovered A AE 1R K+ T BGMC Bras Power 9 4H 3

principally through sale rather than through continuing use. QE&EEWEEE@TEEE}%}BH:'%W#

Accordingly, as at 31 March 2022, the assets and liabilities attributable Lﬂ@ EfEAUE - Bt - 72022534

to BGMC Bras Power have been reclassified as held for sale as at 318 + BB BGMC Bras PowerfI B E M B
1 March 2022 and presented the result of BGMC Bras Power as EEA2O22¢BH3 BEHHERFELD

discontinued operations. £ + WHSBGMC Bras Powert) 4B 25 A

BRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEHME(E)
(continued)

(b) FEMBHREREE(K)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Reclassification due to discontinued operations (continued)

On 16 November 2020, the Group announced to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. ("KAS Engineering”)
at the consideration of RM93,787,000. As at 30 September 2020, the
Directors believed the disposal was highly probable and the net
carrying value of the relevant assets and liabilities of KAS Engineering
be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing
use. Accordingly, as at 30 September 2020, the assets and liabilities
attributable to KAS Engineering had been reclassified as held for sale as
at 30 September 2020 and presented the result of KAS Engineering as
discontinued operations.

The results of BGMC Bras Power for the Period and KAS Engineering
for the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021 (date of disposal)
are presented separately as one line-item below loss and total
comprehensive loss from continuing operations as “discontinued
operations” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have
been re-presented as “discontinued operations”.

The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of cash flows were not
re-presented. Further details of financial information of the
discontinued operations are set out in Notes 16 and 32.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held-for-sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
(see Note 4(q)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

HE &L EE XK EH 28 (E)

M2020F 11 H168 » ZREBETHURE
93,787,000K & ' L & KAS Engineering Sdn.
Bhd. ([ KAS Engineering |) 8] 2 [ B 1T
BEA o FR2020F9A30H  EERALE
B AT BEMEIR K » MKAS Engineering Y 48 8
BEMABENERDFEZIERBLEMmIE
FBAEBE R o Bt - R2020%9 A
30H + BRBFKAS Engineering & E K &
BEER2020F9A30BEF H AT IEH
£ W H5KAS Engineering & 25 A
IR AR TS o

BGMC Bras Power 7 7 Hj f#l & KAS
Engineering72020F 10 A 1 B £202146 A
NE(HEEH)BRANEETHGEEERR
HEM2EBRARS @ RREFELEER
ZERMTHEHEBEREET —[EEEEE2
FIRIBERILEEER] - e BmREM
ZEHBARZERBEFESE RIEKILE
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4. FESTHBEREE(E)

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial (b) #HREMKERRFERELE(E)
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statements (continued)

Reclassification due to discontinued operations (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect in the consolidated financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year
are disclosed in Note 5.

Going Concern Assumption

During the Period, the Group incurred a loss of approximately
RM59,299,000 and net cash used in operating activities of
approximately RM87,337,000. These events or conditions indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Nevertheless, the Directors of the Company have adopted the
going concern basis in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements based on the following:—

() BGMC Corporation has entered into the reNIKOLA Advance
Agreement on 24 March 2022 and the Supplemental reNIKOLA
Advance Agreement on 13 May 2022 (Collectively known as
“Advance Agreements”’) with reNIKOLA, an independent
third party, who will purchase interest in 95% ordinary shares in
BGMC Bras Power, another indirect subsidiary of the Company
(as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27 June
2022). reNIKOLA shall advance a loan of RM49,900,000 to
BGMC Corporation for the sole purpose of BGMC Corporation
advancing a loan of RM49,900,000 to BGMC Bras Power to
(i) fulfill the terms and conditions under the Power Purchase
Agreement dated 27 March 2018 entered into between Tenaga
Nasional Berhad and BGMC Corporation; (i) pay the contractors
of BGMC Bras Power and (iii) pay the sums due and payable by
BGMC Bras Power under the sukuk bond programme. As of the
date the consolidated financial statements have been authorised
for issue, RM47,781,000 has been advanced from reNIKOLA for
the above purposes;

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(H)
(continued)

(b) FREMBHRREREE(H)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Going Concern Assumption (continued)

(i) a controlling shareholder has agreed to provide continuing
financial support to the Group for at least twelve months from
the date the consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue;

(iii)  repayment from customers of RM26,200,000 which were under
dispute but settlement is expected to be received in the next
twelve months; and

(iv) completion of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power to reNIKOLA.

The basis for preparation of the consolidated financial statements
on going concern assumption is therefore dependent on financing
from reNIKOLA, repayment from customers, disposal of BGMC Bras
Power, continuous financial support from a controlling shareholder,
its lenders, clients and creditors and the operations of the Group to
generate sufficient cash flows in the future to fulfil its obligation as
and when they fall due.

In the event that these conditions are not forthcoming, the Group may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
may require adjustments relating to the realisable amount and
classification of recorded assets and to provide for further liabilities
that may be necessary should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern.

The Directors of the Group are of the opinion that the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going
concern basis remains appropriate as the Group will obtain the
financing from reNIKOLA for BGMC Bras Power and the continuous
financial support from a controlling shareholder, the lenders and
creditors which will enable the Group to operate in the foreseeable
future, and accordingly, realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.
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e MR RRME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries from 1 October 2020 to 31 March
2022. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and
any related accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured
at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company'’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the
goodwill.
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e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBFEME(HE)

(continued)

(d) Business combination and goodwill (continued) (d) ¥¥EHREE(E)
If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in MR B AR AR AR 2 BEEE
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income BEREMEEKRA (IR AFEGT AR
(for example, equity investments at fair value through other 2B AR RIEE) AER - BIER
comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised in other Hih 2ERAER 2 @B IRELAFE
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as would be 2 MRS AR R R FE R E 2 AR R B i
required if the previously held equity interest were disposed of. e
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if EEGFETRENR  KESHIER
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. SRR A BB ER B B S ST
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. BRI, - B NIENAR R TR EEE
The method of measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same R o MmBREEEIEREETXE
as that of “impairment of assets” as stated in the accounting policy TR AT B ERE] 25T 25 AMER °
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated FﬁégE’Jﬁfﬁ)@ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁ_&wﬁﬁ%ﬂf\@
profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated RE&ER - BUREARMS - EeR
to cash-generating units ("CGU") that are expected to benefit from SEEEHERE 2 BRMETER ZH
the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing. SELEM((REEESEN]) -
The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured M B AR 2 IEERR I R 2 - VIR IRIE
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net AR AR R U B E R R AR L 151 FE A B BB
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the NEIZABRNEERBBEZATEFER
acquisition date. £

(e) Associates (e) BELQT
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence. BE AR RAEEHHENERTZE N2
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and B -EAFENIR—HEBCHBR
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint EERRBE2EERNIFHZFRRE
control over those policies. The existence and effect of potential BIEHIS R - RATEARERES
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including BBERTZE N - §EEBERIA{TED
potential voting rights held by other entities, are considered when AR BERER(BIEAMERER
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In assessing ZETRER) 2 HFERZE - RFHHE
whether a potential voting right contributes to significant influence, TRERSERTENEATENR  FEA
the holder's intention and financial ability to exercise or convert that TR BRZEN B R R EE T
right is not considered. TERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. TEETBERBEA)

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(e) Associates (continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together with the investment
at the end of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss
of significant influence represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's share of
the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating

(e)
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translation reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an _JZ&:\“ (REZNRIZIRE » BIARE
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity SHERREDTE B TZEHTER

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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e MR RRME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation

a)

b)

110 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RM, which is the Company’s presentation
currency and the functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group.

Transactions and balances in financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (continued)

<)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company's
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

e MR RRME
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e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBFEME(HE)

(continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment () W% BERRXE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated Y~ HEMEEEKANERZFTITER
depreciation and impairment losses. REEEYIER
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or BB R R BIEIR Al fE BN E B 75 R B2
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable THE BRI AR REER = - TazE B B
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to KA EAER  TREEEENEREEAE
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other SERE—HEBEE(EMR) - TEE
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the HEENREBR  REABEEERZN
period in which they are incurred. R o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates VI - BB MERBUE SRR R AMEE
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the AR TR BEZ LR - st EHRGEA]
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The property, plant and FERFHZITE - ME - MEKMREIIZ
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following TONFEREABSETE -

rates per annum:

Furniture and fittings 10% — 20% ERENSE T 10%Z20%
Computers and software 20% — 33% EF PGS 2092 33%
Machinery and site equipment 10% - 20% MR K2 35 1 28 18 10%Z20%
Motor vehicle 20% N 20%
Office equipment 20% MAERE 20%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed REBERES RIS BT AERGRE
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. B A[ERFRRFERE(WER) -
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the HEWE  MEMRENEEEEME
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount FIEFEREBEAENREBE CHNE
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss. 5 WRIBRARER -

(h) Investment properties (h) BEWE
Investment properties are buildings held to earn rentals. An KREYEDFERIES Z2ET - REY
investment property is measured initially at its cost including all direct XU HRERN (BREMERGFAEEE
costs attributable to the property. RA)ETE o
After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair VT HERIZ  IWEYMEBRIBINER L (HE
value based on valuation by an external independent valuer. Gains or EER RS EZRE QAT EDIER - 8=
losses arising from changes in fair value of the investment property ANEEEHEEZWESBEEREEE 2
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise. HARIE B R o
The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the HEREYENEE AL EMSHIEFEE
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount BZWEZRME =5 0 WHNER
of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss. FRERR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

Leases

The group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated
at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

7% - 50%
25% - 50%
25% - 50%

Land and buildings
Machinery
Motor vehicles

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid,
initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less.

The group as lessor

Operating lease

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBFEME(HE)

(continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill) () BEEEEEBRRMN)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial & 51 U BE B £ T2 = A ) 25 RE SR B AR AR AR
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business B - BMBEERBE RSB EENK
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives KEWEBHEHATE BEEEZAE
of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with FFER TR BEIRER - Al{EAFEHER
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life MELEERBENIFEREEFHRNE
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the 8 WAHE R R BMRBREFLEE
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the HIRAE - BIRAIFEATFHNEREEN
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are BHE RS ZEOREBEVBFER
reviewed at least at each financial year end. BEf—IR o
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are B EERKARERRERBEYIRE - I
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, ABE &R ER I EHE A E R E# S -

(k) Inventories k) FE
The cost of unsold completed units is stated at the lower of cost and AR R T B A7 BB AR BARK AR Ko ] B3R 5%
net realisable value. EmEPOEIEE AR -
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for A IR R ERFETETHEBRBETE
inventories less all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary W T AT AFISH S TR AN o

to make the sale.

(I) Service concession arrangements () BREBHFHR
A portion of the Group's assets are used within the framework of AEFEH D EEZBEREHRERELZ S
IFRIC Interpretation 12, “Service Concession Arrangements”. The SREE 125 RIS Ha IWIERMmE
characteristics of the service concession arrangement generally A BB HENFEREARTAR
provide, directly or indirectly, for grantor involvement in the B2 A TR R E R - ARE
determination of the service and its remuneration, and the return of BHTERFBITIRE VN ENEE[R -

the assets necessary to the performance of the service at the end of
the contract.

In order to fall within the scope of concession contract, a contract ATBREFEHNHE 240 ERE

must satisfy the following two criteria: VAT R ER 2

-  the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator —  RRAEHISKERLEENBENAE
must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide B MEIR Y RTS - BEREHA
them, and at what price; and T URREHREOES &

- the grantor controls the significant residual interest in the —  BRRAELHEHIRR A R R I B RS
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement. MR EE K I pp RS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

U]

Service concession arrangements (continued)

Such infrastructure is not recognised in assets of the operator as
property, plant and equipment but in financial assets (‘financial asset
model”) depending on the remuneration commitments given by the
grantor.

On 27 March 2018, BGMC Bras Power entered into a Renewable
Energy Power Purchase Agreement (‘REPPA”") with Tenaga Nasional
Berhad (“TNB") for 21 years commencing upon the fulfillment of the
Condition Precedent set out in the REPPA. The Directors consider that
the term of a concession arrangement for the operation of a solar
photovoltaic energy generating facility is 21 years, which coincides
with its estimated useful life. This arrangement is within the scope
of IFRIC 12 as Suruhanjaya Tenaga Energy Commission controls and
regulates BGMC to sell to TNB with the infrastructure at a fixed price
per kilowatt hour.

Financial asset model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from the
grantor.

In the case of concession services, the operator has such an
unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the
payment of:

- amounts specified or determined in the contracts; or

- the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of
the public service and amounts specified or determined in the
contract.

The fair value of a concession asset received as consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession arrangement
is estimated by reference to the fair value of the construction
services provided. The fair value is calculated as the estimated total
construction cost plus a profit margin, which the Group evaluates and
determined to be a reasonable margin earned.

Concession assets resulting from the service concession are recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position under contract
assets and are amortised using a rate of return specific to the assets
to give a constant periodic rate of return on the financial asset in each
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(m) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

(n)

116 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- Investments at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL").

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(n) Financial Assets (continued)

(i

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade, loans and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit
losses.

Investments at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not
meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and
the conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value
with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest income
and dividend income. Interest income and dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss.cost. When these instrument
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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e MR RRME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

118 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective
risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of that financial instrument ("lifetime expected
credit losses”) for trade receivables and contract assets, or if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables and contract assets) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on that financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)
(continued)

(q 27EARFFELHECEERCRILEE

(q) Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued

operations

Assets or disposal group are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the assets or disposal group are
available for immediate sale in their present condition. The Group
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Assets or disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of the assets’ or disposal group’s previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest
of the Group and which represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to

fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued operation.
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e MR RRME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

120 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a significant
financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance;

- The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- The Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.
Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBFEME(HE)

(continued)
(x) Employee benefits x) EEEF
() Shortterm employee benefits (i) EHEEERN
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are I8 % ReMdeREHTRE
recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which the AEE E B IR AR RS RE R
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. ERAERS -
(ii) Defined contribution plan (i) REMNKEE
As required under the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 of BIESHEAD19IFREEAESES
Malaysia (the "EPF Act 1991"), the Group makes contribution to (M9 FREERAEEZES])  ~&
the employee provident fund scheme (the “EPF Scheme”) for BAEERATSENEEREER
employees employed in Malaysia. The EPF Scheme is a defined Beitgl([EELBRSE DHER -
contribution retirement plan that requires both the employers BERAESTE R —EERKEKAI
and employees in Malaysia make monthly contributions, which MEEMEEEGAREEATESHE
the monthly contributions are determined based on the rates BT R EEFGRRETE - B A
set out in the third schedule of the EPF Act 1991. No forfeited HERIRIE 1991 ERE ATELESH
contributions may be used to reduce the existing level of REFPFMERET  HRUAHR
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations AT BIERIEIR B HEOKE - R&E
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are EAESNHREEEE - NRE
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. F o AP AR TR AR B 1R A5
Sli °
(y) Borrowing cost (y) BERE
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or s BESIHEEREREERIFTE—
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take BREFEAAESMERRHENE
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, E)EEERONEEKASBIEXZSEE
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the A EEEERNH A EEE Agsk
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment HERAL - LWEFERIEEGEREERY 2
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings BEEEEEMNEERERMAKRERA
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the WEBRERCAEER AR -
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the R —RERRBERIGEEREEME
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing AZEEME @  AERBRERZEERK
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a KEBIIGEANRZEEZHSZERERNE
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation L RAE - ERMERTERRAEBEER
rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to (PN EBERARAERE) ZEREAZ N
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, BEHE - SR AERESEREEmME
other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining H 2 [EFRBIBRIN
a qualifying asset.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period FrEEMEEKRAREEBENIBERE

in which they are incurred. R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(2)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the financial
period. Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss)/profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the end of reporting period
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any, is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(2)
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)

(continued)

(aa) Segment reporting (aa) 2 2]
Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported LaDE R P ERERANAERN S D8
in the financial statements are identified from the financial information BRE%  NBEBRAEENRSITHE
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management BAEBTFHEFRUNEERAAEENRMHZE
for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the performance B RBEIEDEE R NG E LSS MR
of the Group's various lines of business. HH RO TEE R o
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for FEREEMNRKED IS FHETH ISR
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar o BINRZELE D IBRE R IEA LR
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of EEFEWHEWE’J’E? EETFOED -
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type ZEER S E ﬁiﬁ?&j SR ARG FT
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or {5 E’\]ﬁ/éiu\&%%i;%fﬁa’j L - 8l
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. YERIER © 1}“3'J3F§7(E’]?§%% [ anREF
Operating segments which are not individually material may be & PRI FAE - BIRETE 0TS -

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(bb) Related parties (bb) BBE R
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. RES AEAEEGEE ATHERE -
(R) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to (A) BUATAL BIZALTHZALTRE
the Group if that person: MTHRPK B BN (B B R
() has control or joint control over the Group; () Pl RIS AR
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEHEATE =%
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the iy BAAQNBKANABF AR ZE
Company or of a parent of the Company. EERENE
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4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(bb) Related parties (continued)

(B)
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An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the entities comprising the Group are
members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to a parent of the Company.

BGMC International Limited
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e MR RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)

(continued)
(bb) Related parties (continued) (bb) BEE TS (&)
(B) (continued) (B) (&)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the Group and include:—

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

(cc) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets, except goodwill,
investment properties, deferred tax assets, investments, inventories
and receivables to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBFEME(HE)
(continued)

(cc) EERIE(R)

(cc) Impairment of assets (continued)
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If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

(dd) Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
is remote.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(ee) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group's position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Directors have made
the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the financing from
reNIKOLA, repayment from customers, disposal of BGMC Bras Power,
continuous financial support from a controlling shareholder, its lenders,
clients and creditors and the operations of the Group. Details are explained
in Note 4 to financial statements.
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5. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates 5. = A5 %6 R 45t (&)

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty st THEENEERIR

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of R EARBBARKDEZREZ LT HHA

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a HAENEMTERR  RAgeBHEENEE

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of REEAR T A RFEEELREAE &

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. R o

a) Construction contracts with customers a) EBEFEFEEN
As revenue from on-going construction contracts are recognised AR EEEANMEBRER — RIS
over time, the amount of revenue recognised at the reporting date R BTEKBYEANIEE  Kkae®
depends on the extent to which the performance obligation has been RIRE B HIER - B BIB T T #E
satisfied. This is performed by determining the stage of completion. 1T STERKPEERIZ LIS F - BIARIEE S
The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that contract BAEEtRE R ANBE BITIEFMELR
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total BHAEBIME ©

contract costs.

Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of REE TR ER - FTE S & QIR H) 12
completion, the extent of the contract costs incurred, the estimated E - (HET RS RN R EERIE R KA
total revenue and total costs and the recoverability of the construction IR AN By BT Y [B] 74 55, 5 B E K HIET - IAME
project and contract cost. In making these judgements, management HEBHER  ERERBBTSHNME
relies on past experience and, if necessary, the work of specialists. ROTE(MBETE) o
Where the total actual revenue and cost incurred are different from W BRI S NPT AN R RE A R PAEET
the total estimated revenue and cost incurred, such difference will Wz M ETEAEK AR  BEERETE
impact the contract profit or loss recognised. BRI E Lm 5k EE

b) Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets b) BEZEWFERENEERE
The ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed B HRWZIBBMNENEENTBHREEEE
individually for customers with significant balances and/or collectively HAEBAESHNEPEBITERTIE &
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. Where the Group SFEAEE D AN BB EEEITERET
uses simplified approach in calculating allowance of ECL for trade it o MAKBEEAEE HRKFIEMEG L
receivables and contract assets, the ECL rate is determined based on BENEHEZEEERERREABABLA
the management’s assessment on the individual customer’s credit % RITEHAEEEEL R IREREEER
risk grading dependent on the customer’s financial performance, BEEEERBAATHETE ERTEF
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic BERI[NMTE  RIEBEEHFABEFTRZ - @
conditions at the reporting date that is available without undue cost ERHRBAEBRSZNARNEE NG ERE
or effort, including time value of money where appropriate. At each AR (B EEEEAE(HER))HA
reporting date, the ECL rate is remeasured. The allowance for ECL B NEHRERE - BHEEFIBLXRE
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic AT E - HHEEBBEESI KA RTE
conditions and consequently, may not be representative of customers’ BB BB E - Al - RgERE
actual default in the future. RREPEBRER -
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5. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

<)

d)

e)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group assesses whether there is any indication that property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset
with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is measured
at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell for that asset and its
value-in-use. The value-in-use is the net present value of the projected
future cash flow derived from that asset discounted at an appropriate
discount rate. Projected future cash flows are calculated based on
historical sector and industry trends, general market and economic
conditions, changes in technology and other available information.
Changes to any of these assumptions would affect the amount of
impairment.

During the Period, a reversal of impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to RM13,866,000
was recognised as certain previously-impaired property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets were disposed of during the
Period. No further impairment was recognised during the Period.

Provision for liquidated ascertained damages (“LAD”)

Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
provision for LAD in respect of construction contracts to be made. The
Group evaluates the amount of provision required based on the past
experience, industry norm and the results from mitigating measures
taken by the Group such as requesting extension of time to complete
the affected projects and waive their LAD claim. Where the actual
outcomes are deviates from the expected outcome and that there
are wide range of possible outcomes, a material provision for LAD
may arise. During the Period, LAD expenses of RM54,799,000 (2020:
RM22,310,000) have been recognised as reduction in revenue.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
values are measured using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include the discounted cash flows method, credit models and other
relevant valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
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e MR RRME

5. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
f)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their judgment and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

6. Financial Risk Management

The Group’s major financial instruments include investment in redeemable
preference shares, trade and other receivables, fixed deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign
currency risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how the Group mitigates
these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities.

(b) Creditrisk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end of each
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables
and retention receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits for customers. Limit
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of IFRS
9 on trade balances individually. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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e MR RRME

6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

6. MXEAMEE(H)
(b) FERERE)

The Group's internal credit rating assessment comprises the following AEEBNATEETRTEHBEATE

categories: Bl

Internal Credit Trade receivables/ Other financial

Rating Description contract assets assets

E S EWE

RERMS EFTAR A BREE Hitem&EE

Good Debtor’s financial information is positive with low risk Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
of default and frequently repay before due date and credit-impaired
do not have any past-due historically

BR EHEANPMBERBER - EHNERRE  BLEERE 2HEREEERE 2EAEREEER
HAHRIEN - B E T EHRIE —WEEERE

Fair Certain debtor’s financial information is negative Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
though information developed internally or external credit-impaired credit-impaired
sources with no history of bad debts or debtors
frequently repay and settle after due date

Ri#f BE NI RIRFTEE RN MR ARRCSH - BSA 2 HEHEERE 2HEREEER
E’Jﬁﬁxéfﬂ%fﬁlﬁ FEBALERIHARER —UWEEERE —WEEERE

SEARE/SE

Marginal There have been no information on debtors’ Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
financial performance and debtors frequently repay credit-impaired credit-impaired
and settle after due date

—R WEEREBAMBRENER - EFALERIE 2HEBEEEE 2HEREEEE
HIgER B TR —WEEERE —WEEERE

Weak The information of the debtors’ financial performance is Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
negative and have historical bad debts with the Group credit-impaired credit-impaired

RiE ERAMBRRNENBEN  BERAEERGER 2 HEMEERE 2HEREEEHR

—WEEERE —WEEERE

Poor There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic credit-impaired credit-impaired
prospect of recovery

TR BERABEBABAREN A - mAKEREZ EEMEEEE 2HEEEER
W Bl I B & BEERE —BEERE

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management of the

Group has taken into account the historical default experience and

forward-looking information, as appropriate, for example, the Group

has considered the consistently low default rate in connection with

payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group's

outstanding receivables is insignificant.

The credit risks on fixed deposits and bank balances are limited

because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

REEE R UK TR E SRR - A
SEEE O MBEENRR LA

BR(aniE A

: 1§IJ§DZIK%IE%J‘EEEHEA
HENFEREEDNX) -

E/L/\EJZ'SE.

R EORES /S BT 2

;EO

AR B T AMER TR T
BIEERMEBIT - AEEERERRR

THEBOEERBRAR -
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MBEMREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE(E)
The tables below detail the credit exposure of the Group’s financial TRFAME I A EEBETEIEZEEIE
assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: FENERMEERSNEENEERR

Gross carrying  Gross carrying

amount amount
SREE RHEE
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
20225 F2020%F
3A31H 9H30H
Notes  Internal Credit Rating 12-month or Lifetime ECL RM’000 RM'000
Wit WEMEERTR REA%EHEHEERE FHER THER
Trade receivables (Note 1) 25  Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 40,529 62,763
BB RNGIA(H721) BR FHESEERE-UEEERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 5,239 8,463
RyF FHESEERE-UEEERE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit impa\red 1,718 1
— FHEREEEE - TRESRE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not cred|t |mpa\red 3,842 5017
REE FHEHEEEE - VREERHE
Poor Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 21,856 1,030
TR PHEREEFE-AGEERE
Retention receivables (Note 1) 25 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - 9,743
JENURE © (M5t 1) BR FHRBEEFE-UEEERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - [
Rif FHESBEEFE-UEEERE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit- impaired 3,490 266
REE FHEREEEE - TREERE
Poor Lifetime ECL - not cred|t |mpa\red 385 -
TR FHEREEEE - TREERE
Other receivables 25 Good 12-month ECL 11,422 10,779
B YR B AR EE
Contract assets (Note 1) 29 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 46,175 184,217
BNEEMT) BR FHEREERE - TEEERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 54,353 39,230
Rif P HEBEEFE - UEEERE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 188 -
—R FHESEERE-UEEERE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 14,803 728
REE FHEREEERE - TREERAE
Poor Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 25,114 20,254
TR FHRHEEERE-AGENE
Fixed deposits 30 Good 12-month ECL 35,236 39,124
THER BR REAEHEERRE
Cash and bank balances 31 Good 12-month ECL 2,118 5617
R e MIRITHEER BR 2MEAEREEEE
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6. MXEAMEE(H)
(b) FERERE)

6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

Note 1:  For trade and retention receivables and contract assets, the Group has Biatr - BB SERFERERRESARENE
applied the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance Ems @ AEED ERBRIT RS
at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these Bommit A 22 MAREEEE
items based on individual assessment. KB 1B o NEBIRRER G AR EZ

FHEAMBHEEEBE -

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade and other receivables and contract assets
under simplified approach.

TEREFHRBEBEIANE S REME
WA RANEBEMERN S HBEREE
EBREE) -

Lifetime ECL

Lifetime ECL

(not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEH
FEEER 2 HATEH
(WEEE BEEEE
RE) (EERE) #Et
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEE TG R FHhE SR
At 1 October 2019 720195 10H 1H 1,402 1,462 2,864
Impairment losses recognised BERBESE 32,230 432 32,662
At 30 September 2020 and 20209 H308 &

1 October 2020 20209108 1H 33,632 1,894 35,526
Transfer to credit impaired EBREE(EERE (33,632) 33,632 -
Impairment losses recognised ERERRERE 2,342 11,444 13,786
At 31 March 2022 202293 A31H 2,342 46,970 49,312

(c) Liquidity risk () RBEEEE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and REERDESRRE  ~SE2EER

maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. As at 31 March 2022, the Group
has available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
RM30,027,000 (2020: RM144,061,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from prevailing market interest rates at the end of each reporting
period.

BREMRESEBMHRFTRERERAT
BZKF - BN AREE 2 &8 REIR
EREFBZFE - P2022F3H318 -
REEABANARSARITEEREN A
30,027,000 & 45 (20205 1 144,061,000 K
FH) ©

TRHAMAEEFTESREBEBENRTS
WEIHER - TRIEREMAGBEZRMEA
REMEUTEEETEE 2 &F A H ﬁ
B o TRBPFBREMEARE o WFLEA
FEFEGE - RMBRBBASTRSE IR
ZE TG ERFE -
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MBEMREE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () RBESEAMR(E)
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the BEAEESHEBEZ ARBEREREEREE
Group's financial liabilities is as follows: HEERAAT T
Weighted
average Ondemand Total Total
effective or within Over undiscounted carrying
interestrate 1year 1 year cash flows amount
MR REREER REEH
BERAE  fIFLUR BE1F RERELH RREAE
At 31 March 2022 M202263H31H % RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
% THER FHEE FHER THEE
Trade and other payables 5 NE M ENFIE - 173,476 63,964 237,440 237,440
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.65 341 180 521 425
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 2,794 - 2,794 2,794
176,611 64,144 240,755 240,659
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Total
effective or within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
T REREER AR
BRFIE  SOFEUR BRF Henses RHEAE
At 30 September 2020 7420209 A30H % RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
% FHER FHER FHER FHER
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM IR - 338,123 48541 386,664 386,664
Lease liabilities ME&RE 632 4619 26,038 30,657 21,643
Borrowings B 5.95 76,148 - 76,148 69,286
418,890 74,579 493,469 477,593
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MEREMREE(E)

(d) Interest rate risk

(d) FR@EE

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as certain of its
bank balances and borrowings are subject to floating interest rates.
Management considers any significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
its fixed-rate bank deposits and borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to floating interest rates for borrowings at the end of the reporting
period and assumed the amounts outstanding at the end of this
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year and held
constant throughout the financial year. If interest rates on interest
bearing borrowings were 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the loss for the Period would increase/
decrease by approximately RM171,000 (2020: RM231,000).

The above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk because the period/year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the period.

AR B S TR R A BT B
KiHR - MAEETAEAS REFIEME
% o B EESEREBEAEAFIEAE

AEETEREE N EF BORTER R
EEMAR N FENEER -

BRE DT IR S AR B F B X
BRETE - WERRNARES RO REE
SHEARFNAEEANEZEATREER
BAE - Wt BEEMNFIE LR T#E50
EEZ - MATEEMEEHRETE - AR
HA PSS 18 G 35 00, TR > £9171,000 7K T R
(2020%F : 231,000/FF4%) o

30 B0 4 oK B e T B 40 I R BB D P
% IGEE A IR T R R E G Rl

o8 o
ZN
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MBEMREE(E)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 March 2022 and (e) 72022%3H31HK%2020F9H30H
30 September 2020 HEmITEER
At amortised At amortised

cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL
RATE BRAE
R sFABE  REHEAR FFAEZE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 30 September 30 September
2022 2022 2020 2020

20224 H20224%F 20204 20204

3A31H 38318 9H30H 9H30H

Financial assets SREE RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEH FHEE THERF TMHER

Trade and other receivables E 5 K H b fE R IE
(including cash and cash (BERERREESED)
equivalents) 220,680 - 475,068 -
Investment in redeemable 7 7] (2] A S (B S A
convertible preference shares I E - 5,694 - 5,694
220,680 5,694 475,068 5,694
At amortised At amortised
cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL
BAYE BEAEE
2 1 68 AR AR sFABE  REHEAR FFAEE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 30 September 30 September
2022 2022 2020 2020

20224 H2022%F 20204 20204

38318 38318 9H30H 9H30H

Financial liabilities SRIEE RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEH FHEH TSR FHRE SR

Other financial liabilities Higsmas 240,659 - 477,593 -
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(f) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the
current and previous financial years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which includes
borrowings, lease liabilities and share application monies as disclosed
in Notes 34, 36 and 27, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents,
and attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, share premium, other reserve and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group will also balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

7. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any of
the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

6.

e MR RRME

B REBREE (E)

() EXEBEE
AEEEREANRRAEE T
SEEE  WEBE( A R

R RZE AR - AEEHER
B RBEN B EE IR TE

Ju

%’J
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anp
[\\\y
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knl@ E>|
ﬂﬁ Faa-

R
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AEBMNEAREERER FE(REMT
34 36R7TDBIFEREMEE - HEAGER
ROBERE KRB KRASEE
W) RAAEHEE ANEG(BIERETR
N RmE - HEERREEN)E
ﬁ/ﬁ °

EETE MR EANGER - maBigd - B
EEREARKA R EZREARNEENE
@ o REBEB S - BITH
By RETHESREERAER
(B ME)FEEBELRERE -

ATEIE

RNHEERFERMS2EERBFRXSFH

EEEANWRBRSHERREEANER - TX
BEAFEFEERLFEBR - HHANG

ERHENBERMHNEAENSD FjEfl%&-

FRBABE - AREA N ERESHE
FIEENBEREETSHRECREAR)

—RBARE  AREEXABEERIMEE
%’Emfﬂﬁﬁau)\%ﬂf HE — R B RN RER
s R

FMBARE - BESRBENTAERBA
g -

AEENBRRIINEH B LS REHENIRIT
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 7. AY¥EE(E)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AFEER

The table below analyses fair value measurements for financial assets TEROMTeMEERESREBENRATE

and financial liabilities, by the levels in the fair value hierarchy based 2 RATERASAE S ENEE

on the inputs to valuation techniques. BT A SR ©

At 31 March 2022 R202253H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B=R E=R et
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

THEH THESR FTHER THER

Recurring fair value measurements: EEMAFEHE

Financial assets at FVTPL: BAHEABENEREE -
Investment in redeemable convertible  FAB]B& o] Al B (B AL AR HDIR B
preference shares ("RCPS") ((FTEEATERELR]) - 5,694 = 5,694
At 30 September 2020 7202099 H30H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® E_H EZR 4Bt
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

THER THEH THER THER

Recurring fair value measurements: REMAFLEHE

Financial assets at FVTPL: BATEFABENSREE

Investment in RCPS R R R AT IR B IR IR B - - 5,694 5694
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities not AEBUIFRATEFENEREERA
carried at fair value are not materially different from their fair values as & /Y AR (B 81 E 72 202293 A 31 H 12020
at 31 March 2022 and 30 September 2020. FOHNAMATFELRERESR -
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 7. AY¥EE(E)
(@) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (a) 2V EER(E)
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of TREVNEAESTHEENEREMEBENLAF
significant non-financial assets, including their levels in the fair value B BIEATEERNER -
hierarchy.
At 31 March 2022 2022638318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t e wEt

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
THEH THER THER THER

Recurring fair value BEMATETE
measurements:
Investment properties "EYE
Commercial 7 - - 25,000 25,000
At 30 September 2020 7202099 A30H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8 iy E=M 45T
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHES FHEE FHEE THER
Recurring fair value REMATETE
measurements:
Investment properties WA
Commercial 05 - - 25,000 25,000
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

7. AEEFE(E)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on (b) REF=ZHEAFENEZEEY
level 3: BE .
Call option Put option
Investment with DPI with DPI
in RCPS Solar 1 Solar 1 Total
R e
AR
E%KRH DPISolar1 DPISolar1
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FTHER THER  THER  THER
At 1 October 2019 2019510 A1H 22,044 2,365 (2,700) 21,709
Total gains or losses recognised BRI s ok B 18
in profit or loss ® 4ERE® - (2,365) 2,700 335
Redemption =]l (16,350) - (16,350)
At 30 September 2020 7202059 A30H 5,604 - - 5,694
Transfer to level 2 EIREE A (5,694) - - (5,694)
At 31 March 2022 R20225F3H31H = = = =
® Include gains/(losses) for assets/(liabilities) held at end of reporting period. ® BRERARESHRABEE,(AE) 2/

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those for
assets held at end of reporting period are presented in other losses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(c)

Measurement of fair value

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 March
2022 and 30 September 2020:

The Group'’s chief financial officer is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements. The
chief financial officer reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the chief financial officer and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the

valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are
mainly:

- weighted average cost of capital (estimated based on global
economy growth and industry foreground)

- dividend rate (estimated based on historical data)

- price per square foot of comparable properties

e MR RRME

AREEF20229F3A31H K 202099 H30H
FTAREERRFR AR A HEFEMRGEER
i K S ABURIREEN T -

AEEARVMHEREETEERAEN
NHERTEBAMEM B RERE  BREZ
BRE=ZFNFEFE BFEMBHEEE
MEESEFRZEAFEFE - AFUH
EEBFEEBFRIBITMAGHE B
EERFRER -

RE_MRE=BAFEAEMS - ° %
B-REREAGBRITEXRERBERLD
MM ELRZ I BEERRETHE -

F_MAFEFEMRANTIETABRR
BABEBIER:

- IEFHEARRAN(RIR 2 BRI
RRITEARMAED)

- RERREESLZEHER

—  AIELEMENETFIIERER
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 7. DR EFTE(E)
(c) Measurement of fair value (continued) (0 AFEFEE)
Level 3 fair value measurements E=RKAFEFNE

Effect on fair

value for
Significant increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
WABEEM
B EERM EXTUBERAEE #E HATENTE AVE
As at
31 March
2022
R2022%
3A31H
RM’000
FHER
Commercial investment properties Market comparable Price per square foot of RM221 to RM753 Increase 25,000
BRRENME approach comparable properties NIREHE 0
GiElsd v AELEMENG TR & TSIME R
UNEY
Level 3 fair value measurements E=HAFEFTE
Effect on fair
value for
Significant increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
B ABEEM
Ek hERAT EATAEREGABIE #E HLATENTE ATVE
As at
30 September
2020
20206
9H30H
RM'000
THER
Investment in RCPS Discounted cash flow Discount rate, dividend rate 11.56%, 20% Decrease 5,694
RAEE A EARLRNZE AEBRRLNE BHRE - REX 11.56% * 20% mo
Commercial investment properties Market comparable Price per square foot of RM211 to RM753 Increase 25,000
HRREME approach comparable properties NIRERHE i
GiElsdvs AEBMENET AR TSIME R
RER
Except for investment in RCPS, there were no changes in the valuation BRATEE A ERELRNIEEN R
techniques used as at 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2022. 202099 A30H K 20223 A31 H AT E

B A -
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. Uz ISHHBUAR D BER
and Segmental Information

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (a) BEFEHNNEZDE
The Group derives its revenue from contract with customers in the REEFEPE&HKRNE 2 RRNA
following major revenue streams: N
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020F10H1H BHE
ES 2020%F
2022563A31H 9H30H
HAR IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Building construction revenue EFEEes 355,611 297,477
Building maintenance service income BF S IRIEIA 8,232 14,804
Supply and installation of elevators HERZEER 203 817
364,746 313,098
Representing: THIFIE ¢
Continuing operations SELCEETS 285,828 190,473
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI E TS (it 16) 78,918 122,625
364,746 313,098
Timing of revenue recognition: W 25 W SR A T
Over time [ | 364,746 313,098
Construction contract revenue recognised amounting to MER—BEARGEE R EERBHER 2 2
RM71,077,000 (2020: RM111,111,000) relates to the development A W5 £971,077,00098F 5 (202046 -
and construction of a solar photovoltaic energy generating facility as 111,111,000 7)) BB R KT EE16(0)(0) ©

disclosed in Note 16(b)(i).
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. Uz - S FH B A R 2 B & H
and Segmental Information (continued) (%)

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(b) BEFEHNZEHNEE
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Building construction

The Group provides building construction services to customers. Such
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for
these construction services based on the stage of completion of the
contract using input method.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group may require
certain customers to provide upfront deposits of certain % of total
contract sum. When the Group receives a deposit before construction
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same contract,
is recognised over the period in which the construction services are
performed representing the Group's right to consideration for the
services performed because the rights are conditioned on the Group's
future performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Retention sum receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, ranges from one to two years from the date of the practical
completion of the construction. The relevant amount of contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability
period expires. The defect liability period serves as an assurance
that the construction services performed comply with agreed-upon
specification and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.

BFEZ

AEEREFPREETEERS - BEEA
SEAZFIERETLEFINEE - ZFER
BHEREERSETEORLT - BBER
BAZERNANTAERERZFERR
TV ©

AEENZESNBRERNEEBEA
ERETETERERD B FHOAR
R - AEERREERETELIRMIS
BNEBEETAHLMAERS - BAK
BREEE TRWIUZSE - ERRNE K5
REELANAE  BEEXSORERHK
SBEEEEE

BMEEHRER-ANBRZANA
B)RBEITEKNREGHRER - KRAE
EE R IR IR E 2R - REZE
BRAENBURR AR ERRED ERIETE
B1R - ERMRAEGELE - AaNEE
BREESRWGR -

FEUIRE & ARRRNBR B B E M AT 0 48
RAEKNEE BEXIEERTKZAR
AEMFEALE - EREETHEMRE
BHEEZHNBESREN N ERE RN
A - BRI EEHANRBIRNT ZER
IRIGH A BERIRIE - MABABRETED
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. U25 - IS BB A R 2 & H
and Segmental Information (continued) (%)

(b) BEFENZENEEE)

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(continued)

Building maintenance service

The Group engages in providing services for maintenance of
buildings. Contracts entered into can cover various different
processes. These processes and activities tend to be highly inter-
related and the Group provides a significant service of integration for
these assets under contract. Where this is the case, these are taken to
be one performance obligation. The total transaction price is allocated
across each service or performance obligation and, where linked, the
construction of the relevant asset. The transaction price is allocated
to each performance obligation based on contracted prices. The total
transaction price may include variable consideration.

Performance obligations are fulfilled over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consume the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs. Revenue is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered based
on the amount of the expected transaction price allocated to each
performance obligation. Customers are in general invoiced on a
monthly basis for an amount that is calculated on a schedule of
rates. Output method is used when determining progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation of the service,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of services transferred to the customers to date relative to
the remaining services promised under the contract.
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation for contracts with customers

The following table shows the aggregate amount of the transaction

price allocated to performance obligations that is unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2022 and 30 September 2020.

8. Wm HHHBERARDIHBESR
(#&)

(c)

PEFEFENBRTBENREEINRS

B

TNREATNEZR202293 A31H K&20205%9
RA30B P BERTK (KD RTK)ELH

BN SHERESHE -

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
#2022F F20204F
3A31H 9H30H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TS
Building construction revenue EFERRE 319,721 584,602
Building maintenance service income EFHEIRIEIA 10,135 153,510
Supply and installation of elevators HERZEER 1,777 3,550
331,633 741,662
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
R2022F 20205
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Representing TR
Continuing operations FRBICE 5T 321,498 588,152
Discontinued operations RS = 10,135 153,510
331,633 741,662
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8. Wm (HHHBERARDIHBER

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(#&)

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance (c)
obligation for contracts with customers (continued)

The Group expect revenue from unsatisfied performance obligations

B (%)

PEFEFENBRTBENREEINRS

AREETEHIR TR B A B E R U A7 A

to recognise in the following years as follows: T T LARER
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
120224F 20204
3A31H 9H30H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TMHE R
Within one year —F AR 331,633 526,148
More than one year, but not more than 2 years —F P BT EBRMRF = 81,656
More than two years LI = 133,858
331,633 741,662
(d) Income from concession agreements (d) $FiEm A
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
202010H1H BHE
) 2020%F
202263H31H 9H30H
HAM IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRER
(re-presented)
(xES)
Income from concession agreements —imputed 4 EF % a5 A — (& T 8,
interest income: WA
() UM () R TEAEZ([UITM]) 27,262 41,681
(if) REPPA (N BEEERENEE W Z
(TREPPA]) 4,962 3,043
32,224 44,724
Representing THIFIE ¢
Continuing operations FHEICE TS = -
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI R (Mt 16) 32,224 44,724
32,224 44,724
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

U]

150 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

KAS Engineering which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
BGMC Holdings Berhad (“BGMC Holdings") on 28 September
2015, entered into a concession agreement on 14 March 2012
with Universiti Teknologi Mara (“UiTM") and the Government
of Malaysia (the “Government’) as represented by the Ministry
of Higher Education Malaysia under a private finance initiative
for the right and authority to undertake the financing, planning,
design, development, construction, landscaping, equipping,
installations, completion, testing and commissioning of the
facilities and infrastructure of a UITM campus in Dengkil, Malaysia
and to carry out the property management services in relation
to the maintenance of the facilities and infrastructure.

This concession agreement is for a period of 23 years comprising
3 years of construction works and 20 years of maintenance works
commencing immediately from the date when the construction
and related infrastructure works were accepted by UiTM and
ending on the 23rd anniversary of the commencement date
(the “Maintenance Period”). The maintenance works will
commence upon the issuance of Certificate of Acceptance by
UiTM and expire on the last date of the Maintenance Period (the
“Repayment Period"). Upon expiry of the Maintenance Period,
the Group is required to handover the facilities and infrastructure
at no cost to UiTM in a well-maintained and operational
condition.

UiTM will pay the Group throughout the Maintenance Period
(i) equal monthly concession charges for the enjoyment of
the availability of the facilities which were provided by KAS
Engineering over the initial 3 years of construction works
(“Availability Charges”); and (ii) monthly infrastructure and
maintenance charges for the provision of maintenance works
to be provided by KAS Engineering in accordance with the
provisions of the concession agreements. The Group and UiTM
may make request in writing for the review of the maintenance
charges at the interval of every five years after the maintenance
commencement date, subject to the Government's approval.

BGMC International Limited
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

U]

(i)

(continued)

The construction of the facilities and infrastructures of the
university campus were completed on 25 September 2015 and
accepted by UITM on 25 November 2015 which represents the
commencement of the Maintenance Period of the facilities and
infrastructure. Upon acceptance by UiTM, the balance previously
recognised as amounts due from contract assets was reclassified
to trade receivables.

As at 30 September 2020, the financial asset arising from the
above concession agreements, which represented the fair value
of the consideration receivable for the construction services
delivered during the construction, amounted to RM265,321,000
and included as assets classified as held for sale. Such receivable
is settled by equal monthly Availability Charges over the
Repayment Period. Since KAS Engineering’s entitlement to
receive the Availability Charges resulted from construction
work provided by KAS Engineering, as well as the provision of
finance in respect of such work over the Repayment Period, the
related trade receivable was discounted over the Repayment
Period using an effective interest rate of 15.1% (2020: 15.1%) per
annum. The imputed interest income recognised for the Period
amounted to RM27,262,000 (2020: RM41,681,000).

On 27 March 2018, BGMC Bras Power entered into a REPPA with
TNB to design, construct, own, operate and maintain a solar
photovoltaic energy generating facility (the “Facility”) with a
capacity of 30MWac proposed to be located in Kedah, Malaysia
to generate and deliver solar photovoltaic energy to TNB. BGMC
Bras Power will sell to TNB, and TNB will purchase from BGMC
Bras Power the Net Electrical Output generated by the Facility
and delivered to TNB in exchange for energy payments as set
out in the REPPA (the “Kuala Muda Project’).

8. Wz

(%)

e MR RRME

BIHHBRARD BER

(d) #FEFIHZBUA (&)
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

(i)

152 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(continued)

The REPPA is for a period of 21 years (the “Term”) commencing
upon the fulfillment of the Condition Precedent ("CP”") set out
in the REPPA and expires on the day before the 21st anniversary
of the CP fulfillment date (including such day), unless otherwise
extended in accordance with certain clauses or terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the REPPA. Upon expiry of the
Term or the earlier termination of the REPPA, TNB shall have the
right to disconnect the TNB Interconnection Facility from the
Facility.

The financial asset arising from the REPPA, which represents
the fair value of the consideration receivable for the preliminary
services delivered, amounted to RM194,878,000 (2020:
RM120,052,000) as at 31 March 2022, and is included as assets
classified as held for sales (2020: contract assets) as disclosed in
Note 16 (2020: Note 29). Such receivable is settled over the Term
of the REPPA. Since BGMC Bras Power’s entitlement is to receive
the energy payments resulted from construction work provided
as well as the operation and maintenance of the Facility upon
commercial operation date as defined under the REPPA, the
related trade receivable was discounted over the Term using a
rate of return specific to the Facility to give a constant periodic
rate of return on the financial asset in each period. The imputed
interest income recognised during the Period amounted to
RM4,962,000 (2020: RM3,043,000).

BGMC International Limited
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8. s [HHHBERARDIAHBER
(%)

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements
and Segmental Information (continued)

2 ERE R

(e) Segmentinformation (e)

Information reported to the Executive Director of the Company, being
the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of services provided. This is the basis which the Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments under
IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

(i) Building and structures — provision of construction services in
building and structural construction works;

(i) Energy infra-structure — provision of construction services in
energy transmission and distribution works;

(i)  Mechanical and electrical — provision of construction services in

mechanical and electrical installation works; and

(iv) Earthworks and infrastructure — provision of construction
services in earthworks and infrastructure construction works.

In addition to the above reportable segments, the Group has certain
operating segments (including supply and installation of elevators)
that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds for determining
reportable segments. These operating segments are grouped under
"Others” segment.

As disclosed in Notes 16 and 32, the operating results of KAS
Engineering and BGMC Bras Power before the disposal were classified
as discontinued operations of the Group and were excluded from
the segment information for the Period. For the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment
after the disposal of KAS Engineering and BGMC Bras Power,
the Executive Director of the Company decided to make some
reclassification among the remaining business units, the comparative
figures of segment information for the year ended 30 September 2020
have been re-presented accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. Uz - S FH B A R 2 B & H

and Segmental Information (continued) (%)

Geographical information IR E R

No geographical segment information is presented as the Group's revenue HRAEEKE2HREFRAREREES
is all derived from Malaysia based on the location of trading and services KIRFEEZ S By - I 2 51| I8 5 ZRE R -

delivered and the Group's non-current assets are located in Malaysia by MAEBIERDEENNERA(REEED
physical location of assets. BEERAE)

Information about major customers EBEXEEFHNER

Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the total AR FEBEAEESELSERKE
revenue from continuing operations of the Group during the Period/year HEE10%A LR P ET ¢

are as follows:

Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020 10H1H BE
S 2020
2022%3H31H 9H30H
HAR IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TIRE
(re-presented)
(fe&E7)
Customer Z (a) BFZ () 87,400 39773
Customer Y (a) BPY(a) 67,000 30,347
Customer X (a) EPX (@) 46,525 N/A & R
Customer W () ZEW (@) 41,328 52,745
Customer V (b) BV (b) N/A 38 F* 36,159
@  These customers are from the building and structure segment. @) ZERPHREEFREBES -
(o)  This customer is from energy-infrastructure segment. (b)) LEFPREERERDEL -
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue from * YRR BN EERELE XK RS BEN

continuing operations of the Group. T0%MA L ©
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e MR RME
9. OtherIncome 9. HfblkA
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020F10A1H BE
£ 2020
2022563H31H 9H30H
HAM IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FRE R
(re-presented)
(ge&:5)
Bank interest income RITHEUA 1,107 1,564
Extra work other than the contract A N ERIN T A2 1 436
Rental income WA 34 16
Gains on extinguishment of debts (Note 33) TEEEGWE (HE33) 46,114 -
Others Hib 3,812 526
51,078 2,542
Representing: THIEIEG ¢
Continuing operations SEICE T 50,742 1,735
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI T (Mt 16) 336 807
51,078 2,542

10. Impairment Losses of Financial Assets and Contract
Assets, Net and Other Gains/(Losses), Net

(a) Impairment losses of financial assets and contract assets,

10. EREERSNEEZREBERF
ERHEMWKE(EIR) FHE

(a) ERMEERSHNEEZRERFEFHE

net
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020%1081R BHE
z 20205
202263A31H 9H30H
HA R HFE
RM’000 RM'000
THERE RN
Impairment losses on: AN SIBREBE
Trade receivables (Note 25) B G EIGIIA (K t25) 6,584 13,440
Other receivables (Note 25) H b & W FRIE (A 5E25) 2,342 -
Contract assets (Note 29) BHBENF29) 4,860 19,222
13,786 32,662
Representing: T3 &AL -
Continuing operations SEICEET 13,786 32,662
5§ 2022 EFFERRERBRAT 161
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e MR RRME

10. Impairment Losses of Financial Assets and
Contract Assets, Net and Other Gains/(Losses), Net

(continued)

(b) Other gains/(losses), net

(b) Hfplrzs  (&E8)FE

10. EREERSNEEZREBEF
BERHAuu (&18) F8E (&)

Period from

1 October 2020 Year ended

to 30 September

31 March 2022 2020

20205F10A1H B=E

z 2020%F

202263H31H 9H30H

HAM IEFE

RM’000 RM'000

FHER THER
Impairment of goodwill (Note 21) R E(HaE21) - (2,155)
Net gain on derivatives PTHET B8 = 335
Realised loss on foreign exchange IR INEEE (145) -

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREBEZ

plant and equipment (E518) Wz (8,173) 763
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFERREE 2 W - 531
Reversal/(impairment) of property, plant and M - MEREEELDORE)

equipment (Note 18) (Hi7£18) 6,916 (11,620)
Reversal/(impairment) of right-of-use assets PREEERRD (CRE)

(Note 19) (Bfat19) 6,950 (12,016)
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange IR INEEE (178) (460)
Provision for performance bonds (Note 33) B AR BB (BT £33) - (25,797)

5,370 (50,419)
Representing: THIE A ¢
Continuing operations SIEIC T 5,370 (50,419)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
11. Finance Costs 11. @& KA
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020610H1H S
ES 2020%F
2022%3A31H 9H30R
HARS IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FHRE R
(re-presented)
(geE=5)
Interest on: AT EIERNE
Borrowings EE 12,928 17,472
Lease liabilities (Note 19) HEaE#L19) 1,804 1,525
14,732 18,997
Representing: IR
Continuing operations SIEIC B ETE 3,887 5353
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI E T (Mt 16) 10,845 13,644
14,732 18,997
12. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) 12. BB (ER)
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020510A1H =
£ 2020%F
202263H31H 9H30H
HAM IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
(re-presented)
(ge&E5)
Malaysia Corporate Income Tax: RPECR R PRI
Current period/year KER,FE 3,569 3,598
(Oven)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (B BETR (1,971) 2,020
1,598 5618
Deferred tax ERETIA
Current period/year (Note 26) AR, F (A1 it 26) 1,280 6,269
2,878 11,887
Representing: TAE I
Continuing operations FHEICE TS (2,421) 5616
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI ERE (Mt 16) 5,299 6,271
2,878 11,887
£ 2022 EFIERERERAR 163
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e MR RRME

12. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (continued) 12. FiB8EiRAY (%) (&)
Reconciliation between income tax and loss before tax from e R R BARRTENSESEER
continuing operations at the applicable tax rate: ZBRBAIEE 2 E R
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax from ARABRERIBYWHEABAEEERTEIE
continuing operations using the applicable rates for the regions in which ARERAENSEKREER 2GR EBE B
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax HEAY BRERFRAENTIARN S YR
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: s

Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
202010818 BE
£ 20204
2022538318 9H30H
B IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE SR
(re-presented)
(geE:5)
Loss before tax from continuing operations I R T A 1R (47,110) (203,296)
Statutory tax rate in Malaysia RPN A B X 24% 24%
Tax at applicable statutory tax rate HE AT R N R T IR (11,306) (48,791)
Tax effects of. AR B IBR AR E
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR A 2 62,502 57,467
Income not taxable for tax purposes BERBABA (28,829) (37,754)
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised R BAREROIIERE (17,918) -
Tax losses not recognised RIER AT IEE 18 1,482 31,459
Other temporary differences Hh B EER (6,372) 1,215
(Over)/Underprovision of estimate BEFEEATERY
tax expense in prior years (EREERME), BB R (1,971) 2,020
Others HAtb 9) -
(2,421) 5616

Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate on the

SRABEEMERIREEANFE 2HE

estimated assessable profits for each of the assessable year. FERBU S B EE MR E
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e MR RRME

13. Loss Before Tax from Continuing Operations 13. REFERKEEK 2BRUAISE
Loss before tax from continuing operations has been arrived after charging/ REBESEEE 2 BRBRIEEEAHN%
(crediting): GFEAVATRIRREH -

Period from

1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020510418 S
£ 20204F
202263H31H 9H30H
B IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TMHER
(re-presented)
(g&:5)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 24) ER ARSI (M F24) 2,314 301
Auditor's remuneration ZEE &
Audit services E1ZRTE 799 453
Non-audit services HE R = 175
Cost of sales and services SHE R AR AR 335,886 272425
Depreciation charge of: THBBEFERX
Property, plant and equipment (Note 18) M - BB NEREL18) 87 3,391
Right-of-use assets FREEE 658 5,085
(Reversal)/impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥13 « BiE KR (B@),wiE (6,916) 11,620
(Reversal)/impairment of right-of-use assets AL ERE) TRE (6,950) 12,016
Legal and professional fees FEERBEEER 6,507 1,786
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 16(a)(iii) &SRB A RIRVESIE (K72 16(2)0i)) 25,684 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE  BMEMREZ
plant and equipment B8 () 8,173 (763)
Impairment loss on assets classified as held for sale DGR IEHE 2 EENRIERE
(Note 16) (Hfitis) - 11,150
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BTIRAN(BIEESNG)
~ Wages and salaries —TITENHS 16,156 19,745
— Employees Provident Fund —EERER 2,270 2,389
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e MR RRME

14. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s Remuneration
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The emoluments of each director were as follows:

Period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022

BEEEHEWT

2020F10H1H £2022F3 31 B8

14. B BETHAEREEME

Basic salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors’  and benefits Bonus  contribution
fees in kind (Note a) plan Total
§¢§M » ﬁﬁ
EEne ENEAN (Bizta) E’H/m @t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THES THES THES THEH THES
Executive Directors HITES
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (Noteb) ~ FHif RSB H B RERE (fitp) = = - - -
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (Note ¢) SBEEF (Hizc) 66 435 = 52 553
Dato' Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif (Note ) A*XMohd Avifin Bin Mohd Arif(#77%/) - 231 85 39 355
Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim (Noted) ~ Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim(#75#¢) - - - - -
Ching Hong Seng (Notee) RS Hite) 30 103 - 12 145
96 769 85 103 1,053
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (Note k) AR 2B BTIEE i) 144 = = = 144
Chan May May (Note ) BREE (1) 2 - - - 2
Ng Yuk Yeung (Noteg) RIBG(Hizg) = = - - -
Kua Choh Leang (Note h) AFe(lzih) 144 - - = 144
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Note ) 2 EKamalul Arifin Bin Othman(#:2i) 178 - - - 178
468 - - - 468
564 769 85 103 1,521
Year ended 30 September 2020 BE2020F9A30HLLFE
Basic salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors'  and benefits Bonus  contribution
Fees in kind (Note a) plan Total
EAREH - FIE
L /%Bﬁ& ?EZI HIRETEl
EEikn BER (Hizta) LS N @t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THERE THER THER THERE THERE
Executive Directors HITES
Tan Sri Dato' Sri Goh Ming Choon (Noteb) — FHHT B & B H B RERE (f/32p) - 120 - - 120
Dato' Teh Kok Lee (Note ¢) SBEER|(Hratc) - 29 - 32 38
Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif (Note 2B Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif(#7:2/) - 387 81 52 520
Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim (Noted) ~Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim(#7z2d) - % 20 3 49
Ching Hong Seng (Note ) BARH(Hite) - 73 - 8 81
- 902 101 9 1,098
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (Note k) e e B BT R (M) 113 - - - 13
Chan May May (Note f) REE(Hitr) 113 - - - 113
Ng Yuk Yeung (Note g) RiBE(Hritg) 89 - - - 89
Kua Choh Leang (Note h) AFelsth) - - - - -
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Note ) 28 Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (/%) - - - - -
315 - - - 315
315 902 101 95 1413
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14. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s Remuneration

(continued)

Notes:

(@) Bonus are determined based on the results of the Group and/or performance of
directors.

(b)  Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon resigned on 7 October 2020.

(c)  Dato’ Teh Kok Lee is the chief executive officer of the Group, and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive
officer.

(d)  Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim resigned on 16 July 2020.

(e)  Ching Hong Seng was appointed on 16 July 2020 and retired on 31 March 2021.

) Chan May May resigned on 7 October 2020.
(@ Ng Yuk Yeung resigned on 3 July 2020.
(h)  Kua Choh Leang was appointed on 3 July 2020.

(i) Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman was appointed on 7 October 2020.
[0) Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif resigned on 30 August 2021.

(k) Tan SriDato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha resigned on 8 April 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Group and the
Company. The non-executive directors’ emoluments were for their services
as directors of the Company.

Employees

The five (2020: five) highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one (2020: two) existing directors, details of whose emoluments
are set out above. Details of the emoluments of the remaining four (2020:
three) highest paid employees who are neither an existing director nor
chief executive of the Company for the Period and for the year ended 30
September 2020 are as follows:

e MR RRME

14. 5 - BaTHAEREEME
(&)
Bt -
@ TEAITVRIBALEBMEEN SEERIEET °

b FEEE B2 RAENR202051077 HEHE -

© ZEBENBAEETHRAER MELXAKRE
B S BEEEETRESHRREAREHME -

(d)  Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim#2020%£7 5 16 B B¢
Fo

) PR ER2020%F7 A 16 BEZ I 2021F3 A
3TARE -

) BREZEM2020810A7BBHE -
(@ ‘RIBB52020F7 A3EEHT »
(h)  TFEER2020F7 A3HERT -

()  ZEKamalul Arifin Bin Othmani2020F10 87 B &%

g

()  ZEMohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif 7202148 A 30 B &
F-

k)  FHESERETEZN202254 A8 HEHT

WITESTFMN I EZZRREMRERAREER
KERADREHHORBABHE - FATE
EZHMAREER/RRBESMRERS
ZFS#EN o

(=]

REBRAFEEHRA(2020F : AR) &=
BiE B B 1E— % (2020F : MB)BREIESE  H
FIMFFIBEN T - AT EA (20205 : =)
o EEE (WIEAARRIEETRESITR
ANB)ARER NE E2020F9 A308 IEFE R
FHEE BN T -

Period from

1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
20201081H
2022F3H31H 202099H30H
i IFE
RM’000 RM'000
THEE TG
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind HAREW « ZEL R EYEF 1,570 717
Contribution to defined contribution plan SR FRETEIM R 187 86
1,757 803
£ 2022 BEFERERERAT 167
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e MR RRME

14. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’sRemuneration 14. 2% - RS {THAEBREE#H S
(continued) (#&)
Employees (continued) =116 )
The emoluments fell within the following band: BE AT B [E A 2B
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020108 1H
ES HE
2022F3H31H 202099 730H
IR IFFE
Number of individuals
AE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (RM536,000) 251,000,000 7T ( 536,000MR 5 45 ) 4 3

15

16

168 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

During both financial period/year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the Period and last
year.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend any dividends payment in respect of the
current reporting period (2020: Nil).

Discontinued Operations
KAS Engineering

On 16 November 2020, BGMC Corporation entered into a share purchase
agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”’) with AB Concession
Venture Sdn. Bhd. (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which BGMC Corporation
disposed of the entire issued share capital of KAS Engineering at a
consideration of RM93,787,000 (the “Disposal”).

The equity interests of the Purchaser were held by Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh
Ming Choon (“Tan Sri Barry Goh") as to 75% and Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin
Mohd Arif (“Dato” Arifin") as to 25% as at the date of the Share Purchase
Agreement. While the Purchaser is expected to continue to be wholly
owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Arifin, the share percentage ratio
might be subject to further changes as agreed between Tan Sri Barry Goh
and Dato’ Arifin from time to time.

BGMC International Limited
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EETER
&)

% LA R S R S A] BLEL (20204 ¢

ERIEEERK

KAS Engineering

7202048 11 A 16 B » BGMC Corporation £2 AB
Concession Venture Sdn. Bhd.([ B 77 1) T3 i 17
BEHR([ROBEHRE]) - = tkBomC
Corporation i &5 KAS Engineering®) 2 3 B 2677 %
A - RIBR93,787, 000 F 15 ([ HESHE]) -

RERHBEERZES  EFrRERSTES

BERPE(AHFERBE])FH75%Em KA
Z & Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif ([ £ & Arifin | ) 1
B5wiEm - BEEFEHEERNTERS
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16. Discontinued Operations (continued)

KAS Engineering (continued)

Tan Sri Barry Goh is the controlling shareholder of the Company who
has resigned as director of the Company on 7 October 2020 while Dato’
Arifin was an executive director of the Company who has resigned as an
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2021.

The disposal was completed on 11 June 2021. Details of the disposal are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 16 November 2020, 11
June 2021 and the Company’s circular dated 10 December 2020. KAS
Engineering was engaged in concession with the government of Malaysia
for the construction of a university building, and building maintenance
service provider for the said university building which was under the
segment of “concession and maintenance”. Accordingly, as at 30 September
2020, the assets and liabilities attributable to KAS Engineering had been
reclassified as held for sale and presented the result of KAS Engineering for
the year ended 30 September 2020 and for the period from 1 October 2020
to 11 June 2021 (date of disposal) as discontinued operation.

BGMC Bras Power

On 24 March 2022, BGMC Corporation entered into a Deed of Arrangement
with reNIKOLA, pursuant to which reNIKOLA will acquire the interest in
95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power. The details are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 27 June 2022.

BGMC Bras Power is engaged in concession and maintenance, which
undertakes Private Partnership Contracts related to solar plant of duration
of 21 years.

The completion of the disposal is subject to shareholders’ approval and
other conditions. Upon the completion of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power,
the Group will discontinue its concession and maintenance business which
is under the segment of “concession and maintenance”. As at 31 March
2022, the Directors believed that the disposal was highly probable and the
net carrying value of the relevant assets and liabilities of BGMC Bras Power
will be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing
use. Accordingly, as at 31 March 2022, the assets and liabilities attributable
to BGMC Bras Power have been reclassified as held for sale and presented
the result of BGMC Bras Power as discontinued operation.

e MR RRME

16. ERILEE XK ()

KAS Engineering (&)

FHTERPE AR N BHEIRIZE - R 2020F
IA7BBEERRFES - MEBAInABERR
BPITES DR 2021F8 A30HBHEA QT
WITES o

HERBEER2021F6 A1 AR  HESED
FBEEN AR B HEA20209F11 168 ~ 2021
FeHITEBNAE RARTHEIA2020612H10
H 3 K © KAS Engineering fi¢ 55 B2 55 21 7 55 IR
IRt E—IRARBEFHRITLEE 22
BT REsEiRBHERBR e R
Y& | D BB o It - A20208F9 308 » BRER
KAS EngineeringM B E R BEE EF D B AR
YEH & » W HEKAS Engineering® 2 2020459 A 30
B IEFE KR R2020F10 8 1B E2021F6 A11H
(HERH) BPHNEEZY ADRIEEER -

BGMC Bras Power

#2022%3 8248 » BGMC Corporation£2reNIKOLA
TN L HEEAE - B I reNIKOLA S g BEBGMC Bras
Powerf95% & iRz o FFIBEMN AR T A
B20202F6 A27THHVAE ©

BGMC Bras Powerfit S5 5T £ & 1 S (S -
BENFNEKRGREEEEFRABNLAGES
% o

HH 5 S5 TH ST K B 15 AR BR 0 AR Bz A B M kR 15
FETEE - T H & BGMC Bras Powerf » 7K
SEBEIERFITEEREREE ]S EIETH
S AR M MERTE - N20225F3 318 - &
ERBEEMNABEMERK - TIBGMC Bras Power
WEBEERABENEEFEZZRBLEM
FEBBUEBERKD - itk - 71202293 A31
B - 53BMWBGMC Bras PowertV EE R BEDE
o EARIFELSE - WiBGMC Bras Powery 2
EEVRERIELEFET -
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mEMBHRRME
16. Discontinued Operations (continued) 16. DRI EE XK ()

YW ENEESO S BAARERES
2020F9 H30B IEFEMBE RIS EER » B2

All the operations disclosed above are classified as discontinued operations
for the Period and the year ended 30 September 2020 and their results are as

170 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

follows: FER (N
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020%10H1H
z HE
2022F3A31H  20209F9H30H
B IEFE
Notes RM’000 RM'000
BiEE FHER TS
(Re-presented)
(geE=5)
Profit of KAS Engineering KAS Engineering 84 7| @) 16,242 18,813
Loss on disposal of KAS Engineering B KAS Engineering® 6518 (25,684) -
Remeasurement loss on disposal of KAS & KAS Engineering M) E ¥
Engineering FEEE - (11,150)
(Loss)/profit of BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power#] (E518 ) % 7| (b) (5,168) 2,992
(Loss)/profit for the period/year from ANEAREFE R E BRI
discontinued operations %% (E8),wFf (14,610) 10,655
(Loss)/profit for the period/year from AT AL EEARLR, FE
discontinued operations attributable to: REERIHEESER 2
(&518),/&F
Owners of the Company IN/NTEZ SN (14,352) 10,505
Non-controlling interests FEERRME 2 (258) 150
(14,610) 10,655
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16. Discontinued Operations (continued)

(a) KAS Engineering

(i

Results of KAS Engineering

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Profit for the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021 (date
of disposal) and for the year ended 30 September 2020 from

the discontinued operation of KAS Engineering is analysed as

e M RRME

16. ERILEE XK ()

(a) KASEngineering

(i)

KAS Engineering Y ¥ 4&

TR B KAS Engineering 2 4% || 48 & £ 7%
MR2020510 B 1B E2021%F6 A11H
(HEBH) REZE2020869A30H 1

follows: FERRFDTAT -
Period from
1 October 2020
to
11 June 2021 Year ended
(date of 30 September
disposal) 2020
2020610H1H
ES
2021F6A11H BH=E
(HEBRH) 2020F9A30R
B IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
Revenue W 7,841 11,514
Cost of sales SHERA (4,472) (10,117)
Gross profit EA 3,369 1,397
Income from concession agreements B A 27,262 41,681
Other income HAbdg A 336 641
Administrative expenses THAX (2,994) (6,300)
Profit from operations SRS T 27,973 37,419
Finance costs BB RN (6,452) (12,363)
Profit before tax R A5 A2 ) 21,521 25,056
Income tax expense FrigtiM (5,279) (6,243)
Profit for the period/year B F R A 16,242 18813
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e MR RRME

16. Discontinued Operations (continued)

(a) KAS Engineering (continued)

16. ERILEE R ()

(a) KASEngineering(#&)

(i

Results of KAS Engineering (continued)

Profit for the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021 (date
of disposal) and for the year ended 30 September 2020 from the
discontinued operation of KAS Engineering has been arrived at
after charging:

() KASEngineeringfy 348 (&)

IR B KAS Engineering B 4% || 48 & £ 7%
R2020F 10 B 1B E2021F6 A 11 H
(HEBH) REZE20209 8308 1
FEMEMNTHBRATSERZEE

Period from
1 October 2020
to
11 June 2021 Year ended
(date of 30 September
disposal) 2020
2020510418
ES
2021F6H11H BHE
(HEBRH) 202069A30H
B IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
Auditor’s remuneration IZE RN - 99
Amortisation of intangible asset ER A N - 475
Depreciation charge of: THIBRENERSL :
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B R = 23
Right-of-use assets FREEE 105 253

(ii) Cash flows from KAS Engineering

(ii) KASEngineering R& R E

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021 2020108 1H Z£202156H11H RM’000
(date of disposal) (HEBH) - FHER
Net cash generated from operating activities SR BPTSIR & F 5 19,005
Net cash generated from investing activities K& EETSE©/F5E 2,010
Net cash used in financing activities REEZETRIR S F5E (22,972)
Net cash outflows e M FEE (1,957)
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e M RRME

16. Discontinued Operations (continued) 16. DRI EE XK ()
(@) KAS Engineering (continued) (a) KAS Engineering(#&)
(iii) Effect of disposal on the consolidated financial position of (iii) HEHAEBGREUBERRHTE
the Group
The following are the assets and liabilities in respect of the LATR A7 202196 A 11 B # H & KAS
disposal of KAS Engineering on 11 June 2021 Engineering /BRI EEF B &
RM’000
FHER
Property, plant and equipment e 54
Intangible assets BZAE 7,130
Right-of-use assets EREEE 97
Trade and other receivables 2 5 R H b WA 287,277
Tax recoverable AT EI R IR 614
Fixed deposit TEBRTE 5K 16,300
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 5,127
Trade and other payables 2 5 REMERFIE (5,272)
Lease liabilities HEAE (82)
Borrowing — secured BE-EEA (164,926)
Deferred tax liabilities BETHIBAE (15,698)
Net assets of KAS Engineering disposed of B H & HIKAS Engineering/F & B 130,621
Remeasurement loss on disposal of KAS Engineering HI & KAS Engineering ) E #7512 E518 (11,150)
119,471
Less: Cash consideration received, less transaction cost paid & : B YIRS B (HBRE R SHAKR) (93,787)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 13) HEHB AR EE(HZ13) 25,684
Cash consideration received, less transaction cost paid ERBESREFREN R HHA) 93,787
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed of B BEHERE RIRTTERS (5,127)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEEENFRESRA 88,660
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16. Discontinued Operations (continued)

(b) BGMC Bras Power

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

During the Period, the Group committed to the disposal plan of BGMC

Bras Power and commenced negotiation with a potential buyer.
On 24 March 2022, BGMC Corporation has entered into a Deed of
Arrangement with reNIKOLA, an independent third party, in relation

to the disposal of interest in BGMC Bras Power.

Details of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power are set out in the

Company's announcement dated 27 June 2022.

(i) Results of BGMC Bras Power

(Loss)/profit for the Period and for the year ended 30 September

2020 from the discontinued operation of BGMC Bras Power is

analysed as follows:

16. ERILEE XK (H)

(b) BGMC Bras Power

RAEARE - 7N & B &

St

# B H BGMC Bras

Powerf) i &7 28] - WHIRRELE H 1
5 e 72022493 A 248 » BGMC Corporation
BT 55 = T reNIKOLART SL 2 HE R © A
A7 R3 H &BGMC Bras PowerAJ S ©

H & BGMC Bras PowerHI s EE R AN A A H
BRI A2022F6 A27THRIAE °

(i) BGMC Bras Powerky24&

B B BGMC Bras Power B 4% | 48 & S 75
RANEAR M B E 202089 A308 1H4F
EH(ER), SaMamnT

Period from

1 October 2020 Year ended

to 30 September

31 March 2022 2020

2020F10A1H

z H=E

2022F3H31H  202099H30H

HA IEFE

Note RM’000 RM'000

M5k THEE FhER

Revenue Wz 8(a) 71,077 11,111
Cost of sales SHE R (77,286) (105,320)
Gross (loss)/profit E(8)F| (6,209) 5,291
Income from concession agreements 4 EFi7EE UL A 4,962 3,043
Other income HAapUg A 2,594 166
Administrative expenses TR (2,102) (4,199)
(Loss)/profit from operations L (ER),E (755) 4301
Finance costs BhE RN (4,393) (1,281)
(Loss)/profit before tax R (EE) (5,148) 3,020
Income tax expense Frigfif X (20) (28)
(Loss)/profit for the Period/year NEAR,FE (FR), SRR (5,168) 2,992
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16. Discontinued Operations (continued)

(b) BGMC Bras Power (continued)

(i) Results of BGMC Bras Power (continued)

(Loss)/profit for the Period and for the year ended 30 September
2020 from the discontinued operation of BGMC Bras Power has

been arrived at after charging:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

16. ERILEE XK ()

(b) BGMC Bras Power (#&)
(i) BGMC Bras Powerl 245 (#&)
B BGMC Bras Power2 4% | F4& & 5 75

RAREARE K B 2202059 308 IE4F
FEH (BT8R F TH BRI T & EE

|
Period from
1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
2020%10A1H
£ HE
20229F3A31H 202099 H30R
FAE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN & 11 5
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEE 1,962 1,308
Fi#R 2022 BREBRZERERAF 175
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e MR RRME

16. Discontinued Operations (continued) 16. DRI EE XK ()
(b) BGMC Bras Power (continued) (b) BGMC Bras Power (%)
(ii) Assets and liabilities associated with BGMC Bras Power (ii) EZBGMC Bras Power#8E8 ~ 120225
and classified as held-for-sale as at 31 March 2022 3A3MHDEAERBELHENEERE
&
For presentation in the consolidated statement of financial ABERBE202F3A3BNGEEH
position as at 31 March 2022, the amounts due from Group Bk FBRAEETERIELY
entities amounting to approximately RM211,000 have been 211,000/ B2 B BEBGMC Bras Power
excluded from the total assets associated with BGMC Bras Power THEE - D EAFEREMEEETH
classified as held-for-sale. B o
As at
31 March
2022
i
20224
3H31H
RM’'000
FHEH
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16,129
Contract assets BHEE 194,878
Trade receivables E 5 EINFIA 1,212
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIA - Re REMEUGIE 123
Amounts due from the Group WA & B 5RIE 211
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 54
Total assets associated with BGMC Bras Power EABGMC Bras Powertid - 7 A K
classified as held-for-sale EHENREE 212,607
Less: Amounts due from the Group W RN SR ERUR (211)
Assets associated with BGMC Bras Power EABGMC Bras PowertHfd ~ 2 A K
classified as held-for-sale EHENEE 212,396
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMERFIE 35,271
Borrowings — secured BE-BEHF 72,440
Lease liabilities HEaE 17,092
Liabilities associated with BGMC Bras Power EABGMC Bras Powerii[d - D A#E
classified as held-for-sale EHENERS 124,803
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16. Discontinued Operations (continued)
(b) BGMC Bras Power (continued)

(iii) Cash flows from BGMC Bras Power

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

16. BRI KEXIE(E)
(b) BGMC Bras Power (#&)

(iii) X BBGMC Bras PowerfJIRE& R E

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 2020F1081HZE RM’000

31 March 2022 20226331 B AR FHESR

Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFTRIR S 58 (64,025)

Net cash generated from financing activities BB EZEATEIR S FEE 63,960

Net cash inflows WEMAFEE 65
17. BREGE

17. Loss Per Share

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

(a) REFERCKRILEEER

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the loss for the period/year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately RM56,542,000 (2020:
RM193,543,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,800,000,000 (2020: 1,800,000,000) in issue during the period/year.

Diluted loss per share

There is no diluted loss per share in 2022 and 2020 as there is no
potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting period.

BREFEE

RAREEE ANEESRERNBIENFETY
ERARNREBEABGEH FAEELD
56,542,000 7K & 45 (20204 : 193,543,000k
TR R FRB BT B INE Y
£{1,800,000,000 B ( 2020 4 : 1,800,000,000
fig) o

BREEER

FR20229F K 2020 F i S I HE EE - )
EAE BT S B A B n] BEERR (S -
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e MR RRME

17. Loss Per Share (continued)

(b) From continuing operations

(c)

178 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing operations
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the loss for the
Period from continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RM42,190,000 (2020: RM204,048,000) and
the denominator used is the same as that detailed above for basic loss

per share.

Diluted loss per share

There is no diluted loss per share in 2022 and 2020 as there is no
potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting period.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share from the discontinued operation is RM0.80 sen
per share (2020: earnings RM0.58 sen per share) and diluted loss
per share from the discontinued operations is RM0.80 sen (2020:
earnings RM 0.58 sen) per share, based on the loss for the Period from
discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately RM 14,352,000 (2020: profit of RM10,505,000) and
the denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both
basic and diluted earnings per share.

There is no diluted earnings per share in 2022 and 2020 as there is no
potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting period.

BGMC International Limited

17. BRE R (&)

(b) REFEAKEXY

(c)

BRENER

RARBEEABGRAFELEEB 2T
BRERBENGTEDERARAIER A
EERERBELCEEB 2 AFEBEY
42,190,000 78 2 45 (2020 5 : 204,048,000k
)R EGRERNSIEERN D & (F
BRESOHE -

sREEER

TR20226F K 2020 B EE B AR B EE1E - T
ARE RS R EEETEERG -

REBKRILREXK

REDRIEEEEBRNTREAEBIEAET
A%0.80MF 559 (20204F : PR & F0.58HK
HFES)EREBERIEEEEBN GRS
SEEBAETRSOMEFH (20206 + &
MosshER D) - ERARRHEA AR
EREERIEEEEBNRNAFEEEL
14,352,000 & 45 (20204F : % #110,505,000
MER) RARGRERRES AT AR
WA (FBREFE -

FR20229F B 2020 F it SIS AT - T)
E A E B TS B B 1 n] BEERR (S -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV IEERRMEE
18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. Y1% - BEREE
Furnitureand Computersand Machinery and Motor Office
fittings software site equipment vehicles equipment Total
FERRE  EEREM BRRSHREG RE BOERE w3t
RM'000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000

THES THES THER THES THES THES

Cost A

At T October 2019 #2019F10A1H 209 1,545 55783 4840 217 62,59
Transfer to right-of-use assets BERCEREEE - - (32,083) (1934) - (34017)
Additions = - 61 58 - - 119
Disposals L& - (69) (456) (1,950) - (2479)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sl EEEHBARIEHE L B (29 (80) - (15) (78) (202)

At 30 September 2020 and 1 October 2020 #20209F98308 &

2020F10A18 180 1457 23302 941 139 26019
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREFREEE - - 11692 692 - 12384
Disposals HE (34) (23) (7,007) (1,090) - (8,254)
At 31 March 2022 R202263A318 146 1,434 27,887 543 139 30,149
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE
At T October 2019 #2019F10A1H 67 1,140 19077 3,584 68 23936
Transfer to right-of-use assets ERSPRAEEE - - (12471) 839) - (13310)
Additions HE 3 394 2912 68 17 3414
Disposals ik - (7 (437) (1859) - (2333)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale  EEHAE DB ABHEHE L EE (18) (51) - (15) (60) (144)

At 30 September 2020 and 1 October 2020 12020698308 2

2020E10A18 72 1446 9,081 939 25 11,563
Transfer from right-of-use assets BROFRELE - - 7342 620 - 7962
Additions NE 24 11 - - 52 87
Disposals e (33) (23) (190) (1016) - (1262)
At 31 March 2022 12022435310 63 1,434 16,233 543 77 18,350

Accumulated impairment losses ZHREFR

At 1 October 2019 #2019F10A1H - - 2601 - - 2,601
Impairment (Note 10(b) BB I0) - - 11,620 - - 11,620
At 30 September 2020 and 1 October 2020 142020698308 &

2020%10A18 - - 14,221 - - 14,221
Transfer from right-of-use assets BREOFRELE - - 4349 - - 4349
Reversal of impairment (Note 10(b)) RERE(Witiow) - - (6,916) - - (6916)
At 31 March 2022 12022435310 = - 11,654 - - 11,654
Carrying values BEE
At31 March 2022 R202243A318 83 - - - 62 145
At 30 September 2020 R2020%9A308 108 11 - 2 114 235
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

As at 30 September 2020, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable
amount of its plant and machinery as a result of the deterioration of the
markets of the Group’s products. These assets are used in the Group’s
building and structures segment. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of approximately RM11,620,000 for the year ended 30
September 2020, that has been recognised in profit or loss. During the
Period, these machinery and equipment have been disposed of and a
reversal of impairment loss of approximately RM6,916,000 (Note 10(b)) was

18. 1% - BEKRE (&)

M202059A30H - BRASEERMSER
REERFERE RS IRE S5 o 25

ERRAEBENEFREBE SIS - iR 5l
BHEREE 20209308 IFFERER B L
11,620000M 545 - BB RIBIER o NAH]
B ZEMERBFEETHE - WERSRERS
B 18] 496,916,0009K & (B zE10(0)) °

19

recorded.
Right-of-Use Assets

Disclosures of lease-related items:

19. EREEE

HEERER WEE

180 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
i n
2022F 2020%F
3A31H 9H30H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
Right-of-use assets CREEE
Land and buildings T RAEF 210 18,638
Motor vehicles RE 69 256
279 18,894
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash RIEAEBEHESEZRMRRTE
flows, of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows: REERRESTOT
Less than 1 year —FE PN 341 4,619
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 180 2,552
Between 2 and 5 years TERF - 6,536
Over 5 years AFLE - 16,950
521 30,657
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
Land and buildings T RiEF 2,520 1,965
Motor vehicles RE 205 607
Machinery and site equipment AR N2 35 1 5% 4 - 4,074
2,725 6,646
Lease interests (Note 11) MENS(MEE11) 1,804 1,525
Expenses related to short-term leases EHHERBERY 961 878
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRH L 5,219 7,331
Disposal of right-of-use assets REFHAESE 7,390 2,565
(Reversal)/Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEE (R, RE
(Note 10(b)) (Hizt10m)) (6,950) 12,016
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19. Right-of-Use Assets (continued)

20

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group leases various land and buildings, machinery and site equipment
and motor vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods
of 1 to 4 years (2020: 2 to 15 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

As at 30 September 2020, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable
amount of its machinery and equipment as a result of the deterioration of
the markets of the Group’s products. These assets are used in the Group's
building and structures segment. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of approximately RM12,016,000 for the year ended 30
September 2020, that has been recognised in profit or loss. During the
Period, these machinery and equipment have been disposed of and a
reversal of impairment loss of approximately RM6,950,000 was recorded.

e MR RRME

19. EAEEE (&)

AEBAESELRIET « s RGHRE
ARAE - HEBZEBTE R R4 E T HR
(2020%F : 2Z154F) o EIRK TR AR AERE
& WEEEE TRGR RGNS - HERET
ERENEARE  BEREEETSAEERRN
IR o

M202059H30H - AR ASEEMMSER
REBBTEMBERZEITREEE  ZFE
ERRAEBNEFREBS I - ZKa 5l
BHERE E2020F9 A30H EFERERBIEL
12016000 H 45+ BERIBzEER - RAH
H ZERBEREHETEE - WEHSRES
B [B] 496,950,000FK 25 45 ©

Investment Properties 20. REWE

Investment

properties

under Investment

construction properties Total
EEREME REME st
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHER FHER FHER
At 1 October 2019 R2019F10A1H 507 - 507
Additions NE - 25,000 25,000
At 30 September 2020 and 1 October 2020 $220204F9 A30H 202010 H1H 507 25,000 25,507
Disposal HE (319) - (319)
At 31 March 2022 7202263 A31H 188 25,000 25,188
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e MR RRME

21. Goodwill 21. HE
RM'000
THER
At 1 October 2019 2019 10A1H 2,155
Impairment during the year (Note 10(b)) FRRMEHEI00) (2,155)

At 30 September 2020, 1 October 2020 and 31 March 2022

72020594308 ~ 20201018 K&
20229 3H31H -
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Goodwill arising from business combination has been allocated to the
following CGUs.

KEEBAHNEEECOEEUNTREELE

fif o

As at

30 September
2020 and

31 March 2022
»
202069H30H
&

202253 A31H
RM’000
FTHER

BGMC Corporation

BGMC Corporation -

As at 30 September 2020, the Directors performed a review of the
recoverable amount of goodwill and concluded that the recoverable
amount pertaining to the CGU of BGMC Corporation was less than its
carrying amount plus goodwill allocated. Accordingly, the related goodwill
of RM2,155,000 had been impaired.

As at 30 September 2020, the recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the directors
covering a 2-year period. The cash flows from the third to fifth year period
were prepared based on best estimate of the Directors taking into account
existing secured contracts and estimation of contracts to be secured during
that period.

MR202059H30H - EEFEEHENRESHE -
I 52 578 BBGMC CorporationIR & B A4 B HY ]
WEEEOREREEMMDEEE - Bt
R REE2,155 000 H HERIE °

R2020F9H30R F MeELABMMAIKES
BEREABEENEET - ZetE A EDIRE
EEAENMFHMBEEFERRESRETE
Ao E=FHEERTFHNReREANEES
(IEEZFBRBEREE L RBRZ RS A
FEX) MR EAEHED
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21. Goodwill (continued)

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations as at 30 September

e MR RRME

21. BE (&)

R2020F9A30 B FAEEFENERBRRN

2020 were as follows: T
As at 30 September 2020
72202059 H30H
Growth rate
for cash flows
between third Discount rates
and fifth years applied
FE=FHZE
ERFHIE FRERA Y
RengigRkE BRI &
CGU REEHEN
BGMC Corporation BGMC Corporation 1.90% 12.88%
(@) Growth rate (a) BR=E
The growth rates were forecasted after considering factors like general 18R R (TSN H
market conditions, industry-specific and other relevant information EEERSERZRTER - B THBBHEE
and did not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the TEHNRAFIERERK -
relevant industry.
(b) Discount rates (b) BHIR=E

The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections were pre-tax
and reflected the weighted average cost of capital of the respective
CGUs.

EARNIRERETRR MR K B AIREIR
R RREHESELBUNMETIHER
DN

£ 2022 EFIERERERAT 183




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

22. Investment in an Associate

22. A—EBEQATNRE

As at As at

31 March 30 September
2022 2020

i S
2022 2020%F
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER T ER

Investment in an associate:
At cost RM2 (2020: RM2)

A — [T

AIRE
R AR 2 45 (20206 - 2MAE 4F)

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

BaNREFBIIENT -

Proportion of

FrA RELL Bl
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Place of
incorporation Paid-in/ Ownership interest and
Name and operation issued capital voting power held Principal activity
RS R B BRIT FRsERERR
=L 2 i B R REED L FEEWR
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
2022 20205
3A31H 9H30H
Sparks Energy International Limited ("SPARKS")  Cayman Islands RM2 0% 45.1%  Investment holding
Sparks Energy International Limited([ SPARK|) FEEE INE R WEER

The financial statements of the associate for the year ended 30 September
2020 were audited by auditor other than the auditor of the Company.

SPARKS

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 29 August 2019 entered into
by BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary, the Group
subscribed 45.1% equity interest in a newly set up company, namely Sparks
Energy International Limited, a company incorporated in Cayman Islands.

The principal objective of SPARKS was to conduct the business of investing
in and managing the special purpose vehicle established as wholly owned
subsidiaries of SPARKS in providing comprehensive management services
in relation to the development, financing, construction, operation and
maintenance of renewable energy power plants, including the Kuala Muda
Project and Machang Project (as defined below), investing and financing in
renewable energy power projects and such other business activities.

BGMC International Limited

LR N B E E2020F9 A30 B I EE MBS ER
E R WUNEIEA ETIV N E s EE =3

SPARKS

R I% R 2 & K8 2 8IBGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd BT
SIS BEIG2019F8 A0 B MR R sk » A%
E R AL A 7] (BDSparks Energy International
Limited * PAF B &ML 2 A F))45.1%0%
-

SPARKSHI = Z B 12218 & KB 12 K 37 A SPARKS
FEMBARNSKENER  REFETH
FRREEHER mE - &% 2ER#E
WEEEERE - REANEEEE RSEE
B(ERRTX) s RERMEN FELRES
THE R BEHEMEREE -
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22. Investment in an Associate (continued)

SPARKS (continued)

Machang Project refers to the development of a 30MW a.c. solar
photovoltaic energy producing power plant on a piece of land located at
Daerah Jajahan Machang in Kelantan, Malaysia, which had been awarded to
Idiwan Solar Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia.

SPARKS issued USD21,430,000 (equivalent to approximately RM88,500,000)
non-voting class 1 preference shares to DPI Solar 1 Pte Ltd (‘DPI Solar 1"), a
company incorporated in Singapore and a corporate shareholder of SPARKS
for the purpose of financing the development and construction of the Kuala
Muda Project and Machang Project.

In connection with the shareholders’ agreement, BGMC Energy also
entered into an option agreement with each of the two shareholders,
namely BV Energy Sdn. Bhd. ("BV Energy”’) and Idiga Energy Sdn. Bhd.
("ldiqa Energy”), being companies incorporated in Malaysia. Pursuant to
the option agreements, BGMC Energy was granted the option to acquire
up to 2.5% equity interest in SPARKS held by BV Energy and Idiga Energy,
respectively. Each of the call option was granted at a nominal value of
USD10 to BGMC Energy. As at 30 September 2020, the Directors performed
an assessment on the fair value measurement of the call options and
concluded that the fair value was not material. During the Period, BGMC
Energy did not exercise the call options which have been lapsed in 2021.

Pursuant to the above-mentioned shareholders’ agreement, a capital
commitment in the sum of approximately RM88,500,000 was expected to
be contributed by the shareholders through the issuance of ordinary shares
in SPARKS and other forms of financing in accordance with the agreed
proportion for the purpose of funding the Kuala Muda Project and Machang
Project.

The capital commitment to be made by BGMC Energy pursuant to
the shareholders’ agreement was approximately RM39,900,000. This
commitment was expected to be fully funded by a loan to be advanced
by DPI Solar 1, a company incorporated in Singapore and also one of the
shareholders to the above-mentioned shareholders’ agreement, to the
Company (“Loan from DPI Solar 1").

According to the DPI Loan Agreement dated 17 July 2019 between the
Company (as borrower) and DPI Solar 1 (as lender), DPI Solar 1 shall make a
loan of USD14,460,000 which consists of (1) USD5,360,000 for funding BGMC
Holdings subscription for Land Companies RCPS, and (2) USD9,100,000
(approximately RM39,900,000) for BGMC Energy'’s financial contribution
to the agreed portion of capital commitment in SPARKS. However, only
portion (1) was advanced by DPI Solar 1, while portion (2) was not advanced
by DPI Solar 1. As such, BGMC Energy did not make financial contribution to
the agreed portion of the capital commitment in SPARKS. Due to inability
to satisfy capital call since incorporation of SPARKS and up to current, BGMC
Group only holds 451 ordinary shares out of the total issued ordinary shares
of 17,628,379,792 (i.e. a shareholding of approximately 0.0000026%) as at 31
March 2022.

e MR RRME

22. R —EBE N FNRE ()

SPARKS (%)

HEIBEEAL SR RS E M EE Daerah
Jajahan®) — B TR T E ROKERME
KRS 8e R Euh - E B T Idiwan Solar Sdn.
Bhd. (A B RS s ML BR A F]) °

SPARKSgh N #:E18 B K BIEIEE ¢ FE#E L E
=X R & [ADPI Solar 1 Pte Ltd ([ DPI Solar 1) (—
IR T DN FE AL S 2 A F] + ASPARKS 2 A &)
A3 ) B£1721,430,0003 7T (A8 H H 4988,500,000%K
HEF) IR EERIE AR -

PSRBT S © BGMC Energy Ji 2 W & A% 51
(BNBV Energy Sdn. Bhd. ([ BV Energy ] ) K Idiga
Energy Sdn. Bhd.([ Idiqa Energy]) * RIfE A
PSR PG R AT ) & B 5T BARE T % 1R
TERERER % - BGMC EnergyE 1R HARELAEE 2 5
FABV Energy X Idiga Energy# 8 H SPARKS £92.5%
It o Z R A LA10ZE T EE K T BGMC
Energy ° R20205F9 A30H » ERHREHEA
FEFTEETHHLEBRATFTEBIEKR - B
ZAEARE - BGMC Energy Il SETTERREHAME - BB
FR2021FF R AR -

RIE IR R R - IREIBERIZ IR L HE A
BEITSPARKS E B R M Eh & 5 s A S EEL
88,500,000 FH R & AHEHE + LAR IR EETR
BENGEEBREES -

BGMC Energy i8R IR AR B i aa 1B RO & ANEHE LY
39,900,000 2 5 o ;ZAYETEHAF DPI Solar 1(H
O M AL YA &) K b AR R B sk AP
—ZRE) G FARRAEF ([ DPI Solar 1&

RDEREEES -

BIEARR T (FEREFRA)EDPI Solar 1 ({EAE
KA )R2019F7 B 17 B FTHIDPIE skt
DPI Solar 1 FE4Z 114,460,000 T E X+ E
B4 (1) 5360,0005 7T A 78 & B BGMC Holdings
REE TN F AR AT EBE LR - A K&Q)
9,100,000 3 7T ( #739,900,000 % 5 45 ) Ff 1A BGMC
Energy ¥J SPARKS H 7% JE BF 0 & AN &R BV B 15 )%
& o SR » DPI Solar EREFH()EEH » WS
BEQE D o AL - BGMC Energyilf £ [E]SPARKS
EREBERNEFEP R TN ETIE - ARE
JEM B BSPARKSIK L ASREZ BRI E A E
ko BHE202538310  BFEEREEEES
DRI T AR AE$017,628,379,792% FF K451 iR X
A (BN A% LE 5149 £0.0000026%) ©
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22. Investment in an Associate (continued)

22. R —EBE N FNRE (F)

SPARKS (continued)

On 17 November 2021, SPARKS issued and allotted 17,628,378,817 of
ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each to its existing shareholders excluding
BGMC Energy and total number of issued shares became 17,628,379,792.
The Directors have decided not to subscribe to any new shares issued by
SPARKS and requested SPARKS to repay the share application monies of
RM2,886,000 to the Group as disclosed in Note 27. As at 31 March 2022, the
proportion of ownership and voting power held by BGMC Energy was less
than 0.01%, SPARKS was no longer considered an associate to the Group.

The cost of investment and the outstanding balance of Loan from DPI Solar
1 as of 31 March 2022 are approximately RM2 (2020: RM2) and Nil (2020:
RM7,765,000) (Note 34(c)), respectively. During the Period, the Loan from

SPARKS (#&)

2021911 178 » SPARKSHE IR R E (6
#& BGMC Energy ) 2 17 I Bid 8 7 17,628,378,817
BREROIBTHLT AR  BERTROBEAR
17,628,379,7921% o T E{F/R 7E 1 58 SPARKS 3
TTRIERFTAR + I Z SKSPARKS [l AN SR B (B 38
2,886,000 & FEHI IR E R FE IR - FHIERMI &
270 EE o FE 202293 A31H  BGMC Energy
FiB B FT B AN S0 L 1K 720.01%, SPARKS
THERANEEMNEE AT -

HE202%3H31H %R EMAKDPI Solar 1 &
REIEREE D B4 B2 M E 15 (20204F « 2MFE )
5 Z (20204 : 7,765,0004K 5 1) (M £E34(0)) ©

DPI Solar 1 was settled by the Company.

The summarised financial information of SPARKS is set out below:

AAERR - AR BB &BDPI Solar TEFK ©

SPARKSIE ZEA RS ERBIFIF T -

As at

30 September
2020
202059 H30R
RM'000
TSR

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net assets

ERBEE 65,690
MEVEE 126,200
mEIEE (111,665)

BEFE 80,225

Year ended

30 September
2020

BE
20205F9 H30H
IFFE

RM'000
TR E

Revenue
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

e 1,728
AEEBEREEEERRE (8,016)

186 ANNUALREPORT 2022  BGMC International Limited




22. Investment in an Associate (continued)

SPARKS (continued)
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22. RA—EBEQATNRE(E)
SPARKS (#&)

As at

30 September
2020

20204
9H30H
RM'000
THER

Net assets of SPARKS
Excluding obligation for class 1 preference shares

SPARKS 2 B /F1E 80,225
NEFEEINB AR ZEE (88,603)

Proportion of the Group's interest in SPARKS
The Group's share of net liabilities of SPARKS

(8,378)
IR E= B JASPARKS 2 BE RS L {51 451%
REEE B(ESPARKS B (&R E (3,778)

Year ended

30 September
2020

Bz

2020%F
9A308IEFE
RM'000
TREE

The unrecognised share of loss for the year

FRARERE(GEE (3,615)

Cumulative unrecognised share of loss in SPARKS

Rt AR MR ERSPARKSE 1B (3,778)

23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference 23. A A] B[O A] & 38 L IR VIR G

Shares

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
JiS I
20224 2020%F
3H31H 9A30H
RM’000 RM'000
THEE TG

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHRENSTA -
Current assets ENEE 5,694 3,986
Non-current assets ERBNEE = 1,708
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BAFEFABENEREE 5,694 5,694
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23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares (continued)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by BGMC Holdings, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, the Group subscribed 50% of the RCPS in
Kuala Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd. ("Kuala Muda Estate”), Machang Estate Sdn.
Bhd. (‘Machang Estate”) and Machang Estate (Il) Sdn. Bhd. ("Machang
Estate (I1)") (collectively refers to “Land Companies”) for a total
consideration of USD5,363,000 (equivalent to approximately RM22,044,000).

Land Companies had acquired land and leased to BGMC Bras Power, a
subsidiary of the Group and Idiwan Solar, a company incorporated in
Malaysia, for the development of a 30MWa.c. solar photovoltaic energy
production plants in Malaysia, including the Kuala Muda Project and
Machang Project.

The salient features of RCPS are as follows:

(@) the Land Companies shall issue and BGMC Holdings shall
subscribe the RCPS at the value of USD1 each for a total amount of
approximately USD5,363,000;

(b) any payment to be received by the Land Companies under this RCPS
shall be utilised solely for the purpose of purchasing of the land;

(c)  subject to the availability of distributable profits, the RCPS shall yield
a fixed cumulative dividend of twenty percent (20%) per annum from
the date which the RCPS has been subscribed by BGMC Holdings;

(d) BGMC Holdings shall, at its option, be entitled to convert all or any part
of the RCPS into ordinary shares at any time after the Land Companies
having been registered as the landowner in the document of title
of the land on the basis of each RCPS being equivalent to 4 ordinary
shares. Such number of ordinary shares that issued on conversion
shall be credited as fully paid and rank pari passu in all respects with
the ordinary shares then in issue in the Land Companies;

(e) the Land Companies may be entitled at any time at its sole discretion
cancel the RCPS and pay BGMC Holdings the cancellation payment, i.e.
principal and accrued interest;

23. A A EE ATERE T RIVIRE (&)

1R 1% [ 2 2 & K B 2 3)BGMC Holdings 7] 37 #Y
R - A%EE P Kuala Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd.
([ Kuala Muda Estate ] ) * Machang Estate Sdn.
Bhd. ([ Machang Estate | ) }z Machang Estate (Il)
Sdn. Bhd.([ Machang Estate (II) ) (£ /8[ - #2
T 1) R EE500% A fE [ Al BB L AR - (REREE
/35,363,000 7T (AEE 70 4922,044,000M FH 45 ) ©

3 22 B 2 W 3 I ) 7S 5= L BB /2 RIBGMIC
Bras Power } 55 2R 78 58 s A% 32 2 Idiwan Solarit!
Mzt - AEERSRATIOEZMEN
[ZEE R REER YL - BIEMNEEIRE REEIE
B o

AIFE @ AT EIRME e AR E RGBT

@ A FHEEETT BGMC HoldingsiS R &
[ A& (B A1 30 A A] BB [B] A] 83R48 ST
4R58 5 #5,363,0003 T

(b) I BIRHAR B bt A] B () AT B 48 S A
HE M IER AEREE LB /Y

(© BFAIBAIHEIRER - AT A iR
B IR 4% B 7] B8 18] A 82348 5t AR EBGMC
Holdingsi? i HERfE B F R ER D 2 =+
(20%)[EE REHAR B,

(d BGMC Holdings#§ B #EEER T AR E 5
&R EE ARRERERE
1 2 0 SR AT AT 2B 43 A B 120 A 88 4B o AR 8
BRALTMAR  EEAT IR ER A ER
BERERFBIR LB - BIBBEITH
ZEE T RREAREABRERSK - I
RETAE AR AR ERHEETHLR
M= HERFHAL ;

(e THIAF) ] A ERE R B IS s 4 o] BE 0] A] 8
48 % B% K [ BGMC Holdings 37 15 5§ &
(BIAR& REEFFE)
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23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares (continued)

()

BGMC Holdings shall have the right to receive notice of any general
meeting of the members and to attend such meeting but shall have
no right, unless otherwise permitted under Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia, to vote or to move or second any resolutions at any general
meeting of the Land Companies, except that BGMC Holdings shall
have one (1) vote for each RCPS fully paid up with conditions as stated
in the subscription agreement;

(i) during such period as any Fixed RCPS Dividend or any part
thereof that has been declared for payment remains in arrear
and unpaid, such period starting from a date falling not later
than twelve (12) months after the due date of the relevant sum
of the Fixed RCPS Dividend;

(i upon any resolution which varies or is deemed to vary the rights
attached to the RCPS;

(i) upon any resolution which creates or issues (i) shares ranking in
priority to or pari passu with the RCPS in relation to participation
in profits or assets of the Company or (ii) equity share capital
except for the RCPS which is not in all respects uniform with the
Ordinary Shares;

(iv) upon any resolution which would result in a change in the
dividend policy of the RCPS which deviates from the terms as set
out under this Agreement;

(v) appointment of a receiver or an administrator over the
Company'’s assets, and (in the case of voluntary liquidation) an
application for the appointment of a liquidator, determining
the liquidator's remuneration or making any other insolvency
decision whereby the Company may be wound up; or

(vi) upon any resolution for the winding up of the Company.

In the event of winding-up or return of capital of the Land Companies,
RCPS holders have the right to receive, in priority to holders of
ordinary shares, the cash payment in full of the subscription price of
the RCPS after the payment and discharge of all debts and liabilities
of the Land Companies and the costs of winding-up or such capital
reduction exercise;

e MR RRME

23. A A EE ATERE KRNV IRE (&)

BGMC Holdings %78 EUER IR BRI AR R K
EMRGTHEEEAS - HEEER T
RNAMFHBRR ARSI R LB B EMZ T
RER  BRIEEFRAE2016FARES
1TEFA] » MBGMC Holdingsi#& #t B 2 542
A BB AT BB ST AR — (R FRORAE -
AR REREFTH AR ;

() CBEIREAIEE A E DR SR E LR
e Bk E AT B o B HE R N RS AT
H B RAEAR - BRAHIE B AERAE E AT
BOABRELKRESHEIBAR
TZODEA AR B Fi#est

(i) BFARIFEE A]IED R ERETR
PP A RENIE L RDR AR -

(i) BEHBETORD ZARREFKE
EET = 80A] o Al B ST AR B e 3
B Z A [F) S A A7 2k (i) A A A
AR (BRI FEE 2 5B 77 B2 A
5L — ORI R (O] AT SR B SR ) BN 1]
IR

(iv) ] REBER A AR o] Al S4B ST A R B
IR B A BT A 1955 P 816K
AV EfDRERZR

V) MARFREEZEEEAREEA
(B ERERIEN) REEEEE
A BREBBAFH SR E M
PREERTE (A AR AJRERLLIFR) + X

vi) BRAARBBEIEMARSE

—BIRABERIGREERN - RIFEXN
RETLARMAEB LA ERFER
ZEAREIRITEI R ANE - AR O] Al iR E
SERFEE A B RECE BB A AR ITWE
AEMAEREEREHREENRDE

Eo
N
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23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares (continued)

(h)  RCPS holders shall have no voting rights save for matters relating to,
among others, the variation of the rights attached to RCPS, a change
in dividend policy, the creation of equity share capital except for
RCPS which is not in all aspects uniform with ordinary shares and the

winding-up of the Land Companies;

(i) Without the prior written consent of BGMC Holdings, the Land
Companies shall not, among others, sell, pledge, charge, mortgage,
transfer, dispose of or otherwise subject to any security interests or
encumbrances to any of its properties or assets, including the land;

and

()  The RCPS is redeemable by Land Companies for cash based on
USD1.00 per RCPS at any time after the date of allotment and issue of

the RCPS.

23. A A EE ATERE T RIVIRE (&)

AEOERELRSEASTEZAR
S HEE(EPEE) AT EE TSR E
PR EVERT « BRERERMEE - &
SRR AR g (R B 0 ] R ST AR S
RAEMATELIFRE B —2) kit
RABBRABHEERID

RAEEBGMC Holdingst B EERE + Lib
RETNE(HPEME)HE - H7 - #H: -
ZiE - EiE  HEHEMYESEE(R
FE ) S bA B Ath 75 S B AR HR A
ok EREBERS &

AJ i [B] ] E8HAE SE AR AT B 30 8 AR R B
(O] A] #6 {B ST AR A 3 Je 31T B IR (B B
12 5 A P i [0 ] 884 8 ST iR 1,003 T B

@ - SABEGRE -

As at 30 September 2020, Kuala Muda Estate and Machang Estate (II)
redeemed part of the RCPS issued amounted to RM7,800,000 and
RM1,136,000, respectively, and Machang Estate has fully redeemed all
RCPS issued amounted to RM7,414,000. During the Period, no RCPS were
redeemed.

7202099308 + Kuala Muda Estate &ZMachang
Estate (I)E B #0 B 817 1) BB [2] A] 85 #18 55 %
(£ 89 5l /7,800,000 4K & 4F K 1,136,000 4k &
#5) + MMachang Estate B E B B B 217 & [T
A E BB LA (£ 5B A7,414000EH) o IRA
HARE - SERATRE 1 P S B S AR B ]
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23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares (continued)

On 19 January 2022, Idiga Holding Sdn. Bhd. (“Idiga Holding"), the sole
shareholder of the ordinary shares of Machang Companies has entered
into a deed of arrangement with reNIKOLA. Pursuant to the deed of
arrangement, Machang Estate (Il) will redeem all existing RCPS issued by
Machang Estate (II) at their original price. Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, all RCPS are redeemable by Machang Estate (1) for cash based
on USD1.00 (equivalent to RM4.11) per RCPS at any time after the date of
allotment and issue of the RCPS. During the Period, the Group has agreed
to not exercise the conversion features of the RCPS in Machang Estate (Il)
and Machang Estate (II) will redeem all RCPS held by the Group after the
completion of the disposal of interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras
Power in accordance with deed of arrangement between reNIKOLA and
Idiga Holding. As at 31 March 2022, the Group has the investment in RCPS
of Machang Estate (Il) of approximately RM3,145,000 (2020: RM3,145,000).

On 24 March 2022, Bras Ventures Bhd. ("Bras Ventures”), the sole
shareholder of Kuala Muda Estate has entered into a deed of arrangement
with reNIKOLA, pursuant to which Kuala Muda Estate will redeem all
existing RCPS issued by Kuala Muda Estate at their original price. Pursuant
to the subscription agreement, all RCPS are redeemable by Kuala Muda
Estate for cash based on USD1.00 (equivalent to RM4.11) per RCPS at any
time after the date of allotment and issue of the RCPS. During the Period,
the Group has agreed to not exercise the conversion features of the RCPS
in Kuala Muda Estate and Kuala Muda Estate will redeem all RCPS held by
the Group after the completion of the disposal of interest in 95% ordinary
shares in BGMC Bras Power in accordance with deed of arrangement
between reNIKOLA and Bras Ventures. As at 31 March 2022, the Group has
the investment in RCPS of Kuala Muda Estate of approximately RM2,549,000
(2020: RM2,549,000).

e MR RRME

23. A A EE ATERE KRNV IRE (&)

R2022F1 198 - R QA TR
Hldiga Holding Sdn. Bhd.( I1diqa Holding |)
EdreNIKOLAFT S 2 HERRIB - IRIB L HE R IE -
Machang Estate (Il) # LA R 44 8 #% & 8] Machang
Estate (INEXFTHYFT A 3R 6 0] fE 2] P] 88 A B 5
B% o IRIBRE R - A 0 E R A ERELR
A] f4 Machang Estate (I) 52 A] f& [B] 7] 82 32 (8 5 %
Ao % 12 2417 B BB R (T 65 R 4R B AR A B () A 82
BB ERI.00ET(HER4NMER)ER -
NBEIRE S - RAHRE > AEBREERITE
Machang Estate (II) AJ & [5] 7] 85 #2085 I 48 5
M+ B Machang Estate (Il) #5 74 18 4% reNIKOLA £2
Idiga Holding#) Z2HE 22 1% ! & BGMC Bras PowerfJ
95%E MRS TEA R - BRI ANEEIF AT
B AT B AT R E S AR o 0202293 318 - R
£ B2 # Machang Estate (II)&) 7] & 6] A] #3848 %
P& #93,145,00048 3 %5 (20204F ¢ 3,145,0004%

R ©

202243 248 - Kuala Muda EstateMff — % &
Bras Ventures Bhd.([ Bras Ventures | ) £2reNIKOLA
A1 ZHERIE - #E It Kuala Muda EstatefS LA R 18
{BH&FE B Kuala Muda EstateZE1THIFT A IR A A &
O EREER - BERERZ - AEAEL
A] ERE 5T I% A] FH Kuala Muda Estate A A] f& 2] 7]
8 S AR i 3% K 31T B B (TR R IR B AR
AR AT R B IR 100K T (FEE R4 11ME
FRER - LIEIR® - RAEE - AEERE
NT{#Kuala Muda Estate 7] fE [B] A] # H(B So ik 82
B+ HKuala Muda Estatef§ R AR 4% reNIKOLA
EdBras Ventures# 22 BEZ2 15 1 & BGMC Bras Power
B95%E MR mTTKE - BOAEEFER
A R BB Bl AT S4B SR AR © 702022F3 4311 -
ZN£2 B 2 7 Kuala Muda Estate®) 7] 3 [0] A] #8358
Fe BRI & 42,549,000 F 5 (20204F © 2,549,000
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24, Intangible Assets 24, B EE
Intangible
Intangible assets work-in-
assets progress Total
ETHIEMN
BILEE BILEE @t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEHE FHERE FHRE R
Cost A
At 1 October 2019 2019 10A1H 35,148 3,309 38457
Transfer e 2,760 (2,760) -
Disposal HE (1373) - (1,373)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale R ZE D fE BiEEHE 2 B E (9,507) - (9,507)
At 30 September 2020 and 7A2020F9H30H K
31 March 2022 202243 A31H 27,028 549 27,577
Accumulated amortisation ST
At 1 October 2019 2019510 A1H 25,622 - 25,622
Amortization for the year REEHESH 776 - 776
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale 3= DIE AiSEHE Y BE (2377 - (2,377)
At 30 September 2020 7202099 H30H 24021 - 24,021
Amortization for the Period I HA R 4 5 2314 - 2314
At 31 March 2022 7202263 H31H 26,335 - 26,335
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2022 7202263 H31H 693 549 1,242
At 30 September 2020 7202059 H30H 3,007 549 3,556

The Group's intangible assets, which arose from acquisition of subsidiaries, BEAROERAFSHNRAKRERBARNASE
BB EETZEMEAT (2020 1 1,897,0004F
) BES ARNEREFE - ZENERE
B /B A BIBGMC Holdings 20165 U BB BB B A
AIRFES LS A RMABR B D MR - &2
TREARHEFERIRAFAKSE - SEHANT
MERSF  DERBEIRERTEEET -

have finite useful lives, mainly consisting of the net book value of rights on
construction contract amounting to approximately Nil (2020: RM1,897,000)
which represented right on the unbilled portion of construction contracts
secured when BGMC Holdings, an indirect subsidiary acquired its
subsidiaries in 2016 and are billable upon completion of the construction
work in subsequent years. The amortisation period ranges from 4 to 5 years
as determined based on the progress to complete the construction work.

Intangible assets work-in-progress represents accounting and project ETHRIEMNELEERERAZTN ST RIEE

software under development. o
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25. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 25. 25 R EEWEIE RSB FEN

Expenses B X
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
20226 F20204F
3A31H 9H30H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TS
Trade receivables: H S WA
Third parties E=F 73,184 74,118
Related parties RaiER = 3,156
Less: provision for expected credit loss B TEHAE E R IR R (21,856) (15,272)
51,328 62,002
Retention receivables: FEWRE & -
Third parties B=7 3,875 1,521
Related parties Rl - 8499
3,875 10,020
Other receivables: H At pe U RIA -
Third parties F=F 8,882 9,264
Related parties RaEH 2,540 1,515
Less: Provision for expected credit loss B TEHAE EE IR R (2,342) (1,500)
9,080 9,279
Refundable deposits ALREITF 5K 1,046 1,089
Building construction related deposits EFELABEZe 2,478 3,710
Prepaid expenses TERTFZ 194 21
Prepaid expenses to suppliers and sub-contractor AN THER Ry BN 3,599 1,981
Goods and services tax receivable FEM P o R AR 7 A = 12
71,600 88,114
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEBEMAING -
Current assets MENVE E 71,600 80,428
Non-Current assets IEMBNVE E = 7,686
71,600 88,114
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25. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 25. E 5 R EEWEIE « RS BFEN
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Expenses (continued)

Details of trade receivables arising from the concession agreement and
renewable energy power purchase agreement are set out in Note 8.

Related parties refer to companies in which certain directors of the
Company or siblings of certain directors are also directors and have control.

Amounts owing by related parties included under trade receivables and
retention receivables are unsecured and interest-free.

Amounts owing by related parties included under other receivables which
arose mainly from expenses paid on behalf by the Group, are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Trade receivables of the Group comprise amounts receivable from sales of
goods and services rendered in connection with contract customers. The
credit period granted to the customers ranges from 30 to 90 days (2020: 30
to 90 days).

No interest is charged on the outstanding balance.

The credit period on retention receivables is 24 months (2020: 24 months)

after completion of construction.

As of the end of the reporting period, there was significant concentration of
credit risk arising from amounts owing by five (2020: five) major customers
which accounted for 54% (2020: 79%) of total trade receivables. The
extension of credit to and the repayments from customers are closely
monitored by the management to ensure that they adhere to the agreed
credit term and policies.

A< ()

KA RREPPARN E 5 B W TE 2 15
R EES °

BENREARRETESTRETES LHEK
BEESELBEIREHIENAT]

FTAE SRR KRB IRE S HBET B R
RERERRRRE

FEAEMBURANBEES ERFAEEEE
BAKEBRAXN X - REER 28K
WEREE -

REBE ZERFBEBIEREHEEERERE
HEPIRENREHEKRZIE - RTFEFPMNE
EHIN 30590 H (20204F : 305890H ) °

BEE R A (BB W EUT(R RS
FERRE S NEE AR T %2418 B (20204 -
2M@EA) e

RRERR - REAR(2020F : AR)FER
PHEIZENEERBBEESEY  HEFHEK

IE%%'%ESAL%(ZOZOEE 79%) ° BIRE R )BT
%iﬁfagﬂ;ﬁkﬁxzfﬁzﬁﬁ%fx MR S BT
R E B RBUR
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25. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 25. 25 R EEWEIE RSB FEN

Expenses (continued) B (&)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (excluding receivables RERERZBEEARAZY 2B HENFIA
arising from the concession agreements) presented based on the invoice (TEERTHREEZERGE  SHNBRES
date (net of provision for loss allowance of trade receivables) at the end of JEUNF B E B ) ERER DT T ¢

each reporting period:

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
720224 20204
3H31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHERE FER
0to 30 days 0Z30H 18,813 18,585
31 to 90 days 31290H 894 7,038
Over 90 days 90R M E 31,621 36,379
51,328 62,002
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: S EFIER B R 2 IR
RM'000
FhER
At 1 October 2019 2019 10A1H 1,832
Increase in loss allowance for the year FREIERHEE N 13,440
At 30 September 2020 7202089 H30H 15,272
Increase in loss allowance for the Period AN TR B I N 6,584
At 31 March 2022 74202253 H31H 21,856
Reconciliation of loss allowance for other receivables: o th FE U FROE B IR B 2 I BR
At 1 October 2019 and 30 September 2020 72019810418 202099 H30H 1,500
Written off as uncollectible k=== Nl (1,500)
Increase in loss allowance for the Period BRI S 1R B 1L N 2,342
At 31 March 2022 R202263H31H 2,342
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the AEIE R EE 202099 A30H ILFEE 5 M EA
Period and for the year ended 30 September 2020 are set out in Note 6. JEWRR IR 2 BB R G B EAPTREG ©
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26. Deferred Tax 26. EREHIE
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
#20224F 20204
3A31H 9H30H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE - 429
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by TRANASPE " BEFEANANEERERES

the Group and movements thereon during the Period/last year.

EENEAERABRARS -

Accelerated Unabsorbed
tax  Concession  Intangible Unused  tax capital Contract
depreciation  agreement assets  taxlosses  allowance assets Total
i A8 AR
REFE KR BREE 0 BEER  ERGRE AMER h
RM000 RM000 RI000 RM000 RM000 RIM000 RM000
TER  TAEE THER TR TiER TaEE T
At1 October 2019 R019% 10418 3461 1544 3 4e) (2880) (393 8149
Deferred tax charge/(credit) NEREANELRE
recognised in profitorloss (Note 12) R/ (&%) (i) (3472 245 ) 476 2880 3933 6,269
Transfer to: ggz
Liabiltes directl associated with HRRBRELIEL
assets classfied as held for sale BEERRRYER 11 (14000 - - - - (13.989)
At 30 September 2020 #020%9A308 - - 49 - - - 49
Deferred tax charge/(credit) MNESETHELRA
recognised i profit orloss (Note 12 %/ (B8 ) Wit - 1,709 (429) - - - 1280
Transfer to: B e
Liabliies directly associated with ERERRELES
assets clasified as held for sale BEERRRNER - (1,709 - - - - (1,709)
At31March 2022 R2022538318 - - - - - - -
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26. Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unabsorbed
capital allowances can be utilised. As at 31 March 2022, the estimated
amounts of unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other
deductible temporary differences arising from contract assets for which
deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the consolidated financial
statements due to uncertainty of its realisation, are as follows:

e MR RRME

26. JEFERE ()

FEARRERBAFIR AT e FE LIRSS AT F0F7
AR ADBEREBERRRNE LR
BEHBERT ST ERERE - K8
AR IARE R AWM E RN e R B RIEET E
BEE o F2022F3A31H » RERETEHEEE
BB E M AR B ARG B 15 R MERR IR R
HAEMAES AT IEEE - ARMERRTHE
MAKWEEEEMNEMA IR EREENG
SR ¢

As at As at

31 March 30 September

2022 2020

120224F 20204

3A31H 9H30H

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER TMHER

Unused tax losses REVAMIAEE 49,388 122,053
Unabsorbed capital allowances RN E R BHiEE 832 24,151
Contract assets BRIEE 17,710 17117
67,930 163,321

The unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other deductible
temporary differences arising from contract assets are available for offset
against future chargeable profits.

Under the Malaysia Finance Act 2018 which was gazetted on 27 December
2018, the unused tax losses of subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia
amounting to approximately RM49,388,000 (2020: RM122,053,000) as
at 31 March 2022 will be imposed with a time limit of utilisation. Any
accumulated unused tax losses brought forward from year of assessment
2022 can be carried forward for another 10 consecutive years of assessment
(i.e. from year of assessments 2023 to 2032).

APAREER KBERELARHBERANE
FEFTEE A M EL b RN B B 22 BB A) AR ASECBH R
KRB @A

RIER20185 12 H27 A FIERC2018F 52K P 38
BIECEZ) - RS ZRAa s Z B0FT B A R &Y
RE) BB 202243 A 31 H A49,388,000
PR 5 (20204F © 122,053,000 F ) » #5 17
TNENFAMR AR o 20225 B F B AR R RET
KRB A E R ] BARRTEE AT FE (A
2023 F B 20325 IR FEE) o
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27. Share Application Monies 27. R ERERIE
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
#20224F 20204
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Non-current assets: EMENEE ¢
Share application monies (a) B&fn B SE FRIA () - 2,886
Current liabilities: MEBE :
Share application monies (b) AR A EEFRIA D) - (54,270)

On 29 August 2019, BGMC Corporation entered into a subscription
agreement with Sparks Energy 1 Sdn. Bhd. ("SE1”), to which SE1 will
subscribe for 86,000,000 redeemable preference shares of RM1 each to
be allotted and issued by BGMC Corporation for a total consideration of
RM86,000,000 (“RPS").

The proceeds from the subscription of the RPS to be issued by BGMC
Corporation to SET can only be used by BGMC Corporation solely for
the purpose of funding its subscription of the redeemable convertible
preference shares to be issued by BGMC Bras Power.

The salient terms and conditions for RPS to be issued by BGMC Corporation is
shown as below:

(a
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Pursuant to shareholders’ agreement entered into by BGMC Energy
for investment in SPARKS, BGMC Energy had paid approximately
RM2,886,000 as share application monies for the purpose of
subscription of ordinary shares to be issued in SPARKS as at 30
September 2020. During the Period, the Directors decided not to
subscribe the ordinary shares of SPARKS and has requested SPARKS to
repay the share application monies of RM2,886,000 to BGMC Energy.
Therefore, as at 31 March 2022, all share application monies have been
reclassified from advances from associates.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by BGMC
Corporation with SET, a company incorporated in Malaysia, which
is also an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of SPARKS, as at 30
September 2020, BGMC Corporation had received RM54,270,000
as share application monies from SE1 for the purpose of issuance
of RPS. During the Period, the Group issued 57,570,000 RPS (2020:
31,730,000 RPS) of RM57,570,000 (2020: RM31,730,000) to SET of which
RM3,300,000 has reclassified from amount due to an associate.

BGMC International Limited

#20195E8 A29H * BGMC Corporationt, E2Sparks
Energy 1 Sdn. Bhd.([SE1 ) 5] 2 RE W% - &
It + SET#5 A 48 X 1B 86,000,000 #1 5 72 8%
BGMC Corporation it & K& 1T R A E 1M E
155 #9:86,000,000 % 7] fE [21 2 5E i ([ o BRI B &
Bl -

SE1328% H1BGMC Corporation %77 1) ] & [ {8 4
B HY FT1S 3/ 38 R A] FBBGMC Corporation A YERE <
H 3R EEBGMC Bras PowerZ%1T & 7] fE [B] A] #4218
e o

BGMC Corporations ¥ 17 &) A] & [81{& 5t IR ) &=
SRR AR TR

@ IRIEBGMC Energy Bt 1% & SPARKS 7] 37 HY %
B - 720205F9 A308 - BGMC Energy
B S °F492,886,00048 & B E A A% 17 B 55 5K
18 - ARHES T B ATHISPARKS il % o FA
ANEAME - EEPIRE TR I SPARKS ) &
A% - W B SRSPARKS[A]BGMC Energy (8 2
2,886,000 F FFHIR Z RSB 5018 Bt -
202293 A31H - MERERBHRIED
BEENRIBREFDME -

(b) R ¥EBGMC Corporation E2SET (— [ A & 3
PAas AN SZ M A R) - IR ASPARKSHY 2
2EMBAR)FIZMRE R - 52020
%9 H30H * BGMC Corporation E 4% EIJ SET
B9 #54,270,000 " & FF AR D BB FE 5 E - A
BT ERELR - RARRE  AEE
[BSE1 31T T 57,570,000 %k 75 4 (2020 4F -
31,730,000 7k & 45 ) #957,570,000 % 7] BE [a]
B S BZ (20204F ¢ 31,730,000% 7] & [0 {8 5¢
f%) + EAR3,300000MF FEM BT = A
BIMFREREH 2
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27. Share Application Monies (continued)
The salient features of the RPS are as follows:

(i) the RPS is redeemable at the sole discretion of the issuer for cash
based on the redemption value. The issuer may redeem the RPS at the
discretion of its board provided that no redemption shall take place
or prior to such date which is one year after the commercial operation
date of the Facility;

(i) theissuer may at any time at its sole discretion cancel the RPS and pay
SE1 the cancellation payment;

(i) to the extent permitted by the relevant laws of Malaysia and in
compliance with the requirements under the law for distribution
of dividend, all dividends received by BGMC Corporation from its
investment or subscription of the RCPS issued by BGMC Bras Power
shall be distributed to SE1 as dividend for RPS;

(iv) subject to the availability of distributable profits in accordance
with the Malaysia Companies Act 2016, the RPS shall yield a fixed
cumulative fixed dividend of 7.5% per annum from the date on which
the RPS has subscribed by third party and the fixed dividend shall
be paid in accordance with the payment schedule set out in the
subscription agreement dated 29 August 2019;

(v) the RPS shall not be convertible into ordinary shares of the issuer
and SE1 shall have no rights, unless otherwise permitted under the
Companies Act, 2016, to vote or to move or second any resolutions at
any general meeting of the issuer; and

(vi) the RPS is transferrable in that SET may at its sole and absolute
discretion sell and transfer the RPS to any RPS transferee by giving no
less than ten (10) business days prior written notification to the issuer
notifying the issuer of its intent to sell and transfer the RPS to such RPS
transferee. The issuer shall do all things necessary to facilitate and give
effect to any such transfer of the RPS intended by SE1 to any such RPS
transferee.

On 24 March 2022, BGMC Corporation entered into the Deed of
Arrangement with reNIKOLA, pursuant to which BGMC Corporation intends
to settle the RPS amounting to RM89,300,000 issued to SET upon the
completion of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 27 June 2022.

e MR RRME

27. RADERFERE ()
AT EHE IR E BT -

() FEEDEEKRAIENBEREEHETAZ
BRBEARESERD - FTANKREESRS
B 5R € FE 2] 7] 8 mB SE e - MR L aR
BEREEARER —FERRZANEE
HEE

(i)  BTARBERBISEHEABRELR N
SEVAfAESHE

(i) EHFRADHEBEEATNHBERN - I
BTERRTENRE DB EK - BGMC
Corporation #¢ H & & 3 3R #§ BGMC Bras
Power8$ 7T H) A] & [0 A] SR E SL IR FTIE TS
RFTE IR EEVER T BRE LR E D
Fe4asE

(v) RTIRESERAE2016F R aERERA]
DIRHEF - TEEEERATEEE=7R
BrELNELRZBESTFRERT R
FTEERE7.5% 8 EE ik S EIRIE B A
20194F8 H 29 B #) 72 1% 15 % P & 1< SR )
S AN

V) AEEEIENEERAETANEBK
NSEVEENETANERNRREAES LR
SRBKFRBEADRESR - 20165127
AT AFFRIERERIN - &

vi) SEVAI2#EMERBRETAZL TR
FTOOREEXAMEALEEBAENET
A HEBEHEREEIELELERTE
AT EREERZEA - FEALE R E
AEEELERTEMIERELERZE
A - ATHEEHB AR IER T A TadaE o
BITANBRR YN EREE S E A
4 A] & BB ST i 25 A R R A B B8 5T
BRI S H AR o

7202293 248 » BGMC CorporationE2reNIKOLA
RT3 ZBER ¥ 0 ¥ 1 BGMC Corporation ## 7
BGMC Bras Power B & 5epk1& - A5 B [RISE1 31 THY
] & B8 5t Bk (£ 58 589,300,000/ & ) » 515
FHRAAF A B202F6 A27AMAE -
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28. Inventories 28. 78

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
20226 20205
3A31H 9H30H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R

Unsold completed units: REEBTEKEN
At cost LR AR = 7,720

Cost of inventories was recognised as an expense during the year ended 30
September 2020 amounted to approximately RM7,720,000. As at 31 March

2022, all completed units have been sold by the Group.

29

REIE20200F9 A0 I FERRARYNES
AN A #97,720,0000KF 45 o 742022493 A31H -
FrBEEXEMDHAAERLE -

Contract Assets/(Liabilities) 2.5 HEE (BRE)

As at As at

31 March 30 September

2022 2020

R2022% 20205

3H31H 9H30H

RM’000 RM'000

FHELE FhER

Building construction BFEsE 140,633 244,429
Receivables arising from concession agreements PR B R AT it A FE MR IR = 120,052
Total contract assets BHEERT 140,633 364,481
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (25,114) (20,254)
Less: current portion B REES D (115,519) (224,175)
Non-current contract assets ERBENEE - 120,052
Contract liabilities ABHaE (7,425) (5315)

The contract assets represent the Group's right to receive consideration for

work completed but not yet billed because the rights are conditional upon

the satisfaction by the customers on the construction work completed by

the Group and the work is pending for the certification by the customers.

The contract assets are transferred to the trade receivables when the rights

become unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains the

certification of the completed construction work from the customers.

Included in contract assets are retention receivables for contract works
amounted to approximately RM64,618,000 (2020: RM87,831,000).
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BHEERAKENCERERRERENT
RUERENEN  RERAEENAGER
BAKEMREETRRMERARTIE
EEFEPZE © i SEEEN TR R S
(ERAREARC UM TKEETIERGEP
AR AREESEREEF KA -

EHEEREA Y TIREWIRE 464,618,000
ME 4 (20204F ¢ 87,831,0004KFE ) ©
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29. Contract Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract assets
recognised are as follows:

The Group's construction contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the construction period once certain specified
milestone are reached. As at 30 September 2020, the Group received
an upfront deposit of 7.2% of total contract sum as part of its credit risk
management policies from a contract with a customer. As at 31 March
2022, the Group did not receive any upfront deposits from customers.

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging from
12 months to 24 months for 5% of the contract value. This amount is
included in receivables until the end of the retention period at the Group’s
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the issuance of certificate
of making good defect by the customer.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets because the
Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle ranging from 1
to 2 years.

Significant changes in contract assets and contract liabilities during the
Period/year:

e MR RRME

20. ENEE (BE) (&)

FEANEBET RN BHEREERNT

REBERRESNBIEERNEERENER
HETHREERERS BRI NONREHERE
R2020%9A30H - AEERHE-—EZEFHNAEL
WEE R E NS B2 RS - EAHE
ERBERBEN—ED o R202263H318 -
REEWEAFFWEERATHRIES -

REE—MRITREE T F1218 A 22418 A R B
T8 RESREANEED - Z2BETAJE
WikTE - EEREBSHER - NEEB K
ZERENRORNBRREPEHBELEES -

AEEBZEANEEDBRRDEE BB
AEBEARN I 2260 —REEBHNE
RAEFEE -

AHRE FEANEERANABNERE

Period from

1 October 2020 Year ended
to 30 September
31 March 2022 2020
20204
10H18% BE
2022 20204
3A31BHE 9A30HILEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Contract liabilities at the beginning RZAEH),FRER AU A
of the Period/year recognised as revenue BREE 1,748 4614
Contract assets (other than retention sums) iR s L B
at the beginning of the Period/year B o RWFIBENAHNEE
transferred to trade receivables (TEERES) 122,808 87,518
Retention sums receivables included in RZAERY, FEEE
contract assets at the beginning of B SRR AEGNEER
the Period/year transferred to trade receivables JEWIRE 41,793 8,720
FiR 2022 BAEBRZERERDF 200
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29. Contract Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

290

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has been

BREE (8E) (&)

TREREREERIHHREERIESFTAERE
HiTE

recognised for contract assets in accordance with simplified approach set (LA RERBEHNEENS BEEEHEE
outin IFRS 9. B o
RM'000
FER
At 1 October 2019 019%F10A81H 1,032
Impairment A 19,222
At 30 September 2020 7202059 H30H 20,254
Impairment NEREN 4,860
At 31 March 2022 A2022F3H31H 25,114
. . [—]
30. Fixed Deposits 30. EHER
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
120224 20204
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHES THRE S
Fixed deposits with licensed banks: FERRERIT 2 E BT AR ¢
Ringgit Malaysia R M H R 35,236 39,124

As at 31 March 2022, fixed deposits carry interest at fixed rates ranging
from 1.45% to 1.90% (2020: 1.60% to 2%) per annum, with maturity
period ranging from 30 to 365 days (2020: 30 to 365 days). Included
in fixed deposits as at 31 March 2022 are pledged fixed deposits of
approximately RM5,062,000 (2020: RM22,768,000), restricted fixed deposits
of approximately RM2,761,000 (2020: RM24,659,000) and restricted bank
balances of RM18,899,000 (2020: RM9,997,000) for borrowings as disclosed
in Note 34 and other banking facilities (including performance bonds).

As at 30 September 2020, the restricted fixed deposits of approximately

RM18,300,000 were reclassified as assets held for sales.
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MR2022F 38318 EHHERIEFRENTF
145%21.90%(2020%F : 1.60%Z%2%) & + 2 &Y
Elﬁ%oiiaﬁi(zozoi 30RE365K) °
FEEERBER 20223831 BEENERETE
BRI 17 3R #95,062,000 78 F % (20204F © 22,768,000
MER) - ZREIE T RA2,761,000F ¥
(2020%F : 24,659,000/K & 1) R X PR HIlR1T 45
18,899,000/ 5 4 (20204F : 9,997,000/ F 45 )
BN TR EMBRITRE (RIEBAIREK)
WE o H2020F9A308 » ZRRHIEEFRL
18300000 EHEEMH B AFIELENE
é o
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e M BHRRMNE
31. Cash and Bank Balances 31. R RBITEHEER
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
R2022F 720205
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Cash at banks and on hand RITMFERE 2,118 5617
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are RNEBNREZHEHEHMNIRES RIS EEWIAL
denominated in the following currencies: TEEE
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
#2022F 720204
3A31H 9H30H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEH THER
Hong Kong Dollar BT 28 584
United States Dollar ESViH 15 66
Ringgit Malaysia SR P PR 2,075 4,967
2,118 5617
As at 31 March 2022 and 30 September 2020, the Group performed R202283 A31H K20209F9 A30H » AEEY
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded the probability IRITAAREITRER L - WRBEFIRITED
of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no eI AEXR - Bt - SEREEEIEGHE
allowance for credit loss is provided. B o
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32. Assets Classified as Held for Sale/Liabilities Directly 32. 2 EABEHENEE HoEA
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Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale

BGMC Bras Power

As at 31 March 2022, assets classified held for sale represent the assets
associated with BGMC Bras Power and liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale represent liabilities associated with BGMC
Bras Power.

In March 2022, BGMC Corporation entered into a Deed of Arrangement
to dispose of interest in 95% ordinary shares of BGMC Bras Power. Details
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 June 2022. As at 31
March 2022, the Directors believe the disposal is highly probable and the
net carrying value of the relevant assets and liabilities will be recovered
principally through sale rather than continuing use. Accordingly, as at 31
March 2022, the assets and liabilities attributable to BGMC Bras Power
have been reclassified as held for sale and were measured at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

KAS Engineering

As at 30 September 2020, assets classified held for sale represented the
assets associated with KAS Engineering and liabilities directly associated
with assets classified as held for sale represented liabilities associated with
KAS Engineering.

On 16 November 2020, the Group announced to dispose of 100% equity
interest in KAS Engineering at the consideration of RM93,787,000. The
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities were expected
to exceed the proceeds of disposal and, accordingly, approximately
RM11,150,000 impairment loss was recognised on the classification of the
operation as held for sale during the year ended 30 September 2020. The
disposal of KAS Engineering was completed in June 2021.

BEHEEEEERBANAR
BGMC Bras Power

202293 A31H - HELE M E E 8 BEBGMC
Bras PowertBRERIE & © MEDEABIEHES
B H R 8 &5 BABGMC Bras PoweriE B8 1Y
afE -

202243 8 » BGMC Corporation 5] 3 % $F 32
# - & BGMC Bras PowerH)95% & i A% 125 -
HIBHNA R T BEIR202F6 27 AR RE o
20223 A31H  EFRR/EENF LR
A MEEEERBENREFEFZMBN
EiMmIFAEEEAURE o Bk - 7202293 A 31
B - 3B MNBGMC Bras PowertV EE R BEDE
P BARBELE  WARAEERAQFER L
ERAHEHBREETE -

KAS Engineering

202059 A30 R + #F1E & #) & B 18 BLKAS
Engineering iHEAM E & » MBS EAFIELE
& EEZ AR 8 E$8 BLKAS Engineering 18
MEE-

MR2020F 11 A16H - REBEHUKRE
93,787,000 ¥k F 45 ) & KAS Engineering &9 100%
& MEEERBENERIFEENBER
HEMEHRIE - B REE202099 A30H
EFE BEE BEAFIELHER  BRA
11,150,000 & FER BB o 702021F6 A 5K
KAS EngineeringfJ i & »
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32. Assets Classified as Held for Sale/Liabilities Directly 32. P EABEHENEE HoEA
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale BEHEEEEEHBNEE(E)

(continued)

M2022F3 8318 K%202059 8308 - BHEA
FENEEEERMAEMEERBENT ¢

The assets and liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held
for sale as at 31 March 2022 and 30 September 2020 are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
H2022F #2020%F
3A31H 9H30H
Notes RM’000 RM'000
BtEE FHER FRE S

Assets classified as held-for-sale PEABEHEZEE
KAS Engineering KAS Engineering = 293,154
BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power 16(b) 212,396 -
212,396 293,154

Liabilities directly associated with HoMARBELEZ
non-current assets held-for-sale FRBEEEEZERANEE

KAS Engineering KAS Engineering = 199,367
BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power 16(b) 124,803 -
124,803 199,367

£ 2022 ERIERERERAR 205




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

33. Trade and Other Payables 33. ESZ REMAENFUE
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
2022F #2020
3A31H 9H30H
Notes RM’000 RM'000
gz FHER TR E
Trade payables: B S EMNFIE
Third parties E=H 97,895 160,070
Related parties R 57 45273
97,952 205,343
Retention sum payables: ENRFER :
Third parties BE=F 16,043 35,597
Related parties BaE = 12,944
16,043 48,541
Other payables: EL M FETFRIE
Third parties F=h (a) | 18,137 31,645
Amount owing to an associate YN 1] /Nl O - 5,144
Amount owing to a related party HEIRBE T SRR 348 -
Accrued staff costs JEFT B TR AR 431 1,396
Accrued building construction related expenses JEHEF 2 & F8 R 5 st 77,414 66,004
Other accrued expenses HAb R 1,318 2,794
Provision for performance bonds (Note 10) BAVR B (HT5E10) 25,797 25,797
Goods and services tax payable JEAST 7 om Je BRAE 2,748 2,665
240,188 389,329
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REBMEMDTE
Current liabilities mEaE 192,291 389,239
Non-current liabilities FmEEE (b) 47,897 -
240,188 389,239
Amount owing to related parties (as defined in Note 25) included under SIANE N FIEREMNRE & RBETR
trade payables and retention sum payables are unsecured and interest-free. (T&ERMFE2s)FIEAEIER LSS -
Amount owing to an associate was unsecured and interest-free. HER - E AR RERBEERRES
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33. Trade and Other Payables (continued) 33. EZ REMENRIE(E
Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and B SREMNRIBEENE SFEMFER AR A
ongoing costs. The credit period granted to the Group for trade purchase EBENFE - AEERE SHIHBERNEER
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2020: 30 to 60 days). N TF30260H (20204 : 30260H ) °
The credit period on retention sum payables is 24 months (2020: 24 M RESNEER AR T %2418 A (20204 -
months) after completion of construction. 2418 F) -
Included in other payables as at 31 March 2022 is amount owing to a R202F3 A3 B EMEMNFIBERIESA R —
director amounted to RM71,000 (2020: RM13,643,000), is unsecured, BEERIE - 27 /R71,0000E (20206
interest-free and repayable on demand. 13643000 E ) » AEER RERKEK

BE -

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the ERBZEAHZE S EMNTIBORESITAT -

invoice dates.

As at As at

31 March 30 September

2022 2020

R2022F 72020

3A31H 9H30H

RM’000 RM'000

FHER THER

0-30 days 0%30H 16,422 34,096

31-90 days 31290H 52,065 45,672

Over 90 days 90H A 29,465 125,575

97,952 205,343

Notes: st

@  On 19 January 2022, BGMC Holdings, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, has @  F2022F1 A198 - R E A FBGMC Holdings
entered into an advance agreement ("“Advance Agreement’) with reNIKOLA EReNIKOLART L B B & ([ BEWHZE]) - BGMC
and BGMC Holdings received an advance from reNIKOLA of RM8,800,000 during Holdings 74 7% 2 ff] B reNIKOLA U BR 4 & 8,800,000k
the Period. Pursuant to the Advance Agreement, the RCPS held by the Group as HE o BEBEREWZ  AEBBANAERTE
disclosed in Note 23 shall be pledged to the advance in favour of reNIKOLA. The BB SRR (MR 238 58 ) FELAreNIKOLA & 25 AE
outstanding balance of RM8,800,000 (2020: Nil) was included in other payables as at BEENER o RETEREES,800 OOOMi%(ZON
31 March 2022. The amount is interest-free and repayable upon the completion of F - T)IR2022F3A31 Bt AL FER FRIT o #%3K

the disposal of BGMC Bras Power. 18 A% B I SRR HH & BGMC Bras Powerlks fE ?’TE\}&
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33. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)
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On 25 May 2021, BGMC Corporation issued an explanatory statement to its
creditors in connection with its proposal to enter into a scheme of arrangement
(the "Scheme”) with its creditors pursuant to section 366 of the Companies Act. On
16 June 2021, the creditors approved the Scheme at the court convened creditors
meeting. On 13 January 2022, BGMC Corporation obtained the sanction of the High
Court of Malaya in relation to the Scheme and the court order has been lodged with
the Companies Commission of Malaysia on 24 January 2022 for registration.

All Scheme Creditors will be divided into 2 categories (“Category A" & "Category
B") according to the status of the projects the Scheme Creditor being involved with.
Pursuant to the Scheme, debt was compromised at a ratio of repayment of RM0.5
for debt principal amount of RM1 for Category A Scheme Creditors as full settlement
and repayment of RM0.7 for debt principal amount of RM1 for Category B Scheme
Creditors as full settlement, as a result of which a reduced amount of debt would be
owed to the Scheme Creditors (“Creditor’'s Compromised Sum”). The Scheme also
required the Scheme Creditors to waive all interest, penalty and/or default interest,
late payment interest, costs and other charges of a similar nature.

20% of the Creditors’ Compromised sum was to be settled in cash within 3 months
after the effective date.

80% of the Creditors’ Compromised Sum was to be settled by converting the same
into Redeemable Secured Loan Stocks (“RSLS”) issued by BGMC Corporation.

The RSLS would be redeemable at the discretion of BGMC Corporation anytime
within 36 months from date of issues at its principal amount with its accrued
interest due and payable by the Company on the redemption date. The RSLS is not
tradeable nor transferable, the RSLS holders also no voting rights.

The RSLS will become due and repayable 36 months from the issue date, interest
will be accrued on the outstanding principal amount of the RSLS from the issue date
at a rate of interest of 1% per annum for the first 12 months, 1.5% per annum from
the 13th month to the 24th month and 2% per annum from the 25th month till the
due date.

The RSLS will be secured by the investment properties of RM25,000,000 (Note 20)
and properties owned by the debtor which will be transferred to the Group as
settlement of trade receivables of approximately RM24,413,000.

As at 31 March 2022, the RSLS has not been issued due to various administrative
matters. The Group classified the outstanding balance of RM47,897,000 related to
RSLS as non-current portion of trade payables. The gain on extinguishment of debts
amounted to RM46,114,000 and recognised in other gains/(losses), net.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in May 2022, the 20% of the
Creditors’ Compromised sum has been settled and in June 2022, BGMC Corporation
has issued the RSLS to MTrustee Berhad (“trustee”), whereby the trustee holds the
RSLS on behalf of all Scheme Creditors.

BGMC International Limited

3. EGRHMENE

X IE (#8)

Hiat - (%)

(b)

72021455 258 » BGMC CorporationFh E R IE A 7]
EE oI RERAERTHAR(TRARDHE
BREBEARM T —HRBIEREA - K20215F6
A168 - BRADERBHNERASH EIET
Zat#E) - 7202241 8138 © BGMC CorporationFh ik
FTRERTHRADSFERMIE  ERras
ER2020F 1 A4ARGFERFRKATRARZES -
LAYEE RS ©

ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁé/\ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁfﬁ
AR RE(TAEIRIBE]) -
ﬂ]ﬁﬂtﬂzA%ﬁJE—

REREASRHEB MR
RigZIT% - &5
ERABE RS IME FEERS

MERERZREE - ABETRERABEE
MERERRBBENLEET  ALEENE
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UEEREMEA

2006 {E 1 AR 5 B AS 70 A2k B BRI 3 ME A AR

AN il
BIFE -
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BRI ER A RRES R (] 7 EE A K
&% 1)5E -

AJ & 01 /5 353 & % 7] FRBGMC Corporation R i 1F 2%
1127 ARE36ME A AR IR A& R H R 2 Em -
WHARAREBEBXEN - AffELEAEAERT
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A EAEIRME S AT B IR R03618 A M2
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EREREAER - AL E 49244130000 FH B
B S REWIE o

202238318 - AlEEAERIFESESEITR
FEEHATET - AEEBHEERAEIFESHE
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34. Borrowings - Secured

e MR RRME

34. fRE - CHEH

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
20225 M2020%F
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHES THRE S

Current; BNER
Bank overdrafts (a) RITEX () 2,794 5413
Multiple facilities (b) %Z LR E (b) - 56,108
Loan from DPI Solar 1 (c) 7K B DPI Solar TEYE R () = 7,765
Total #Et 2,794 69,286

Summiary of borrowing arrangements are as follows:

(a

Bank overdrafts are secured by facility agreements for a sum of
RM2,780,000 (2020: RM5,500,000) as at 31 March 2022, fixed deposits
of the Group of RM1,430,000 (2020: Nil), memorandum of deposit over
certain fixed deposits of the Group of Nil (2020: RM21,016,000) and
corporate guarantee by the Company and/or the subsidiaries.

Multiple facilities, comprising general financing line, contract
financing line and blanket contract financing line to finance
construction projects, are RM103,289,000 (2020: RM100,787,000) of
which RM73,262,000 were utilised for the provision of performance
guarantee to the customers. The facilities were secured by corporate
guarantee by the Company and/or its subsidiaries and memorandum
of legal charge over deposit and letter of set-off over fixed deposit
of a subsidiary, by creating a sinking fund account of approximately
RM 12,356,000 (2020: RM6,359,000), pledged fixed deposits and
restricted bank balances of approximately RM1,929,000 and
RM9,304,000 (2020: RM22,768,000 and RM9,997,000), respectively,
investment properties of RM25,000,000 (Note 20) and assignment of
considerations received from the customers.

During the Period, the Group has repaid all borrowings under multiple
facilities.

fEEZ PR T

(a

RT3 X 20224F3 A 31 H#2%8/42,780,000
R 5 (20204 © 5,500,000/ 5 ) 2 B &
e~ A5 B E HA1F 501,430,000 7K & 45
(2020%F « B) - AEERBHETEHER
ZIFR SR (20204 ¢ 21,016,0004F 7
B RAREI R SKH B AR Z DEER
YEHEIR o

ZIREBHESERAERRRESHN —
BBERE AABMERER—RIES

R ERRE  £103,289,0004 & #F (2020
£:100,787,000MF 55 ) + H H173,262,0004%
HREEARBATPHNBOEREA -
ZEMETDARRR R LEMBARMED
M EER R T RIEL AEE R A K&
F—RENE AR TR ED AR ERE
E(HTAABRLEEES KRS 4912356,000
MR 4 (20204F © 6,359,000 EFH)) ~ 2
KM TERTREZRABITEHD B
1,929,000 Mk F #F % 9,304,000 M & % (2020
F 122,768 0002 5 59,997, 000#K FE 4% )
P& 225,000,000 2 75 (FT5E20) S 8538
EEFREEER -

RAHE  AREDEEZTRE THM
BIERK -

F3R 2022
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34. Borrowings - Secured (continued) 3. BE-HBEMR(E)

(¢ During the year ended 30 September 2019, the Company entered (© MREZE2019F9A308IFE - ARRH
into a loan agreement with DPI Solar 1, a company incorporated DPI Solar 1 (¥ A3 s A SZ /92 /1) 7T
in Singapore, for a loan amounting to USD14,288,000 (equivalent S E R E - LAES B 3014,288,000% 7T
to approximately RM59,369,000). The said loan was subject to (FHE 7 4959,369,000M E4r) o Ll E KA
fixed interest at 6.5% per annum and with tenure of six months, ZEEFF K650 - AHNEA - A
commencing from the date of the first withdrawal which was in July BHIXRERH EI(BN2019F 7 A) #BET - HZE
2019. The Company had outstanding an amount of approximately 20209 A30R * ARABAREENEEL
RM7,765,000 as of 30 September 2020. During the Period, the 57,765,000 F 1 o RAHIR - ARFE
Company has fully settled the balance. EHUEEABRARRK o

The remaining maturity periods of borrowings as at 31 March 2022 and 30 R2022F3 8318 %2020F9 A308 Z B E T

September 2020 are as follows: FHWT :

As at As at

31 March 30 September

2022 2020

#2022 #2020

3A31H 9H30H

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER THER

On demand or within one year REKEERN—FNK 2,794 69,286
The weighted average interest rates per annum for borrowings as at end of RMEBRRZBEMETHERNEDT

the reporting period are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
2022 20204
3A31H 9H30H
Variable rate: A AR K
Bank overdrafts RITIBEX 6.65% 6.60%
Multiple facilities ZILRE 5.82% 6.80%
Fixed rate: EEF &
Loan from DPI Solar 1 B DPI Solar 1HIE X 6.50% 6.50%
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35. Pledge of or Restriction on Assets
Pledge of assets

The Group's trade payables, borrowings and other banking facilities had
been secured by the pledge of the Group's assets and the carrying amounts

e MR RRME

35. EEH M RH
BEEEA

AEBENEZRENFR - EFRMEMBRITRE
EL%EKEIE’TZ%?%%&?WHE% IR ED

of the respective assets are as follows: EEEENT -
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
20225 H2020%F
3A31H 9H30H
Notes RM’000 RM'000
Bt 5 FHER THER
Investment in RCPS (Note 23) 7] BB [B] AT B (B S R A
BRE(H7t23) @) 5,694 -
Fixed deposits (Note 30) TE BATE SR (B aE30) (b) 26,722 39,124
Investment properties (Note 20) B WE(BaE20) @) 25,000 25,000
57,416 64,124
Notes: et -

(a) As at 31 March 2022, investment in RCPS, amounting to approximately RM5,694,000
(2020: RM Nil) was pledged to the advance in favour of reNIKOLA in accordance with
the Advance Agreement as disclosed in Note 33(a).

(b)  Included in the fixed deposits as at 31 March 2022 are pledged fixed deposits,
restricted fixed deposits and restricted bank balances were the security of the
multiple facilities as disclosed in Note 34 and other banking facilities (including
performance bonds).

(©) As at 31 March 2022, investment properties of RM25,000,000 (2020: RM25,000,000)
were pledged to the multiple facilities as disclosed in Note 34.

Restriction on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of RM425,000 (2020: RM21,643,000) are
recognised with the related right-of-use assets of RM279,000 (2020:
RM18,894,000) as at 31 March 2022. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interest in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor of the relevant leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

@  F202243A31H + RAEERI ATERELRATZE
495,694,000 5 5 (20204 : EMEHIF)IBRIELE W
HLAeNKOLABZm AERRERE IR - FHIEHMT
FE33(a) 15 ©

() TFHERBER202F3831BEHEMER -
REIEHTFRARZRERITESR(ZITREER
) FHERK 4R EARITRVE (BIEE AR
BH)HEFE o

(€ R202%3A31H  REITEVARTIKIRMNIEEME
25,000,00078 2 5 (20204 : 25,000,000KF ) + &
ISR T34 EE -

BERH

I 4h o T E B & 425000 Ak F 45 (2020 F ¢
21,643,000 45 ) 742022 4E3 A 31 B B2 A #EE
EE279,0007R 5 45 (20204F : 18,894,000FK 2 1) —
FHER - MERRLEEMNERRHE R THE
BELHARENEBEEEENEREZ)
HEEETSREBROERR -

FR2022 EIERERARAE 2N
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36. Lease Liabilities 36. HEEE
Present
Present value of
value of
Lease lease Lease lease
payment payments payment payments
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 30 September 30 September
2022 2022 2020 2020
HEMNAR HERR
HEAR RE HERH RE
20225 120224 H2020%F M2020%F
3A31H 3A31H 9H30H 9H30H
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHES FHER FHER THRE S
Within one year N 341 264 4,619 3,385
In the second to fifth years, EF_EZRF
inclusive PREEEMS 180 161 9,088 5,192
After five years AFAE - - 16,950 13,066
521 425 30,657 21,643
Less: Future finance charges B RREERY (96) - (9,014) -
Present value of lease liabilities ~ THE B FIRE 425 425 21,643 21,643
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : 1218 A R EIEHEEH
within 12 months (shown SBERRBEET
under current liabilities) 2751) - (264) - (3,385)
Amount due for settlement R12ER&EED
after 12 months FHARRIE - 161 - 18,258

At 31 March 2022, the average effective borrowing rate was 5.65% (2020:
6.32%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the

Group to fair value interest rate risk.

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its property, plant and equipment
under finance leases. Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance
leases as at 31 March 2022 are fixed at respective contract rates ranging
from 2.50% to 3.30% (2020: 2.34% to 3.30%) per annum.

212 ANNUALREPORT2022  BGMC International Limited

R2022F3A318  FHEBRBEFEE565%
(2020%F : 632%) °» FIEREHNBHETE + A&
I b AR A T EF R R -

HERMEHEBETHNETYE BMEEEESR
REBHEER - R202F3831BRERE A
AYERRRFE R EE T AN 2.50%23.30% (2020
F 1 234%F330%) 2 BB HIFIE o
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37. Share Capital 37. R
The share capital as at 31 March 2022 and 30 September 2020 represents 720223 A31 H KX2020%9 A30 BRI AR K
the share capital of the Company with details as follows: ARARRIRRA - FFEIBT
Number
of shares Amount Amount
REEE &8 &8
HKS$ RM’000
BT THER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ERAE.0IBTEER
Authorised: EE
As at 1 October 2019, 30 September 2020 F22019910 818 ~ 2020859 A30H
and 31 March 2022 K2022%3H31H 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRHR
As at 1 October 2019, 30 September 2020 F2201991081H ~ 2020559 A30H
and 31 March 2022 N2022%3A31H 1,800,000,000 18,000 9,862
38. Reserves 38. f#fE
(a) Group (a) &=K£H
The amounts of the Group’s share premium and reserves and REBERMEERFEHEREEZHESHEZT
movements therein are presented in the consolidated statement of REFEEREREMEERARARGS #
profit or loss, and other comprehensive income and consolidated MBI ©
statement of changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) A&ATF
Details of movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows: RAFIRENEEFIBENOT

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

v =4 et

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

FHER FHERE FHRE R

At 1 October 2019 2019 10A1H 135,571 (31,118) 104,453
Loss and total comprehensive loss KERBER

for the year T HEHEERE - (35,013) (35013)

At 30 September 2020 7202059 H30H 135,571 (66,131) 69,440
Loss and total comprehensive loss AEAEEE R

for the Period S HEERE - (28,535) (28,535)

At 31 March 2022 7R202263H31H 135,571 (94,666) 40,905
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38. Reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i

(ii)

(iii)

214 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Share premium

Share premium represents premium from the issue of ordinary

shares of the Company above par value in prior years.

Redeemable preference shares reserves

Redeemable preference shares reserve represents the value of

the unexercised equity component of redeemable preference

share issued by the Company.

Other reserve

(@)

BGMC International Limited

The transfer of the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital of BGMC
Holdings after the Company became the ultimate holding
company of the Group upon the completion of the
reorganisation on 6 December 2016.

The repayment of amounts due to directors of
RM65,000,000 in BGMC Holdings through the issue of
additional shares by BGMC Holdings to BGMC Malaysia
Limited on 26 January 2017 as part of the reorganisation
requirements. The directors mentioned are the controlling
shareholders of the Group.

38. A& (&)

() RENMERRR

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R4 E

By aEEBEFERREERITA
NEVE BRI PTEEARE

AEE &L RS

A RE R EBE A AR EITH
BB RITERRNBDHE
(=

HitvfeE s

@ 2016F12AcAEATKELRR
AR AR E B SKER QR %
RN R)EET 2 IR TE B & BGMC
Holdings B B/ TRR AN (B 2 Z= 58

) {EAREAERKMN—FHR2017
1 A 268 3@ #BABGMC Holdings
[A BGMC Malaysia Limited 2 77 &8
SR 17 18 42 JE - BGMC Holdings
R IE 65,000,000 E 5 o+
MEERRNEEIERAR -
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39. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 39. &SR &R E KM
(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities METHFEEEENES
Total
Obligations liabilities
Share under Other from
Borrowings  application Lease finance payables financing
- secured monies liabilities leases  (Note 33(a)) activities
Hfth BEED
&E& K i AR EEN
—BER RENE HEERE HERE  (M&33) BELR
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
THER THER THER THER THER THER
At 1 October 2019 2019510418 301438 37230 - 8621 - 347,89
Changes in cash flows Benes (68,802) 48770 (7978) - - (28010)
Non-cash changes FRLEH
- interest charged -BIFIE 17472 - 1525 - - 18,997
- impact of frst adoption of IFRS 16 ~BRFRERRBRE
b0 - - 28310 (8621) - 19689
- Issuance of redeemable preference ~BNEEELK
shares - (31,730) - - - (31,730)
- Liabilities directly associated with assets ~ — RS BHEHEZ
dclassified as held for sale EEERAENERE (180822) - (214) - - (181,036)
At 30 September 2020 and 1R2020F9A308 &

1 Qctober 2020 2020F10A1H 69,286 54270 21,643 - - 145,199
Changes in cash flows BeinERy (22.876) - (6,062) - 8800 (20,138)
Non-cash changes FREE

- interest charged —BIFIE 12928 - 1,804 - - 14732

- Issuance of redeemable preference - BIERELR

shares - (54,270) - - - (54,270)
- Disposal of a subsidiary ~HERBAR 15,89 - 132 - - 16028
- Liabilities directly associated with assets ~ — S8 BIEHEZ
classified as held for sale BEEERENGE (72440) - (17,092) - - (89,532)
At 31 March 2022 12022634318 2,79 - 425 - 8,800 12,019
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39. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 39. 422 & E XM (E)

(continued)
(b) Major non-cash transaction (b) FEFRERS

() During the Period, the Group settled trade payables by property, () PAKRHIR  NEBYE - BEMR
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to A K f5f R & = 9 51 £92,120,0004K
approximately RM2,120,000 and RM2,317,000 respectively. HRR2317000M S FEEE HIER

FRIE ©

(i)  During the Period, the Group settled amount owing to Tan (i) PARERE - mEENEKEEARE
Sri Barry Goh by trade receivables from a related company 5 FE WA 13,572,000 F 45 46 & 45
amounted to RM13,572,000. R B REABHFIA -

(i)  During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Group contra (i) MNEFE2020F9A308IEFE + &
trade receivables amounted to RM25,000,000 by investment SEUNIREMEREE 5 EUFRIA
properties. 25,000,000/ 4 o

40. Capital Commitments 40. EAKIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had approved and contracted RIMERR - AEE D HE KA 408 —
for subscription of ordinary shares in an associate and investment properties ERNAINEBR  UNEERREYENB LD
under construction, as follows: N
As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
R2022F #2020
3A31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Approved and contracted for: EHAERETAD -
Investment in an associate (Note 22) B R R E (W it22) - 37,014
Investment properties under constructions EEREME 2,878 3,539
2,878 40,553
The settlement of outstanding capital commitments of the Group will be REBEREBEREE 2 #BEBRINEER R
made in cash upon investment properties that has been approved and R EYFEE LIRS TS »

contracted for.
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41. Related Party Transactions NBEIRXS
In addition to the balances of the Group with related parties disclosed in B E P55 N33 AT IR R B AR S B R B T 45
Notes 25 and 33 above, the Group has the following transactions with RN - REEEREEH (T R EE25) BT
related parties (as defined in Note 25) carried out based on agreed terms TR G RBEER NG ELT) -

and condition.

Period from
1 October
2020 to Year ended
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
20204
10818
20225 HZ2020%F
3A31BHE 9H30HILFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER FHRE R
Construction revenue/(cost) from related parties: RERETESRWZ S (BRK)
D' Pristine Medini Sdn. Bhd. D’ Pristine Medini Sdn. Bhd. - (7,448)
B&G Global Property Sdn. Bhd. B&G Global Property Sdn. Bhd. - 14,097
Construction cost paid to a related party: S FREE T B REM A
Exa Power Sdn. Bhd. Exa Power Sdn. Bhd. 2,048 6,737
The remuneration of the directors and key management including chief EERTEERE(BEARREETHASR)
executive of the Company is disclosed in Note 14. 2 FNA I FE 1482 FR -
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42, Subsidiaries 42, B A F

W, PP B A R SR IA B T - B N

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
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no fixed terms of repayment.

The Company has the following subsidiaries:

[ 7 AR

ARFHBARNT :

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable equity
registration and paid ordinary interest held
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
ARAL/ BRR BETRHAR
WEBARER Teng LERRA KRG ER IEXH
As at Asat
31March 30 September
2022 2020
20225 #2020
3A31H 9A30R
Directly Owned
EREE
BGMC Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands/ Usb100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Malaysia
ZERNES/ 100%70 REBR
Y i
Indirectly Owned
GBS
BGMC Holdings Berhad Malaysia RM1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRAE 100005 % REER
BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM1 100% 100%  Investmentin the solar power infrastructure
business
Y i &R REAGHEEERRE
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM10,000,000 100% 100%  Building construction and investment holding
BRAE: 100000004 & ¥ BFRERRARK
Built-Master Elevator Engineering Sdn. Bh. Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Supply and installation of elevators
HRAE 7500004 5 HERLEER
Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Mechanical and electrical engineering and
investment holding
SRAE 7500004 5 EIRRRARK
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42, Subsidiaries (continued) 42, B AR (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable equity
registration and paid ordinary interest held
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
ERRL BRR BETRAR
WELREH B EERRA RAAMEEEER IRXH
Asat Asat
31March 30 September
2022 2020

R2022% 0204
38318 9308

Indirectly Owned (continued)

BEES(H)

Headway Construction Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM6,750,000 51% 51%  Earthworks and infrastructure works
(Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests)

(BRFARER  ERFEAMBAR) FRA 67500000 &5 TARTRRERTE
KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM5,000,000 - 100%  Concession with the Government of Malaysia
(Note 32) for the construction of a university building,

and building maintenance service provider
for the said university building

HRES SO00000MER (W) RAERASRER A LRASRE
RUEEEERIEHSRAEHH
R
BGMC BRAS Power Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100,000 95% 95%  Development and construction relating to
provision of renewable energy
HRAE 10000045 4 RERHBLERNERLER
BGMC Estate Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100% 100%  Holding of investment properties
SRR 100ME S BERENE

£ 2022 BEREBRERERAR 219




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

43. Contingent Liabilities 43. FARAE
(@  On 28 March 2019, the Company received a writ of summons together @) H20199F3A28H + AR FEE—HE
with an indorsement of claim dated 19 March 2019 in the High Court StER BB A2019F3 A 198 B RR
of Shah Alam, Malaysia by 47 plaintiffs (“Plaintiffs”) against Kingsley E - BA/ZREATEEADNESXK
Hills Sdn. Bhd. as the first defendant and BGMC Corporation, as the EEY M EZ EREL - HfKingsley
second defendant. Please refer to the Company’s announcement of Hills Sdn. Bhd. & 28 — # & A + 0 BGMC
28 March 2019 for further details of the litigation. Corporation 228 Z# 5 A © BEZF LK
E—EE - B2HAAFAER20194
3A28HMRE o
BGMC Corporation had filed an interlocutory application to strike BGMC Corporation$2 (H JEIEEEHFE © B3k
out the Plaintiffs’ case as well as a counterclaim against the Plaintiffs’ HEERE ARG EHRES AREA KRR
claiming for alleged additional liquidated ascertained damaged R(AEXRAEZER R D RERENETZ
absorbed in good faith and spirit of the full and final settlement B RS R EIE M B INE B E
agreement. The High Court has allowed BGMC Corporation’s &) o BE AR B #LEBGMC Corporation )
application and struck out the Plaintiff's writ and statement of claim. HBETHERERSEANSHKEERE - 134
13 Plaintiffs have appealed against the High Court’s decision to FEEABREFREERS S AR RIEL
the Court of Appeal. On 25 August 2021, the Court of Appeal has FEF o BR2021F8H25H » EAREE—K
unanimously dismissed the 13 Plaintiffs’ appeal and affirmed the High BET13RRE AN RIS E AR
Court's decision to strike out the Plaintiffs’ claims. BEEREABRZHHFR -
As to the counterclaim initiated by BGMC Corporation against the 4N | S FT 4% 72 B8 74 BGMC Corporation &t
remaining Plaintiffs who did not appeal against the High Court's HEB AN ST AMEARE FFFRAERE
decision (34 Plaintiffs in total) as disclosed above, the application has EARENRF(ELUEREN)  &F
been dismissed by the High Court on 20 August 2021. SEBTE 20218 A20 A BBl B REE S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(b)

In the ordinary course of business, Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd.
(‘Built-Master Engineering"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
had awarded a sub-contract for electrical work to a third party in 2018.
The said sub-contract was subsequently terminated by Built-Master
Engineering due to breach of certain terms and conditions of the sub-
contract on the part of the third party. The third party initiated a legal
action against Built-Master Engineering claiming, amongst others,
the balance payment of approximately RM733,000 and interest at
5% per annum from the date of the Writ, i.e. 21 March 2018 until the
date of the full and final settlement on the basis that the termination
was wrongful. Built-Master Engineering has entered their defence
denying the claim and thereafter filed a counterclaim against the
said third party. On 22 July 2020, the High Court of Malaysia granted
judgment against Built-Master Engineering and dismissed Built-
Master Engineering’s counterclaim. On 6 August 2020, Built-Master
Engineering lodged appeal against the said judgment.

On 22 May 2021, Built-Master Engineering and the third party have
entered into a settlement agreement to settle the judgment sum of
RM764,000 which is included in trade payables as at 31 March 2022. As
amicable settlement has been reached, Built-Master Engineering has
withdrawn the appeal filed at the Court of Appeal with no order as to
cost and no liberty to file afresh.

e MR RRME

43. HAARKE(H)

(b)

RABEKREFR  AARHEEREA
Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd.( TBwIt—Master
Engineering |) B 2018 F B H TS
BYE=F HBRE=ZFERSENSE
FIER G - EﬁZBth Master Engmeermg
BERRIE LMD B o BE=TRBAK
BREE ﬁﬁlé‘TBth—Master Engmeermg?m
HOERFD - ER(AREE)BIMRE
tﬂz B (B120184 3 A 21 Eli?tf’ﬁtlj}f“
BERMNEHENBE)RGHE - I
,@733,ooo$7r:5¢¢ﬁ’aﬁ%§5 38 [R] 4 F K 5% HY
A B o Built-Master Engineering B 1£ H 11
W ARRBER ARHERE=1R
HREBER - 12020678228 © KRR
= & A B ¥ Built-Master Engineering 1 ) #|
SR B @ Built-Master Engineering®I s BB ZR ©
Built-Master Engineering B 72202058 A 6 H
¥ EPRRED AR -
F2021F5 5228

» Built-Master Engineering

B = FEEKME R WEEHRE
%5764OOO7F7F:':5H C ZERER2022F3 A

HEt AB SERIE - AR EERRL

Tﬁ%aﬁ * Built-Master Engineering 2 (Bl 7£ =

FORERLE FFF - MEAME#EGS R
BERBRARER -

F3R 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

43. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(c) Asdisclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020,
a subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had

disputes with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed
in completing the works under two contracts arising out of the
same project. Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group's two
performance bonds in the amount of approximately RM25,800,000.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an
injunction in the High Court and has obtained an ad-interim
injunction order dated 29 May 2020 against the forfeiture of the
performance bonds by Customer A. On 16 April 2021, the High Court
granted the Group the injunction order. The next case management

date for the matteris 11 August 2022.

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 (which
was withdrawn and retained as two arbitrations on 26 October
2020) to dispute the validity of the terminations by Customer A and
claim against Customer A for (i) losses of profit of approximately
RM35,000,000, (ii) return of retention sum of approximately
RM4,400,000 and (jii) return of the sums under the two performance

bonds amounting to approximately RM25,800,000.

On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of
approximately RM126,400,000 (which then became counterclaims of
approximately RM83,000,000 in the two arbitrations) in the arbitration

proceeding against the Group.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue, the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing. The
next preliminary meeting for the matter is 6 September 2022.

The Group’s legal counsel is in the opinion that the Group has a
stronger case to persuade the arbitrator to rule the facts in the Group's

favour.

43. HAARKEH)

(@

NN B B HA20205 6 A30H AL
e AR —ENBRARNIESHE
HiBREREESA LAY -

202055 A22H - BPABKEKR EEE

BHRBA - EBIEAEBETEETKFE 8
BETMHOEHRENTRE - TREARER
R 7R &2 [ ) PR 22 /B 40 (R 78 & #925,800,0004K

H o

R20205F5 A27H  AEBRESFEREH
EEYiEa jf#zozoisﬁ 9BMELAL
W BARE SIS ES o 720214
48168 - mwﬂﬂi%ﬂ&%%ﬁ%% °
BREEMNTREHEEAEA20224FS8
AnA -

ANEB RS R 202086 A30H F@WJ%&
(7220205 10 A 26 B B W (R B A FRIE
&) - xT%)EA?%Jt:.,ﬁE’J“ﬁxﬁzlﬁmuﬂ,w
WA TIE B MEFAR T E%ﬂ/\ © () A
[E5184935,000,000F 45 + (i) z@%wm )
4,400,000 F B R (i)REMNDBLHERS
#925,800,000FKF 4 o

R2020F8 A17H » EEAEHREZFF A
ARE2 B H I BB R #9126,400,00000 2 45 (BE
1B IEMIB (P EL P 75 = B R 4983,000,000/
) o

REETENSEEUBHREABE - 66
MERFDEETP - BEEEN N — KX
TEfE e I A2022F9 861 °

REH E’J%&EEF? RRAEEREREEF
BN - RS IRIPER B UAHAREEAH
E’U?‘i@iimx# °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(d)

On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation received a demand letter
from a licensed bank in Malaysia (the “Bank”), in which the Bank
alleged that it had received a demand against a bank guarantee
from a beneficiary (the “Beneficiary”) being a customer of BGMC
Corporation, in the sum of approximately RM5,500,000, and unless
the Beneficiary withdraws its demand or the Bank is restrained from
performing its obligations, the Bank would effect payment of the sum
demanded to the Beneficiary on 24 November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by
BGMC Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for
which the Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly
performed its contractual obligation.

On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors, BGMC Corporation filed
an application ("“Application”) to the Kuala Lumpur High Court against
the Beneficiary, which restrains it from receiving the sum demanded
by the Beneficiary. On 24 November 2020, the Kuala Lumpur High
Court granted an interim injunction in favour of BGMC Corporation,
which restrained the Beneficiary, their respective agents, employees
and/or officers from effecting the claims of the performance bond or
receiving the payment or part payment under the performance bond
from the Bank until the disposal of the originating summons filed by
BGMC Corporation against the Beneficiary. On 20 May 2021, the Kuala
Lumpur High Court granted the injunction order in favour of BGMC
Corporation.

The Beneficiary has applied for an appeal. The estimated payout
is the bank guarantee in the sum of approximately RM5,500,000
should the action be successful. The matter is currently fixed for case
management on 7 July 2022.

The burden of proving any mistake in law made by the Honourable
High Court for the appeal is on the Beneficiary while the
Beneficiary was still holding on to the retention sum tantamount to
unconscionable conduct since the alleged back-charges for defects
were certified and estimated to be approximately RM3,644,000.

Based on the advice from the Group’s legal counsel, the Directors
consider BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation
and has not provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these
consolidated financial statements.

e MR RRME

43. HAARKE(H)

d

720204 11 A 20 B + BGMC Corporation
BHESRAT —FEFRRIT(TRITDHN
RK(F - RIBITE D W EIERBGMC
CorporationE FPHIZm A ([Z#A ) 2R
FTHEIRZE 495,500 00008 F FF » WHEHRIE
Fan A H =K EBR IERZ R TR 1
THE - BRIZIRITAER20205F11 A 24
ARYEAXNRENFIE

BEZmABZBITHERE  ZEXK
B3 BGMC Corporation [A] 5 2% A BB Ay — T8
FAEBEEMNBEORTSER  XHARE
BGMC Corporation R & E1TH A RFELS ©

720205 11 A23H * BGMC Corporation £
MBHFEMREEERFERELE TR
HIRHARKWBFZ([RE])  HER
#Z2m AMCERE RSKAIFRIE o 7 20204F
11H248 - SEEEZF AR L E T BGMC
Corporation ) BB 55 2% T R R 205 < - 22
EREmA - EEENRER - BEER %
BB EBEHZBITREBORESNESR
U AR 2 FR R IE S EB 2 3R IE ¢+ B BIBGMC
Corporation[Al %z AT M FFIAME R4 R
AlE e R2021F5 208 - TRFEEES

B % F 38 RIBGMC CorporationFZEH| < o

Fm A EHB LR o IR EFKI
STEY S H R A 495,500,000 8 7 5 VSR 1T 1
# o ZEEBRAITER202F7A7RETE
HEM -

FRBRE AR LRI TRERERNE
FERZZmA - MZmANFEEEERT
AEBEITANRES  AAFENRBEER
B B2 BRIl 5T R K 493,644,000/ F

¥ o

BEAEBEZERNES  E2R5
BGMC Corporation ¥] 5 #A 6 B i #t
UL R L AR S BT IS IR R P RE ez S AL S
REE ARG ST R EE -
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e MR RRME

43. Contingent Liabilities (continued) 43. AR E(E)

(e) Pursuant to a call and put option agreement entered into between () MRIEZARAF + BGMC Energy * DPI Solar 17
the Company, BGMC Energy, DPI Solar 1 and Sparks Energy dated Sparks Energy 2201948 A 20 H 25 5] K 3R BE
29 August 2019, in the consideration of the put option fee and MRoh iR - S EEHEEBR L
the mutual covenants and undertakings, the Company irrevocably H R NodeE - AR BN A R R T
grants to DPI Solar 1 an option to require the Company to purchase DPI Solar 1EA#E - AIEZSKAARIIRERIZE
the put option shares from DPI Solar 1 at the option price of US$1 TCHY BB & 1AIDPI Solar 188 B 320H HIRE N
per share. On 19 February 2021, DPI Solar 1 exercised the said put 5 o 1202152 A 198 + DPI Solar 1971
option and required the Company to purchase 50.1% the put option AERH BN E SR AN R R B 50.1%% F
shares, which is 50.1% of the Class 1 Preference Shares amounted to O HAME N (D - BN BB LR 500% - &
US$10,736,000. #8/5%10,736,0003 7T °
The Company did not purchase the said preference shares. As a result, RARWEREE FlBELA - Bt - DPI
DPI Solar 1 commenced arbitration proceedings against the Company. Solar 18T AN R AR EE(F IR Fr o AR
As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been TSR AV mRER A - BEMHRE
authorised for issue, the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing. FAFEEITH -
Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors BEAEELARBERNESE  EFZAN
consider the Group has a valid defence against the litigation and SESFAEEME - Bl ER GRS
has not provided for any claim arising from the litigation in the B SRR P LA S| B MR R B EHIE
consolidated financial statements. B o
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44, Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

e M RRME

44, XRQ T 2 B AR R R

EMAARARRE B2 BSRR R 2 AR
m -

As at As at
31 March 30 September
2022 2020
R2022% #2020%F
3H31H 9H30H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER FhER
ASSETS BE
Non-Current Assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENBARIZEE 1 1
Amount owing from a subsidiary FEU— IR B A R RE 62,581 -
62,582 1
Current Assets REEE
Other receivables H U ERIE 98 33
Amounts owing from subsidiaries FEUSFT BB A BIRIE 5,144 99413
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHES 41 651
Total Current Assets REBEEATE 5,283 100,097
Total Assets BEHAEE 67,865 100,098
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Enkas
Capital and Reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital A% A 9,862 9,862
Share premium EEEvapiay =] 135,571 135,571
Accumulated losses R5TBE (94,666) (66,131)
Total equity R 50,767 79,302
Current Liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued expenses E A e 50IE R BRI X 1,232 893
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGB 15,658 12,137
Amount due to related parties FESTREE T 5RIR 208 -
Borrowings BE = 7,766
Total Liabilities BE8E 17,098 20,796
Total Equity and Liabilities Rk BERAE 67,865 100,098
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

45, Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting

Period

(i)

(ii)

226 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Effect of outbreak of coronavirus pandemic

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has caused travel restrictions
and lockdown and prolonged economic downturn nationwide and
worldwide since 2020. The Group and the Company are cognizant
of the challenges posed by these developing events and is actively
monitoring and taking appropriate and timely measures, also works
closely with the local authorities to support their efforts in containing
the spread of COVID-19 to minimise the impact of COVID-19 on
its business operations. The COVID-19 mitigation measures that
implemented by the Group and the Company include physical
distancing at work, workplace segregation, staggered work hours and
lunch breaks, temperature checks and regular workplace sanitization.

At the reporting date, the Group and the Company have performed
an assessment of the overall impact of the situation on the Group’s
and the Company’s operations, including the recoverability of the
carrying amount of assets and measurements of assets and liabilities.

The Directors and management of the Group and the Company are
not aware of any uncertainties arising after the end of the financial
year that would have a significant impact on the current financial
statements, including the financial continuity and sustainability of the
Group and the Company as going concern for the next twelve (12)
months.

On 13 May 2022, a Supplemental reNIKOLA Advance Agreement was
signed with reNIKOLA whereby the advance amount was changed
from RM19,000,000 to RM49,900,000. Should the disposal of BGMC
Bras Power be unsuccessful, reNIKOLA can demand repayment from
the Group and the Group is required to repay the loan plus any
interest and fees to reNIKOLA within seven days from such demand.

BGMC International Limited

45. BEHEREREE

(i)

(ii)

HERFERRNTE

B 20205 #E - 201978 AR SR E 518 3 5
BER -t REEMNMRITR G R HU K
REMGEBERR - AEBERAQARHD
BELEHTEHEEMS RS - BGRE
BRERRE  RIUEE MEE - RSE
77 EPIBRESE - W EhESI20195E AR R
SMNEE  URERD2019BREER
HHEBKENTE - AEERARRE
BRI 20197 AR IR 35078 4% R HE e B2 48 TVERS
RIFEERE - R TIESFTfREER - SBH T
TERF AR - B8R %R A TIESFTE HA

R RS ARERAA AR
SRR B R AL A BRI
fh - EIEAERE N RN RAE R
BENE -

EENAREFNARREEEL L -
HHFEERENTNTETEAZSE A
A SHRTEREATE  BREASER
RATARKREF —(12)EAHELEN
B IS @B A AT E I -

202265138 + AN &) B reNIKOLA %
ETreNKOLATH R B E s RE S
¢ 19,000,000 #& F % 5 2 7 49,900,000 £
BHHF o I8 2R 88 B U H & BGMC Bras Power,
reNIKOLART LAZ SRR BIE R - MASKE
JBIEBSRIE RN EreNIKOLAE B B ZUA
RAR A EAER °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45, Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting

Period (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 18 March 2022, BGMC Bras Power terminated the Operation,
Maintenance and Management Services Agreement ("OMMA”)
entered into between Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd. and BGMC Bras Power.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 26 April 2022,
Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd. has filed an injunction in aid of arbitration
for the termination of OMMA. An ad-interim order was granted on 29
April 2022 (and subsequently extended until the next hearing date)
with the next hearing fixed on 1 July 2022. On 27 June 2022, Sparks
Energy Sdn. Bhd. has commenced arbitration proceedings against
BGMC Bras Power.

On 29 June 2022, Kazuomi Kaneto (sole director of DPI Solar 1) and DPI
Solar 1 (which indirectly holds shares in Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd.) (the “2
Plaintiffs”) have commenced the lawsuit at the High Court of Malaya
at Kuala Lumpur (Commercial Division) against 25 defendants, among
others, an executive director of the Group, subsidiaries of the Group
namely BGMC Corporation, BGMC Holdings, BGMC Energy, BGMC Bras
Power, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, the Land
Companies and others (in total 9 individuals and 16 companies as
defendants, collectively the “Defendants”).

The 2 Plaintiffs’ allegations are, among others, regarding the legality
of (i) the disposal of interest in 95% of ordinary shares of BGMC Bras
Power; (ii) BGMC Bras Power’s termination of OMMA between BGMC
Bras Power and Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd,; and (iii) the Land Companies’
redemption of preference shares held by DPI Solar 1.

46. Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2022.

e MR RRME

45. BEHERERSEE(E)

(i)

(iv)

#2022 %3 A 18 B * BGMC Bras Power £%
1E T Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd. 1 BGMC Bras
Power Z [IZ T IE - #EREERE
WE (B  #BREEHR]) - W
EHRLE R 1% 0 Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd.©& %
20224 F26 B IR R W B R B A 225 Il <
AR IFEE - EERERHZE - 2528
P2022F4 A9 BRI (RBERERET —
R BEAL) - TR B HE /2022
F7H18 © 202296 H278 - Sparks Energy
Sdn. Bhd. £ ¥fBGMC Bras Powerg A {1 £ 12
r%_ °

20228 6 A 298 + Kazuomi Kaneto ( DPI
Solar 1#) Mg —ZE %) I DPI Solar 1 (& # #%
A Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd. B9 B% 17 ) ([ M &
REDEESTEENERADSE AR
(BBER) W wE(HPaE) g
EH—BHTES AEENHERR
BGMC Corporation » BGMC Holdings * BGMC
Energy * BGMC Bras Power & ZK A &) & T i
BREMN—HBEE TR REMAL
(BHIBBEARIMARWERHS - 5ifF
[# & ) IRREEFFA ©

MERENRET(ERRE)ERO)LE
BGMC Bras Power 95% & i@ I% &) # %5 (i)
BGMC Bras Power #% |F BGMC Bras Power £
Sparks Energy Sdn. Bhd. Z I A):E & - 4
NERB R - R (i b2 FEEIDPI Solar
FHERNEBERNEEN -

46. L EARE P BEHR

FAEPEBRERN202F6 A30BEEESHER
AT -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L FEBEE

For the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022

2020510 A1 B E202243 A31 H A

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five TXEHF|IAEBEBEREL 45 - EERAER
years, as extracted from the published consolidated financial statements of the 2 » Jifs¢ 8 AR A0 TZE 2 2 A TS TRE -
Company is set out below.

Period from
1 October
2020 to Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September

2022 2020 2019 2018 2017
2020%F = = HE HE
10818 % 20204 20194 2018%F 20174
20224 9A30H 9A30H 9A30H 9A30H
3A31REMA HFE IHFE HEE LHFE
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

THES THER THER THER THER

(re-presented)

¢ =zly

Turnover from continuing SBICE TS 2

operations EERE 285,828 190,473 343,356 498433 690,093
Turnover from discontinuing BRI EER

operations e 78,918 122,625 10,382 10,872 10,382
Total turnover BT 364,746 313,098 353,738 509,305 700,475
(Loss)/profit before tax from BEREEE 2 BRI

continuing operations (&51#8),/ & (47,110) (203,296) (53,012) (3/469) 70,350
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEHiEe,/ (Ax) 2,421 (5616) (2,264) (7,055) (19,746)
(Loss)/profit and total R (FE) 5

comprehensive (loss)/income R2E(E8), KA

for the period/year Pk (59,299) (198,257) (55,276) (10,524) 50,604
(Loss)/profit attributable to NAFEE A

owners of the Comnpany (&18),/&F (56,542) (193,543) (53,063) (4,145) 51,861
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEERE 473,319 839,052 893,711 878,188 933913
Total liabilities Bfafes 375,635 739,639 627,698 557,591 589,482
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